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DEFINITIONS

The abbreviations or acronyms defined below ard tts®ughout this Form 10-K:

Abbreviation or Acronym

Definition

AFDC
ARO

AUT
Beaver
Biglow Canyon
Boardman
BPA

CAA
Carty
Colstrip
Coyote Springs
CWIP

Dth

DEQ
EFSA
EPA

ESS
FERC
FMB
GRC

IRP

ISFSI

kv
Moody’s
MW

MWa
MWh
NRC
NVPC
OATT
OPUC
PCAM
PW1

PW2

RPS

S&P

SEC
Trojan
Tucannon River
USDOE

Allowance for funds used during construction

Asset retirement obligation

Annual Power Cost Update Tariff

Beaver natural gas-fired generating plant

Biglow Canyon Wind Farm

Boardman coal-fired generating plant

Bonneville Power Administration

Clean Air Act

Carty Generating Station natural gas-fired geneggtiant
Colstrip Units 3 and 4 coal-fired generating plant
Coyote Springs Unit 1 natural gas-fired generagilant
Construction work-in-progress

Decatherm = 10 therms = 1,000 cubic feet of natymal
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
Equity forward sale agreement

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Electricity Service Supplier

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

First Mortgage Bond

General Rate Case for a specified test year
Integrated Resource Plan

Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation

Kilovolt = one thousand volts of electricity

Moody’s Investors Service

Megawatts

Average megawatts

Megawatt hours

Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Net Variable Power Costs

Open Access Transmission Tariff

Public Utility Commission of Oregon

Power Cost Adjustment Mechanism

Port Westward Unit 1 natural gas-fired generatitagnp
Port Westward Unit 2 natural gas-fired flexible aeity generating plant
Renewable Portfolio Standard

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

United States Securities and Exchange Commission
Trojan nuclear power plant

Tucannon River Wind Farm

United States Department of Energy
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PART |
ITEM1. BUSINESS.
General

Portland General Electric Company (PGE or the Campis a vertically integrated electric utility emged in the generation,
wholesale purchase, transmission, distribution,ratall sale of electricity in the state of Oregdbhe Company operates as a cost-
based, regulated electric utility, with revenueuiegments and customer prices determined basetediotecasted cost to serve retail
customers, and a reasonable rate of return asvdatt by the Public Utility Commission of OregonROC). PGE’s retail load
requirement is met with both Company-owned genamadind power purchased in the wholesale marketCimepany also
participates in the wholesale market by purchaaimgselling electricity and natural gas in an efforobtain reasonably-priced
power for its retail customers. PGE was incorpatatel 930, is publiclyawned, with its common stock listed on the New YS8tkck
Exchange, and operates as a single segment, wethues and costs related to its business activit@stained and analyzed on a
total electric operations basis.

PGE's state-approved service area allocation ofceqapately 4,000 square miles is located entireihin Oregon and includes 52
incorporated cities, of which Portland and Saleethe largest. The Company estimates that at tth@®€2014 its service area
population was 1.8 million , comprising approximpt@6% of the state’s population. During 2014 , @@mpany added 6,203
customers and as of December 31, 2014 , servadlatf®42,273 retail customers.

PGE had 2,600 employees as of December 31, 20ith 780 employees covered under one of two sepaaements with Local
Union No. 125 of the International Brotherhood t¢édErical Workers. Such agreements cover 743 areh@oyees and expire in
February 2016 and August 2017, respectively.

Available I nformation

PGE’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Report Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K andralments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18¢al5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198ztavailable and may be accessed
free of charge through the Investors section ofGbmpany’s website at PortlandGeneral.asrsoon as reasonably practicable after
the reports are electronically filed with, or fuished to, the United States Securities and Exch@oganission (SEC). It is not
intended that PGE’s website and the informatiorta@ioed therein or connected thereto be incorporatedhis Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Information may also be obtained via ®t&C website at sec.gov

Regulation

PGE is subject to both federal and state regulatitnich can have a significant impact on the openatof the Company. In addition
to those agencies and activities discussed belmnCbmpany is subject to regulation by certain rmvnental agencies, as described
in the Environmental Matters section in this Item 1

Federal Regulation
Several federal agencies, including the Federatdgyng@egulatory Commission (FERC), the U.S. Depantno Transportation’s
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Adminigira(PHMSA), and the Nuclear Regulatory CommisgidRC) have regulatory
authority over certain of PGE’s operations andvit@tis.

FERC Regulation

PGE is a “licensee,” a “public utility,” and a “us@wner and operator of the bulk power systemdefined in the Federal Power
Act. As such, the Company is subject to regulatipithe FERC in matters related to wholesale
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energy activities, transmission services, relibdind cyber security standards, natural gas pieglihydroelectric projects,
accounting policies and practices, short-term destances, and certain other matters.

Wholesale EnergyPGE has authority under its FERC Market-Based S}aidff to charge market-based rates for wholesakrgy
sales. Re-authorization for continued use of satdsrrequires the filing of triennial market powstrdies with the FERC. The
Company will file its next updated triennial marketwer study in 2016.

PGE also has reporting requirements to the FER@rgrchange in status that departs from the clexistits that the FERC relied
upon in authorizing sales at market-based ratekjding increases in net generation capacity. Runtsto this requirement, PGE
expects to file an update in mid-February 2015dwress the recent addition of generation capaegylting from the Tucannon
River Wind Farm (Tucannon River) and Port Westwanit 2 natural gas-fired generating plant (PW2) atfter minor changes in
merchant transmission contracts. The Company expleetfiling to demonstrate that PGE continueststy the FERC’s
requirements for market-based rate authority.

Transmissior—PGE offers transmission service pursuant to itsrOfccess Transmission Tariff (OATT), which consaiates and
terms and conditions of service, as filed with apgroved by the FERC. As required by the OATT, R&tvides information
regarding its transmission business on its Operegg€Same-time Information System, also known asI®ASs of December 31,
2014 , PGE owned 1,162 circuit miles of transmisdiles. For additional information, see the Traission and Distribution section
in this Item 1. and in Item 2.—"Properties.”

Reliability and Cyber Security Standa—Pursuant to the Energy Policy Act of 2005, the EBRs adopted mandatory reliability
standards for owners, users and operators of tliepbwer system. Such standards, which are appidatPGE, were developed by
the North American Electric Reliability CorporatigdERC) and the Western Electricity Coordinatingu@al (WECC), which have
responsibility for compliance and enforcement efséh standards. These standards include Criticqalstnficture Protection standar
a set of cyber security standards that providaméwork to identify and protect critical cyber assesed to support reliable
operation of the bulk power system.

Pipeline—The Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural Gdgyéct of 1978 provide the FERC authority in neatt related to the
construction, operation, extension, enlargemefféfgaand abandonment of jurisdictional interstadéural gas pipeline facilities, as
well as transportation rates and accounting fargtaite natural gas commerce. PGE is subject toauthority as the Company ha
79.5% ownership interest in, and is the operatoeobrd of, the Kelso-Beaver Pipeline, a 17-mitelistate pipeline that provides
natural gas to the Company’s natural §esd generating plants located near Clatskaniegdn: Port Westward Unit 1 (PW1); PW
and Beaver. As the operator of record of the K&saver Pipeline, PGE is subject to the requiremamtisregulations enacted under
the Pipeline Safety Laws administered by the PHM@Hich include safety standards, operator quatificestandards and public
awareness requirements.

Hydroelectric Licensin—Under the Federal Power Act, PGE’s hydroelecteioagating plants are subject to FERC licensing
requirements, which include an extensive publicevprocess that involves the consideration of moone natural resource issues
and environmental conditions. PGE holds FERC liesrier the Company’s projects on the Deschutegk@haas, and Willamette
Rivers. For additional information, see the Envirmmtal Matters section in this Item 1. and the Gaineg Facilities section in Item
2.—"Properties.”

Accounting Policies and Practic—Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Federald?d\ct, PGE prepares financial statemen
accordance with the accounting requirements oFEEIRC, as set forth in its applicable Uniform Systfidccounts and published
accounting releases. Such financial statementsereled in annual and quarterly reports filed wifie FERC.

Short-term Debt—Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Fedeoald? Act and FERC regulations, regulated publititigts are
required to obtain FERC approval to issue certagusties. The Company, pursuant to an order
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issued by the FERC on February 3, 2014, has aa#tamn to issue up to $900 million of short-ternbtdhrough February 6, 2016.
NRC Regulation

The NRC regulates the licensing and decommissiooimyiclear power plants, including PGE'rojan nuclear power plant (Troja
which was closed in 1993. The NRC approved the 2G0%fer of spent nuclear fuel from a spent fualpo a separately licensed
dry cask storage facility that will house the foalthe former plant site until a United States Depant of Energy (USDOE) facility
is available. Radiological decommissioning of thenpsite was completed in 2004 under an NRC-apguig@lan, with the plant’s
operating license terminated in 2005. Spent fuerbgte activities will continue to be subject to NRQulation until all nuclear fuel
removed from the site and radiological decommidgemof the storage facility is completed. For audial information on spent
nuclear fuel storage activities, see Note 7, ABsgirement Obligations in the Notes to Consolidatgncial Statements in ltem
8.—“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

State of Oregon Regulation

PGE is subject to the jurisdiction of the OPUC, etthis comprised of three members appointed by @rsgmovernor to serve non-
concurrent four-year terms.

The OPUC reviews and approves the Company’s atais (see Economic Regulatiohbelow) and establishes conditions of
utility service. In addition, the OPUC reviews tiempany’s generation and transmission resourceisittqn plans, pursuant to a bi-
annual integrated resource planning process. ThéGd#so regulates the issuance of securities, pbescaccounting policies and
practices, and reviews applications to sell utéisgets, to engage in transactions with affili@@mdpanies, and to acquire substantial
influence over public utilities.

Integrated Resource Ple—Unless the OPUC directs otherwise, PGE is requodide with the OPUC an Integrated Resource Plan
(IRP) within two years of its previous IRP acknoddenent order. Based on direction from the OPUC, HI@& its latest IRP in
March 2014 (2013 IRP). The IRP guides the utilitysoplan to meet future customer demand and descitite Company’s future
energy supply strategy, which reflects new techgielyy market conditions, and regulatory requiresiefthe primary goal of the IRP
is to identify an acquisition plan for generatitnansmission, demand-side and energy efficienayuregs that, along with the
Company'’s existing portfolio, provides the best bamation of expected cost and associated risksuandrtainties for PGE and its
customers. For additional information on PGE’s miesent IRP, seeFuture Energy Resource Strategin the Power Supply
section in this Item 1.

Economic Regulatio—Under Oregon law, the OPUC is required to enduaepirices and terms of service are fair, non-
discriminatory, and provide regulated companies@uortunity to earn a reasonable return on thegstments. Customer prices are
determined through formal proceedings that genematlude testimony by participating parties, digexy, public hearings, and the
issuance of a final order. Participants in sucktgedings, which are conducted under establishemb@uval schedules, include PGE,
OPUC staff, and intervenors representing PGE cust@moups. The following are the more significaegulatory mechanisms and
proceedings under which customer prices are detedni

» General Rate CasedGE periodically evaluates the need to changetissl electric price structure to sufficientlywas its
operating costs and provide a reasonable ratdwhré investors. Such changes are requestedgnirsua comprehensive
general rate case process that includes revenugestgnts based on a forecasted test year, dedujttity capital structure,
return on equity, and overall rate of return. PGHtsst recent general rate case was the 2015 GaatelCase (2015 GRC),
which became effective January 1, 2015. On Febriarp015, PGE filed a general rate case with & 284t year (2016
GRC), for which a final order is expected to besreed in December 2015. New prices are expectée &ffective in 2016,
with the first price change effective January 1 anddditional price change effective when theyC@enerating Station
natural gas-fired generating plant (Carty) becoomational, which is
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expected in the second quarter of 2016. For additimformation, see the Overview section in Item-™anagement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations.”

» Power Cost. In addition to price changes resulting from teaegral rate case process, the OPUC has approvéulltveing
mechanisms by which PGE can adjust retail custqmiees to cover the Company’s net variable powst(NVPC), which
consist of the cost of purchased power and fuel usgeneration (including related transportatiosts) less revenues from
wholesale power and fuel sales:

o Annual Power Cost Update Tariff (AUT). Under thasiff, customer prices are adjusted annuallyeftect the latest
forecast of NVPC. Such forecast assumes the fatiguiar the different types of PGE-owned generatgspurces:

» Thermal—Expected operating conditiol

= Hydroelectric—Regional hydro generation basedthistorical stream flow data and current hydro ofiega
parameters; and

*  Wind—Generation levels based on a five-year hisabrolling average of the wind farm. To the extistorical
information is not available for a given year, fitejections are based on wind generation studies.

An initial NVPC forecast, submitted to the OPUCAyril 1st each year, is updated during such yedrfaralized in
November. Based upon the final forecast, new pragspproved by the OPUC, become effective dbelginning of the
following calendar year; and

o Power Cost Adjustment Mechanism (PCAM). Custoprares can also be adjusted to absorb a portitimeodifference
between each yearforecasted NVPC included in customer prices (besdlVPC) and actual NVPC for the year. Un
the PCAM, PGE shares a portion of the businessorislenefit associated with NVPC. The PCAM utilizes
asymmetrical deadband range within which PGE alssoobt variances. When the variances fall outdidieeodeadband,
the excess variance is shared, with 90% flowingustomers via the PCAM and only 10% absorbed bytirapany.
The deadband range is $15 million below, to $30ionilabove, baseline NVPC. Annual results of thé\RICare subject
to application of a regulated earnings test, umdech a refund will occur only to the extent thiatesults in PGE actua
regulated return on equity (ROE) for that year beio less than 1% above the Company'’s latest daatbROE. A
collection will occur only to the extent that istdts in PGES actual regulated ROE for that year being no grehan 19
below the Company’s authorized ROE. A final deteration of any customer refund or collection is mbage¢he OPUC
through a public filing and review typically duritige second half of the following year. For additibinformation, see
the Results of Operations section in Iltem 7.—“Mamagnts Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esult:
of Operations.”

» Decoupling—The decoupling mechanism, currently authorizedubh 2016, is intended to provide for recovery afgm
lost as a result of a reduction in electricity sadétributable to energy efficiency and conservaéfiorts by residential and
certain commercial customers. The mechanism prewvimecollections from customers if weather adjdstaergy use per
customer is lower than levels included in the Comypmmost recent general rate case; it also provimtesustomer refunds
weather adjusted use per customer exceeds lewdlsléd in the most recent general rate case.

The following is a summary of the impacts of thealgling mechanism for the last three years:

o For 2014 , the Company recorded an estimatetdedfi $7 million as weather adjusted energy usepstomer was
greater than that estimated and approved in PGHE4 General Rate Case (2014 GRC). In additionCthrapany
recorded in 2014 a $2 million collection relatec®@i3 resulting from the OPUC's review. A final eehination of the
2014 estimate will be made by the OPUC throughldipfiling and review in 2015.

o For 2013, PGE recorded an estimated collectiéBanillion. In addition, the Company recorded2i®13 a $2 million
collection related to 2012 resulting from the OPE@view. A final determination
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of the 2013 estimate was made by the OPUC throumlbkc filing and review in 2014, which resultada $5 million
collection for 2013.

o For 2012, the Company recorded an estimateaidedfi$1 million. A final determination of the 20&8timate was made
by the OPUC through a public filing and review i3, which resulted in a collection of $1 million.

* Renewable EnergThe 2007 Oregon Renewable Energy Act (the Act)bdisteed a Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS)
which required that PGE serve at least 5% of i@iIrad with renewable resources by 2011, witlufel requirements of
15% by 2015, 20% by 2020, and 25% by 2025. PGElnec2011 requirement and expects to have sufficesgdurces to
meet the 2015 requirement with the addition of Tuncen River, which was placed into service on Deamils, 2014.

The Act also allows renewable energy credits, tegufrom energy generated from qualified renewabiources placed in
service after January 1, 1995 and certified lowaotfhydroelectric power resources, to be used &t the Company’s RPS
compliance obligation.

The Act also provides for the recovery in custoprézes of all prudently incurred costs required¢amnply with the RPS.
Under a renewable adjustment clause (RAC) mechaf&k can recover the revenue requirement of neewable
resources and associated transmission that issh@tgiuded in prices. Under the RAC, PGE submiilireg by April 1st of
each year for new renewable resources expectesl pitabed in service in the current year, with gitebecome effective
January 1st of the following year. In addition, R&C provides for the deferral and subsequent regosf eligible costs
incurred prior to January 1st of the following yeBine Company submitted a RAC filing to the OPUQ®14 with the
expectation that Tucannon River would be placeal $etrvice before the end of 2014. For additionfarmation, see the
Overview section in Item 7.—*Management’s Discuasimd Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft®perations.”

As needed, other ratemaking proceedings may oclican involve charges or credits related to specifsts, programs, or
activities, as well as the recovery or refund deded amounts recorded pursuant to specific OPW@osization. Such amounts are
generally collected from, or refunded to, retastouners through the use of supplemental tariffs aditional information, see the
“Legal, Regulatory and Environmental Matters” dission in the Overview section in Item 7.—“Managettebiscussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiiems.”

Retail Customer Choice Progre—PGE'’s commercial and industrial customers havessto pricing options other than cost-of-
service, including direct access and daily mankeéék-based pricing. All commercial and industriastomers are eligible for direct
access, whereby customers purchase their elegtiioin an Electricity Service Supplier (ESS). Untlex program, the Company is
paid for delivery of the energy to the ESS custamier addition, large commercial and industrialtoogers may elect to be served
PGE on a daily market index-based price.

Certain large commercial and industrial customeay elect to be removed from cost-of-service pridora fixed three-year or a
minimum five-year term, to be served either by &5For by the Company under a daily market indeseBgrice. Participation in
the fixed three-year and minimum five-year optjorggrams is capped at 300 average megawatts (MWagregate.

The majority of the energy supplied under PGE’'saR€&ustomer Choice program is provided to custantieait have elected service
from an ESS under the minimum five-year opt-ougpam. In 2014 ESSs supplied direct access customers with emepggsentin
9% of the Company’s total retail energy delivefimsthe year, compared with 8% in 2013 and 6% ih2d he maximum retail load
allowed to be supplied under the fixed three-year minimum five-year opbut programs would represent approximately 14%e
Company’s total retail energy deliveries for 202013 , and 2012.
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The retail customer choice program does not hawatarial impact on the Company’s financial conditar operating results as
revenue changes resulting from increases or dexs@a®lectricity sales to direct access customersubstantially offset by chan
in the Company’s cost of purchased power and fugther, the program provides for “transition atijusnt” charges or credits to
direct access and market based pricing customatsefiect the above- or belomarket cost of energy resources owned or purct
by the Company. Such adjustments are designedstoethat the costs or benefits of the programadanfairly shift to those
customers that continue to purchase their enengyinements from the Company.

In addition to cost-of-service pricing, residenaald small commercial customers can select pastfigtions from PGE that include
time-of-use and renewable resource pricing.

Energy Efficiency Fundin—Oregon law provides for a “public purpose chargefund cost-effective energy efficiency measures,
new renewable energy resources, and weatherizagasures for low-income housing. This charge, equddoof retail revenues, |
collected from customers and remitted to the End@imggt of Oregon (ETO) and other agencies for adstration of these programs.
Approximately $51 million , $48 million and $50 fidin was collected from customers for this charg2014 , 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

In addition to the public purpose charge, PGE edsaits to the ETO amounts collected under an EnEffigiency Adjustment tariff
to fund additional energy efficiency measures. Thiarge was approximately 3.2% , 3.5% and 2.7%tailrevenues for applicable
customers in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivaigledthe tariff, approximately $48 million , $50lkoin and $41 million was
collected from eligible customers in 2014 , 201d 8012 , respectively.

Siting—Oregon’s Energy Facility Siting Council (EFSC) lmagulatory and siting responsibility for largeat& generating
facilities, high voltage transmission lines, intede gas pipelines, and radioactive waste dispiies. The responsibilities of the
EFSC also include oversight of the decommissioniin§rojan. The seven volunteer members of the E&&Gppointed to four-year
terms by Oregon’s governor, with staff support led by the Oregon Department of Energy.

Regulatory Accounting

PGE is subject to accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as@ regulated public utility,
the effects of rate regulation are reflected irfiitancial statements. These principles providetierdeferral as regulatory assets of
certain actual or estimated costs that would ottsenlve charged to expense, based on expected redmra customers in future
prices. Likewise, certain actual or anticipatedddeethat would otherwise reduce expense can karmef as regulatory liabilities,
based on expected future credits or refunds tmmets. PGE records regulatory assets or liabilitigss probable that they will be
reflected in future prices, based on regulatoryemsar other available evidence.

The Company periodically assesses the applicalofitegulatory accounting to its business, conggeboth the current and
anticipated future regulatory environment and ezlaccounting guidancé-or additional information, seeRegulatory Assets and
Liabilities ” in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Ridis, and Note 6, Regulatory Assets and Liabiliiieshe Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.—"“Fai@nStatements and Supplementary Data.”
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Customers and Revenues

PGE generates revenue through the sale and deb¥etgctricity to retail customers. The Companwpabacts retail electric
operations exclusively in Oregon within a servicesaapproved by the OPUC. Within its service teryitthe Company competes
with: i) the local natural gas distribution compédny the energy needs of residential and commesgiate heating, water heating,
and appliances; and ii) fuel oil suppliers, priryafor residential customers’ space heating nekdaddition, the Company
distributes power to commercial and industrial oowrs that choose to purchase their energy suppty &n ESS. The Company
includes such “direct access” customers in itsarast counts and energy delivered to such customéistotal retail energy
deliveries. Retail revenues include only delivemamges and transition adjustments for these custome

Retail Revenues

Retail customers are classified as residential,jgernial, or industrial, with no single customernegenting more than 5% of PGE’s
total retail revenues or 7% of total retail deliest While the 20 largest commercial and industiistomers constituted 12% of total
retail revenues in 2014 , they represented nirferéifit groups including high technology, paper niacturing, metal fabrication,
health services, and governmental agencies.

PGE's Retail revenues (dollars in millions), retaikergy deliveries (MWh in thousands), and averageber of retail customers
consist of the following for the years presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Retail revenues® (dollars in millions):
Residential $ 89: 51% $ 861 51% $ 86C 50%
Commercial 657 37 61¢ 36 632 37
Industrial 221 12 217 13 22€ 13
Subtotal 1,771 10C 1,697 10C 1,71¢ 10C
Other accrued (deferred) revenues, net (8 — 5) — 4 —
Total retail revenues $ 1,76: 10% $ 1,692 100% $ 1,72¢ 10(%
Retail energy deliveries® (MWh in
thousands):
Residential 7,46: 39% 7,70z 40% 7,50¢ 39%
Commercial 7,49¢ 39 7,441 38 7,402 39
Industrial 4,31( 22 4,27¢ 22 4,28: 22
Total retail energy deliveries 19,26¢ 10C% 19,41¢ 10C% 19,19( 10C%
Average number of retail customers:
Residential 735,50: 87% 728,48: 87% 723,44( 87%
Commercial 105,23: 13 104,38! 13 103,76t 13
Industrial 26C — 262 — 261 —
Total 840,99: 10C% 833,12¢ 100% 827,46 10C%

(1) Includes both revenues from customers wholmase their energy supplies from the Company anehigas from the delivery of energy to
those commercial and industrial customers thathase their energy from ESSs.

(2) Includes both energy sold to retail custonaer energy deliveries to those commercial and indlisustomers that purchase their energy
from ESSs.
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Additional averages for retail customers are asvi:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Usage per customer (in kilowatt hours):

Residential 10,14¢ 10,57: 10,37¢

Commercial 71,21¢ 71,28 71,34!

Industrial 16,576,50 16,257,51 16,409,21
Revenue per customer (in dollars):

Residential $ 1,15¢ % 1,10¢ $ 1,11:

Commercial 6,187 5,84( 6,041

Industrial 851,14¢ 786,39( 863,40:
Revenue per kilowatt hour (in cents):

Residential 11.3%¢ 10.4¢¢ 10.7:¢

Commercial 8.6¢ 8.1¢ 8.41

Industrial BodlE 4.84 5.2¢

For additional information, see the Results of @pens section in Item 7.—*Management’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

In accordance with state regulations, PGE's retatomer prices are based on the Company’s ca@&treice and are determined
through general rate case proceedings and vamwifisfilings with the OPUC. Additionally, the Conapy offers different pricing
options including a daily market price option, wa$ time-of-use options, and several renewableggragtions, which are offered to
residential and small commercial customers. Foitiathal information on customer options, seRétail Customer Choice Program
within the Regulation section of this Item 1. Adidlital information on the customer classes follows.

Residentiacustomers include single family housing, multidenfly housing (such as apartments, duplexes, amd tmmes), mobil
homes, and small farms. Residential demand istsentd the effects of weather, with demand hisi@lty highest during the winter
heating season; although, increased use of ailttamdg in PGE'’s service territory has causedghmmer peaks to increase in
recent years. Economic conditions can also afesitiential demand; historical data suggests thydt tlnemployment rates contrib
to a decrease in residential deliveries. Residetitiaand is also impacted by energy efficiency messs however, the Company’s
decoupling mechanism is intended to mitigate tharfcial effects of such measures.

During 2014 , as a result of warmer weather dutiireg2014 heating season, total residential debgetecreased 3.1% compared to
2013 . Total residential deliveries for 2013 inae# 2.6% compared to 2012 as a result of morere&treeather conditions during
2013 and an increase in the average number ofroesto On a weather adjusted basis, energy delé/arieesidential customers
decreased by 1.9% in 2014 when compared to 2013 .

Commerciakustomers consist of non-residential customers adeept energy deliveries at voltages equivalettidse delivered to
residential customers. This customer class inclatest businesses, small industrial companies, abtigstreet and highway
lighting accounts.

The Company’s commercial customers are somewhaslexceptible to weather conditions than the rasalecustomer, although
weather does have an effect on commercial demarwhdinic conditions and fluctuations in total empient in the region can also
lead to corresponding changes in energy demanddoonmmercial customers. Commercial demand is alpaated by energy
efficiency measures, the financial effects of whach partially mitigated by the Company’s decouplinechanism.

In 2014 , the 0.7% increase in commercial delivec@mpared with 201®as driven by increased demand from across therityapd
commercial sectors, most notably office buildingmyernment and education, food stores and the wasitg sectors combined w
an increase in the average number of commercitébmuess. Deliveries
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to commercial customers increased 0.5% in 2013 eoadpwith 2012 , which was primarily due to moré&rexe weather in 2013
relative to 2012 , and an increase in the averagger of commercial customers.

Industrial customers consist of non-residential customers adeept delivery at higher voltages than commentiatomers, with
pricing based on the amount of electricity delickoa the applicable tariff. Demand from industdastomers is primarily driven by
economic conditions, with weather having little imgpon this customer class.

The Company’s industrial energy deliveries increda38% in 2014 from 2013 which was due to increat®dand in the high tech
industry, partially offset by a decline in demanahfi a paper production customer. The 0.2% declied&@13 from 2012 was driven
by decreased demand from certain paper productidrnih tech manufacturing customers.

Other accrued (deferred) revenues, imelude items that are not currently in customécqs, but are expected to be in prices in a
future period. Such amounts include deferrals @mdunder the RAC, the PCAM, and the decouplinghaeism. For further
information on these items, se&tate of Oregon Regulatidnn the Regulation section of this Item 1.

Wholesale Revenues

PGE patrticipates in the wholesale electricity mgoleee in order to balance its supply of power &etrthe needs of its retalil
customers. Interconnected transmission systenteiwéstern United States serve utilities with diedoad requirements and allow
the Company to purchase and sell electricity witharegion depending upon the relative price aradability of power, hydro
conditions, and daily and seasonal retail demanublégale revenues represented 5% of total reven@l4, compared with 4% |
2013, and 3% in 2012 .

The majority of PGE’s wholesale electricity sales @ utilities and power marketers and are predantly short-term. The
Company may choose to net purchases and salefhwifame counterparty rather than simultaneousbivieg and delivering
physical power; in such cases, only the net amofititose purchases or sales required to meet egtdilvholesale obligations will
physically settled.

Other Operating Revenues

Other operating revenues consist primarily of gaind losses on the sale of excess natural gaglhaswrevenues from transmission
services, excess transmission capacity resalessgxael oil sales, pole contact rentals, and alestric services provided to
customers. Other operating revenues representenf 88tal revenues in 2014 , 2013, and 2012 .

Seasonality

Demand for electricity by PGE's residential andatiesser extent, commercial customers, is affdoyeskasonal weather conditions.
The Company uses heating and cooling degree-dajet¢omine the effect of weather on the demanelfxtricity. Heating and
cooling degree-days provide cumulative variancdbénaverage daily temperature from a baselindafeégjrees, over a period of
time, to indicate the extent to which customerdliaedy to use, or have used, electricity for hegtor air conditioning. The higher 1
number of degree-days, the greater the expectedmtifor heating or cooling.
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The following table presents the heating and cgaotiagree-days for the most recent three-year pealodg with 15-year averages
for the most recent year provided by the Nationabtter Service, as measured at Portland Interét#arport:

Heating Cooling
Degree-Days Degree-Days
2014 3,79¢ 658
2013 4,38¢ 53¢
2012 4,16¢ 43€
15-year average for 2014 4,26/ 452

PGE's all-time high net system load peak of 4,0&awatts (MW) occurred in December 1998. The Cowipall-time “summer
peak” of 3,949 MW occurred in July 2009. The follog/table presents PGE’s average winter (consigtirii@nuary, February and
December) and summer (consisting of July, Augudt@eptember) loads for the periods presented alithghe corresponding pe:
load and month in which it occurred (in MWs):

Winter Loads Summer Loads
Average Peak Month Average Peak Month
2014 2,574 3,866 February 2,358 3,646 August
2013 2,656 3,869 December 2,278 3,527 July
2012 2,529 3,426 January 2,249 3,597 August

The Company tracks and evaluates both load gromdipaak load requirements for purposes of long-tead forecasting,
integrated resource planning, and preparing genat@icase assumptions. Behavior patterns, congarvanergy efficiency
initiatives and measures, weather effects, econoomditions, and demographic changes all playairotletermining expected
future customer demand and the resulting resotinee€ompany will need to adequately meet thoseslaad maintain adequate
capacity reserves.

Power Supply

PGE relies upon its generating resources, as wellhmlesale power purchases from third partiesdetrits customers’ energy
requirements. As part of its power supply operatjdhe Company enters into short- and long-termgo@md fuel purchase
agreements. PGE executes economic dispatch decsimcerning its own generation, and participatébe wholesale market in an
effort to obtain reasonably-priced power for itealecustomers, manage risk, and administer itsecitdong-term wholesale
contracts. The Company also promotes energy dfifigieneasures to meet its energy requirements.

PGE's generating resources consist of six theritaalte (natural gas- and coal-fired turbines), tvindifarms, and seven
hydroelectric plants. The volume of electricity thempany generates is dependent upon, among ettters, the capacity and
availability of its generating resources and thegyand availability of wholesale power and natges. Capacity of the thermal
plants represents the MW the plant is capable pégding under normal operating conditions, netlettricity used in the operation
of the plant. The capacity of the Company’s thergalerating resources is also affected by ambéempératures. Capacity of both
hydro and wind generating resources representaireplate MW, which varies from actual energy exgetd be received as these
types of generating resources are highly depengson river flows and wind conditions, respectivdlyailability represents the
percentage of the year the plant was availableferations, which reflects the impact of planned famced outages. For a complete
listing of these facilities, seeGenerating Facilities in Item 2.—“Properties.”
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PGE'’s resource capacity (in MW) was as follows:

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Capacity % Capacity % Capacity %
Generation:
Thermal:
Natural gas 1,38¢ 28% 1,16: 27% 1,172 28%
Coal 814 17 75€ 17 67C 16
Total thermal 2,20z 45 1,91¢ 44 1,84 44
Wind @ 717 15 45C 10 45(C 11
Hydro @ 494 10 494 11 48¢ 12
Total generation 3,414 70 2,86: 65 2,781 67
Purchased power:
Long-term contracts:
Capacity/exchange 25( 5 16C 3 16C 4
Hydro 59t 12 592 14 58¢ 14
Wind 3¢ 1 39 1 39 1
Solar 13 — 13 — 13 —
Other 11¢€ 2 117 3 117 3
Total long-term contracts 1,01t 20 921 21 917 22
Short-term contracts 481 10 59¢€ 14 47F 11
Total purchased power 1,49¢ 30 1,517 35 1,39: 33
Total resource capacity 4,91( 10C% 4,38( 10C% 4,17: 10(%

(1) Capacity represents nameplate and differs frpected energy to be generated, which is expéstethge from 215 MWa to 290 MWa,
dependent upon wind conditions.

(2) Capacity represents nameplate and differs frpected energy to be generated, which is expéstethge from 200 MWa to 250 MWa,
dependent upon river flows.

For information regarding actual generating ouud purchases for the years ended December 31, 20148 and 2012 , see the
Results of Operations section of ltem 7.—“Managefsddiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditeomd Results of
Operations.”

Generation

The portion of PGE'’s retail load requirements gatest by its plants varies from year to year ardkiermined by various factors,
including planned and unplanned outages, avaitglaiid price of coal and natural gas, precipitaiod snow-pack levels, the
market price of electricity, and wind variability December 2014, PGE completed construction of PAM#2w capacity resource,
and Tucannon River, a new renewable resource,distiissed below. In addition, as of December 3142the Company has Carty,
a new energy resource, under construction, whielxfpected to be placed in service in the secondeuaf 2016. Such resources
were selected pursuant to the competitive biddioggss completed in 2013 in accordance with thegamyis 2009 IRP. For
additional information on these new energy and ciéypeesources, seeCapital Requirementsin the Liquidity and Capital
Resources section in Item 7.—“Management’s Disamsand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft®perations.”

Thermal PGE has a 90% ownership interest in the Boardmahfited generating plant (Boardman), which it ggges, and has a
20% ownership interest in Colstrip Units 3 and dldired generating plant (Colstrip), which is ogkad by a third party.
These two coal-fired generating facilities provigggbroximately 24% of the Company’s total retaldaequirement in
2014 , compared with 22% in 2013 and 19% in 2012 .
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Wind

Hydro

The Company has four natural gas-fired generatniities: PW1, PW2, Beaver, and Coyote Springg Wni
(Coyote Springs). On December 30, 2014, constmafd®W2, a 220 MW natural gas-fired capacity resedocated
adjacent to PW1 and Beaver near Clatskanie, Oregasicompleted and the facility was placed in servihese natural
gas-fired generating plants provided approximat&¥ of PGE's total retail load requirement in 2@h4 in 2013 , and
15% in 2012 .

The thermal plants provide reliable power for th@pany’s customers, as well as capacity reserfesselresources have
a combined capacity of 2,203 MW, representing axiprately 65% of the net capacity of PGE’s generpfacilities.
Thermal plant availability, excluding Colstrip, w&8% in 2014 , compared with 84% in 2013 and 92%0ih2 , while
Colstrip plant availability was 83% in 2014 , comgiwith 66% in 2013 and 93% in 2012 . Thermal parilability
percentages for 2013 were lower than 2014 and @0&20 unplanned outages at three plants. Foriadditinformation

on the unplanned plant outages, s&»iver Operations in the Overview section in Item 7.—“Managemeriiscussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pferations.”

On December 31, 2014, PGE acquired an additiortdl d@nership interest in Boardman from a co-owrmargasing the
Company’s ownership share to 90% from 80%. Fortanfdil information, see Note 17, Jointly-owned Rlamthe Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.-adRicial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

PGE owns and operates two wind farms, Biglow Canind Farm (Biglow Canyon) and Tucannon River.|8ig
Canyon, located in Sherman County, Oregon, is PGEJ®st renewable energy resource consisting 6fad turbines
with a total nameplate capacity of approximatel® 48/V. Tucannon River, which was placed in servinedb@cember 15,
2014, is located in southeastern Washington andistsrof 116 wind turbines with a total nameplatpacity of 267 MW.

The energy from wind resources provided 6% of tben@any’s total retail load requirement in 2014 12@nd
2012 . Availability for these resources was 9492044 , compared with 98% in 2013 and in 2012 . &mected energy
from wind resources differs from the nameplate cdapand is expected to range from 135 MWa to 18@&/for Biglow
Canyon and from 80 MWa to 110 MWa for Tucannon Ridependent upon wind conditions.

The Company’s FERC-licensed hydroelectric projeotssist of Pelton/Round Butte on the DeschutesiRiear Madras,
Oregon (discussed below), four plants on the ClagisaRiver, and one on the Willamette River. Therges for these
projects expire at various dates ranging from 203%055. Although these plants have a combinedaiigpaf 494 MW,
actual energy received is dependent upon riverdldmergy from these resources provided 9% of tragany’s total
retail load requirement in 2014 amd2013 , and 10% in 2012 , with availability of 100822014 and in 2013, and 99% in
2012 . Northwest hydro conditions have a signifidenpact on the region’s power supply, with watenditions
significantly impacting PGE cost of power and its ability to economicallypdise more expensive thermal generation
spot market power purchases.

PGE has a 66.67% ownership interest in the 465 MWbOR/Round Butte hydroelectric project on the Deses River,
with the remaining interest held by the Confedatatabes of the Warm Springs Reservation of Ore@oibes). A 50yeal
joint license for the project, which is operatedR$E, was issued by the FERC in 2005. The Tribee ha option to
purchase an additional undivided 16.66% intereBtditon/Round Butte at its discretion on or aftec@mber 31, 2021.
The Tribes have a second option to purchase awidedi0.02% interest in Pelton/Round Butte at is@tion on or after
April 1, 2041. If both options are exercised by Thibes, the Tribes’ ownership percentage wouldeerc50%.

Dispatchable Standby Generati(DSG)—PGE has a DSG program under which the Compangteat) operate, and monitor
customer-owned diesel-fueled standby generatorswheded to support specific capacity needs. Toégram also helps provide
NERC-required operating reserves. As of December 314 2@here were 52 sites with a
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total capacity of 94 MW. Additional DSG projectedreing pursued with a goal of a total of 108 MWirenby the end of 2015.

Fuel Supph—PGE contracts for natural gas and coal suppligsired to fuel the Company’s thermal generatingnslawith certain
plants also able to operate on fuel oil if needieéddition, the Company uses forward, future, sveayol option contracts to manage
its exposure to volatility in natural gas prices.

Natural Gas

Coal

Physical supplies of natural gas are generallglpased up to 12 months in advance of delivery asédbon
anticipated operation of the plants. PGE attenpiadnage the price risk of natural gas supply thindhe use of
financial contracts up to 60 months in advancexpketed need of energy.

PGE owns 79.5%, and is the operator of recorcdhekielso-Beaver Pipeline, which directly conned¢1R
PW2 and Beaver to the Northwest Pipeline, an itagriatural gas pipeline operating between Brifislumbia and
New Mexico. Currently, PGE transports gas on this&8eaver Pipeline for its own use under a firamsportation
service agreement, with capacity offered to otleeran interruptible basis to the extent not utdiby the Company.
PGE has access to 103,305 Dth per day of firmmgasportation capacity to serve the three plants.

PGE also has contractual access to natural gasystar Mist, Oregon, from which it can draw in #heent that gas
supplies are interrupted or if economic factorainegjits use. The storage facility is owned andrafesl by a local
natural gas company and may be utilized to profudéto PW1, PW2 and Beaver. PGE is in discusswitts this
company concerning a new long-term gas storagegeraent. PGE believes that sufficient market seppif gas
are available to meet anticipated operations ofdlmants for the foreseeable future.

Beaver has the capability to operate on No. 2 Hfaséoil when it is economical or if the plantstural gas supply
is interrupted. PGE had an approximate 6-day supplitra-low sulfur diesel fuel oil at the plaritesas of
December 31, 2014 . The current operating pewniBeaver limits the number of gallons of fuel thiit can be
burned daily, which effectively limits the daily s of operation of Beaver on fuel oil.

Coyote Springs utilizes 41,000 Dth per day of r@tgas when operating at full capacity, with finrartsportation
capacity on three pipeline systems accessing glais fin Alberta, Canada. PGE believes that suffiaiearket
supplies of gas are available for Coyote Springste foreseeable future, based on anticipatedatiparof the plant
Although Coyote Springs was designed to also opematfuel oil, such capability has been deactivatextder to
optimize natural gas operations.

PGE has fixed-price purchase agreements thapvaillide coal for Boardman for the majority of 20IThe coal is
obtained from surface mining operations in Wyomamgl Montana and is delivered by rail under two sspa
transportation contracts which extend through 2020.

PGE expects to begin seeking requests for profio248l15 for the purchase of coal to start layeopgn positions
for 2016 and beyond. The terms of contracts andjtiadity of coal are expected to be staged in atigmt with
required emissions limits. PGE believes that sigffitmarket supplies of coal are available to naetitipated
operations of Boardman through 2020.

Purchased Power

PGE supplements its own generation with power m@set in the wholesale market to meet its retad leguirements. The
Company utilizes short- and long-term wholesale gropurchase contracts in an effort to provide tlstrfavorable economic mix
on a variable cost basis. Such contracts havenati¢grms ranging from one month to 53 years apirexat varying dates through

2055.
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PGE’s medium term power cost strategy helps miigfag effect of price volatility on its customersedo changing energy market
conditions. The strategy allows the Company to takstions in power and fuel markets up to fivergda advance of physical
delivery. By purchasing a portion of anticipateemgy needs for future years over an extended peliGE mitigates a portion of the
potential future volatility in the average costpofrchased power and fuel.

The Company’s major power purchase contracts coofsthe following (also see the preceding tableclwlsummarizes the average
resource capabilities related to these contracts):

Capacity/exchange-PGE has three contracts that provide PGE with iapacity to help meet the Company’s peak loads.
One contract represents 150 MW of capacity andregpn December 2016. The other two contracts septewo power
purchase agreements for up to 100 MW of seasoia&ing capacity, one agreement covers winter fromeDwer 2014 to
February 2019 and the second agreement covers suinomeJuly 2014 to September 2018.

Hydro—The Company has four contracts that provide ferghirchase of power generated from hydroelectdepts with
an aggregate capacity of 117 MW and which expitevéen 2015 and 2018. In addition, PGE has thewirtig:

* Mid-Columbia hydre—PGE has long-term power purchase contracts witiaioepublic utility districts in the state
of Washington for a portion of the output of thrgalroelectric projects on the mid-Columbia RiveneTcontract
representing 150 MW of capacity expires in 2018 #wedcontract representing 163 MW of capacity eegin
2052 . Although the projects currently provide @tof 313 MW of capacity, actual energy receivedeépendent
upon river flows.

« Confederated Tribes-PGE has a long-term agreement under which the @oynpurchases, at market prices, the
Tribes’ interest in the output of the Pelton/Roihdte hydroelectric project. Although the agreenpolvides 165
MW of capacity, actual energy received is dependpot river flows. The term of the agreement calasiwith
the term of the FERC license for this project, vahéxpires in 2055. During the third quarter of 20RGE entered
into an agreement with the Tribes, whereby theé&ibave agreed to relinquish their right to s@irtehare of the
energy generated from the Pelton/Round Butte hyelctrec project to a third party, and sell the gyyeexclusively
to the Company for the period of January 1, 201éuh December 31, 2024.

Wind—PGE has three contracts that provide for the @setof renewable wind-generated electricity andtchvkktend to
various dates between 2028 and 2035. Although ttasteacts provide a total of 39 MW of capacitytuat energy received
is dependent upon wind conditions.

Solar—PGE has three agreements to purchase power gethématn photovoltaic solar projects, which expietvieen 2036
and 2037. These projects have a combined geneapeagity of 7 MW. In addition, the Company opesatnd purchases
power from three solar projects with an aggregésgpproximately 6 MW of capacity.

Other—These primarily consist of longrm contracts to purchase power from various capatties, including other Paci
Northwest utilities, over terms extending into 2031

Short-term contracts—These contracts are for delivery periods of onatmap to one year in length. They are entered into
with various counterparties to provide additionahfenergy to help meet the Company’s load requamm

PGE also utilizes spot purchases of power in tlenaparket to secure the energy required to sesvetil customers. Such
purchases are made under contracts that rangedtiaiufrom 15 minutes to less than one month.delalitional information
regarding PGE’s power purchase contracts, see Ngt€ommitments and Guarantees, in the Notes te@iolated Financial
Statements in Iltem 8.—“Financial Statements ancpeupentary Data.”
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Future Energy Resource Strategy

In March 2014, PGE filed with the OPUC the 2013 |RAich outlines the Company’s expectations foouese needs and resource
portfolio performance over the next 20 years amtliohes an “Action Plan,” which covers the Compamprsposed actions over the
next two to four years (through 2017). Over thisdiperiod, PGE projects energy requirements andrtbegy available through its
generation resources and long-term power purclgreements to be in approximate balance. In Decegtlist, the OPUC
acknowledged PGE’s 2013 IRP with minor modificatipand the preparation and submittal of additishadies.

The Action Plan includes the following, among otbemponents, between 2014 and 2017:

» Seekrenewal, or partial renewal, of expiringvpo purchase agreements for energy generated fydnodlectric projects, if
available and cost-effective for customers;

» Acquire a total of 114 MWa of energy efficienttyough continuation of Energy Trust of Oregon pawgs, with a target
increase of 124 MWa if legislation and regulatidiow;

» Acquire an additional 25 MW of demand response 28 MW of dispatchable standby generation frostamers to help
manage peak load conditions and other supply agericies; and

» Perform various research and studies relatémbhforecast and energy efficiency projectionstritiuted generation
resources within PGE’s service territory, the Vipdf large-scale biomass operations, fuel suppperational flexibility
requirements and analytical tools, cost-benefitymmof Energy Imbalance Market participation, REfnpliance strategies
and potential impacts of compliance with Unitedt&eEnvironmental Protection Agency’s (EPA'’s) prega Clean Power
Plan rules concerning reductions in carbon dioriagssions from existing fossil fuéled power plants in preparation for
next IRP.

The 2013 IRP also incorporates three new energycapdcity resources, Tucannon River, PW2, and Qattich were selected in
the competitive bidding process in 2013 pursuatthiéoCompany’s 2009 IRP, the previous IRP acknogéddoy the OPUC.
Tucannon River and PW2 were placed in service icebder 2014, with Carty expected to be placedmvicein the second quarter
of 2016. For additional information on these nesorgces, seeCapital Requirementsin the Liquidity and Capital Resources
section in Item 7.—“Management’s Discussion andI$sia of Financial Condition and Results of Opera$.”

Beyond 2018, PGE may need additional resourcesdier ®o meet the 2020 and 2025 RPS requirementtameglace energy from
Boardman, which is scheduled to cease coal-firestadjpns in 2020. Additional post-2018 actions raksp be needed to offset
expiring power purchase agreements and to baclatipbte energy resources, such as wind generalities. These actions are
expected to be identified in a future IRP. PGE exp# file its next IRP with the OPUC in 2016.

Transmission and Distribution

Transmission systems deliver energy from generdiicidjties to distribution systems for final dediny to customers. PGE schedules
energy deliveries over its transmission systentgoedance with FERC requirements and operates alaading authority area (an
electric system bounded by interchange metering} iservice territory. In 2014, PGE delivered apmately 22 million megawatt
hours (MWHh) in its balancing authority area throdgh62 circuit miles of transmission lines opergtat or above 115 kV.

PGE's transmission system is part of the Westdagrdonnection, the regional grid in the westernt&thiStates. The Western
Interconnection includes the interconnected trassion systems of 11 western states, two Canadauinges and parts of Mexico,
and is subject to the reliability rules of the WE@@ the NERC. PGE relies on transmission contraitksBPA to transmit a
significant amount of the Company’s generatiortaaistribution system. PG&transmission system, together with contractugls
on other transmission systems, enables the Contpantegrate and access generation resources toithieastomers’ energy
requirements. PGE’s generation is managed on aic@ted basis to obtain maximum load-carrying céipylnd efficiency. The
Company’s transmission and distribution systemdaated as follows:

» On property owned or leased by P

» Under or over streets, alleys, highways andrgtlilic places, the public domain and nationa¢$ts, and state lands under
franchises, easements or other rights that areraignsubject to termination;

» Under or over private property as a result cegaents obtained primarily from the record holdditie at the time of grant;



and

* Under or over Native American reservations urgtant of easement by the Secretary of the Interidease or easement by
Native American tribes

The Company’s wholesale transmission activitiesegelated by the FERC and are offered on a narridihatory basis in
accordance with the FERC Standards of Conduct, allifnotential customers provided equal access3B’'® transmission system
through PGE’s OATT. In accordance with its OATT,PGffers several transmission services to wholesadtomers:

» Network integration transmission service, a serttieg integrates generating resources to servié lagds
» Short- and long-term firm point-feeint transmission service, a service with fixetiveey and receipt points; a

* Non-firm point-to-point service, an “as availablegrvice with fixed delivery and receipt poil

PGE is subject to state regulatory requirementgeadlto the quality and reliability of its distriimn system. Such requirements are
reflected in specific indices that measure outagattn, outage frequency, and momentary powerrigpions. The Company is
required to include performance results relateskteice quality measures in annual reports fileth Wie OPUC. Specific monetary
penalties can be assessed for failure to attaunnestjperformance levels, with amounts dependeon tiipe extent to which actual
results fail to meet such requirements.

For additional information regarding the Compartygmsmission and distribution facilities, se€ransmission and Distributiohin
Item 2.—“Properties.”

Environmental Matters

PGE’s operations are subject to a wide range aof@mwental protection laws and regulations, whiehtg@in to air and water quality,
endangered species and wildlife protection, anduttlus material. Various state and federal agemegsgdate environmental matters
that relate to the siting, construction, and openadf generation, transmission, and substatioififas and the handling,
accumulation, cleanup, and disposal of toxic armhtdous substances. In addition, certain of the gamy's hydroelectric projects
and transmission facilities are located on propentger the jurisdiction of federal and state agesicind/or tribal entities that have
authority in environmental protection matters. Tolowing discussion provides further information certain regulations that affect
the Company'’s operations and facilities.

Air Quality

Clean Air Act—PGE's operations, primarily its thermal generatfents, are subject to regulation under the fdd&lean Air Act
(CAA), which addresses, among other things, pdeteunatter, hazardous air pollutants, and greesdngas emissions (GHGS).
Oregon and Montana, the states in which PGE's thkfagilities are located,
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also implement and administer certain portiondief€AA and have set standards that are at leaat emjfederal standards.

The EPA issued a rule in 2011 aimed at the reductfdoxic air emissions from power plants. Spegilly, these mercury and air
toxics standards (MATS), which became effectiveApnil 16, 2012, for power plants are intended tduee emissions from new and
existing coal- and oil-fired electric utility steagenerating units. With the installation of emissia@ontrols, which included a Dry
Sorbent Injection system, at Boardman complet&2Di8B, the Company believes the Boardman plant nieet8IATS requirements
without additional capital investment. Oregon Déypent of Environmental Quality (DEQ) rules provige coal-fired operation at
Boardman to cease no later than December 31, EHfi3sions controls in place at Colstrip allow opierawithin the standards
necessary to meet the MATS requirements. The Coyngha@s not anticipate further capital investmennt®t the requirements
currently in place.

Although regulation of mercury emissions is conté&tgd under MATS, the states of Oregon and Monkeva previously adopted
regulations concerning mercury emissions, with Wwhie Company complies.

PGE manages its air emissions by the use of lofursiulel, emissions and combustion controls anditoang, and sulfur dioxide
(SO.) allowances awarded under the CAA. The currentexqpeicted future Seallowances, along with the recent installation of
emissions controls, are anticipated to be suffidiepermit the Company to meet these compliangairements.

Climate Change—No comprehensive GHG emissions legislation has lbeasidered and voted on by the United States @sadn
recent years. However, state, regional, and fediegadlative efforts continue with respect to esdiing regulation of GHG
emissions and their potential impacts on climatnge. The EPA has taken the lead role on climaagshpolicy utilizing existing
authority under the CAA to develop regulations.

In December 2010, the EPA announced it had enteted proposed settlement agreement with varitatesand environmental
groups that would require the EPA to set GHG Newr&® Performance Standards (NSPS) for new and redddssil fuel-based
power plants, and guidelines for state-developeBSIfr existing sources. The emissions standardsefo natural gas- and coal-
fired electric generating units were proposed imil&9)12 under the CAA, and re-proposed in Septar2ba 3, but have yet to be
finalized, as the EPA is in the process of iss@ngvised proposal.

On June 2, 2014, the EPA released a proposedwhieh it calls the “Clean Power Plan.” Under thegwsed rule, each state would
have to reduce the carbon intensity of its powetasen a state-wide basis by an amount specifiettid EPA. The proposed rule
would establish state-specific goals in terms afrfuis of carbon dioxide emitted per MWh. The progasge is intended to result in
a reduction of carbon emissions from existing poplants across all states to approximately 30%vib@@05 levels by 2030. The
target amount was determined by the EPA’s viewaghestate’s options, including: i) making efficigngpgrades at fossil fuel-fired
power plants; ii) shifting generation from coalkefir plants to natural gas-fired plants; iii) expagdiise of zero- and low-carbon
emitting generation (such as renewable energy aokkar energy); and iv) implementing customer epef§iciency programs. The
final goal would need to be met in 2030 and arrimtgyoal for each state would need to be met omasyeeover the 10-year period
from 2020 to 2029. Under the proposed rule, statedd have flexibility in designing programs to régeir emission reduction
targets, including the four approaches noted albodeany other measures the states choose to atcptds carbon tax and cap-and-
trade) that would result in verified emission retiluts.

The EPA has indicated that it expects to issuditlia rules by mid-summer 2015. If finalized by buttate, states would have until
June 30, 2016 to submit plans to implement the (gubject to extension). The Company cannot prediether the proposed rule
will be adopted or, if adopted, i) how the statesvhich the Company’s generation facilities areated will implement the rule or ii)
the impact of the rule on the Company’s operatibtmsvever, the rule, if adopted as proposed, coeddlt in increased costs for the
Company. The Company continues to monitor the dgveénts around the federal proposals.
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The State of Oregon established a non-binding pglicdeline that sets a goal to reduce GHG emissiori0% below 1990 levels
by 2020 and at least 75% below 1990 levels by 2888ough the guideline does not mandate reductiynany specific entity, nor
include penalties for failure to meet the goal, @@mpany is required to report to the DEQ the amhotiGHG emissions produced
along with the total amount of energy producedwihased by PGE for consumption in Oregon.

Any laws that would impose emissions taxes or memmgaeductions in GHG emissions may have a mdtienjgact on PGE’s
operations, as the Company utilizes fossil fuel$simwn power generation and other companies wde feiels to generate power t
PGE purchases in the wholesale market. PGE's najasdfired facilities, Beaver, Coyote Springs, P\widd PW2, and the
Company’s ownership interest in coal-fired fac#tj Boardman and Colstrip, provided approximatdBf @f the Company’s net
generating capacity during 2014. If PGE were tainocremental costs as a result of changes inetpglations regarding GHGs, the
Company would seek recovery in customer prices.

Water Quality

The federal Clean Water Act requires that any falderense or permit to conduct an activity thatymesult in a discharge to waters
of the United States must first receive a watetityueertification from the state in which the agty will occur. In Oregon, Montana,
and Washington, the Departments of Environmentalli@uare responsible for reviewing proposed prigiemder this requirement
ensure that federally approved activities will me&ater quality standards and policies establishethé respective state. PGE has
obtained permits where required, and has certiffcat compliance for its hydroelectric operationder the FERC licenses.

Threatened and Endangered Species and Wildlife

Fish Protectior—The federal Endangered Species Act (ESA) has gigmiotection to many populations of migratory fsgecies in
the Pacific Northwest that have declined signiftbaaver the last several decades. Long-term regopkans for these species have
caused major operational changes to many of tHenaghydroelectric projects. PGE purchases powehé wholesale market to
serve its retail load requirements and has comittagburchase power generated at some of the edféatilities on the mid€Golumbia
River in central Washington.

PGE continues to implement fish protection measatés hydroelectric projects on the Clackamasdbates, and Willamette rive
that were prescribed by the U.S. Fish and Wildhiézvice and the National Marine Fisheries Serviaten their authority granted in
the ESA and the Federal Power Act. As a result@dsares contained in their operating licensedD#sehutes River and Willamette
River projects have been certified as low impacrbywith 50 MWa of their output included as pdrttee Company’s renewable
energy portfolio used to meet the requirementdi®@f@regon RPS. Conditions required with the opagdicenses are expected to
result in a minor reduction in power production amctease capital spending to modify the faciliteenhance fish passage and
survival.

Avian Protectior—Various statutes, including the Migratory Bird @tg Act, have established civil, criminal, and adistrative
penalties for the unauthorized take of migratorgdiBecause PGE operates electric transmissies &#ind wind generation facilities
that can pose risks to a variety of such birdsQbmpany is required to have an avian protectian i reduce risks to bird species
that can result from Company operations. PGE hasldeed and implemented such a plan for its trassiom and distribution
facilities and continues to develop similar plaosifs wind generation facilities. In 2014, sucplan, referred to as a Bird Bat
Conservation Strategy, was drafted for Biglow Camy@ata collection will occur at Tucannon River;, fghich such a plan is
anticipated in 2017.

Hazardous Waste

PGE has a comprehensive program to comply withireipents of both federal and state regulationgedlto hazardous waste
storage, handling, and disposal. The handling @spbdal of hazardous waste from Company
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facilities is subject to regulation under the feddtesource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRAxddition, the use, disposal,
and clean-up of polychlorinated biphenyls, contdiimecertain electrical equipment, are regulatedeurthe federal Toxic Substances
Control Act.

Boardman and Colstrip produce a byproduct knoweoas combustion residuals (CCR), which have histdly not been considered
hazardous waste under the RCRA. On December 14, #04 EPA signed a final rule, which becomes ¢iffecsix months after
publication in the Federal Register, that requl&€R as non-hazardous waste under the RCRA. Asuldsas yet to be published,
PGE is unable to determine with any certainty thpdct the rule will have on the Company’s operatidased on a preliminary
evaluation, the Company believes the rules willlmnte a material effect on operations at Boardidamwever, the Company
believes that this rule will have some effect ornsBip, although it is not clear to what extentlas operator of Colstrip has indicated
that it cannot yet predict the financial and operstl impact. If PGE were to incur incremental soass a result of the new rules, the
Company would seek recovery in customer prices.

PGE is also subject to regulation under the Congarsiire Environmental Response Compensation andityakct (CERCLA),
commonly referred to as Superfund. The CERCLA mtesiauthority to the EPA to assert joint and séviaizlity for investigation
and remediation costs for designated Superfund.site

A 1997 investigation by the EPA of a segment ofWilamette River in Oregon known as Portland Hanlewealed significant
contamination of river sediments and prompted tRa Eo subsequently include Portland Harbor on #aefal National Priority List
as a Superfund site pursuant to CERCLA. The EP#allyi listed sixty-nine Potentially Responsiblerffes (PRPs), including PGE
as it has historically owned or operated propeegrrihe river. In 2008, the EPA requested furthfEarmation from various parties,
including PGE, concerning property several milegooel the original river segment and, as a resudt RRPs now number over one
hundred.

The Portland Harbor site is currently undergoingraedial investigation (RI) and feasibility study§) pursuant to an Administrati
Order on Consent (AOC) between the EPA and seP&&s known as the Lower Willamette Group (LWG),chtdoes not include
PGE.

In March 2012, the LWG submitted a draft FS toERA for review and approval. The draft FS, alonghwie RI, provide the
framework for the EPA to determine a clean-up reyrfed Portland Harbor that will be documented iRecord of Decision, which
the EPA is not expected to issue before 2017.

The draft FS evaluates several alternative cleaapypoaches. These approaches would take fromot®8 years with costs ranging
from $169 million to $1.8 billion, depending on thelected remedial action levels and the choicerokdy. The draft FS does not
address responsibility for the costs of clean-lipcate such costs among PRPs, or define precigedavies for the clean-up.
Responsibility for funding and implementing the EP#Aselected clean-up will be determined after teedace of the Record of
Decision. It is unclear for what portion, if anyGE may be held responsible.

For additional information on this EPA action, $émte 18, Contingencies, in the Notes to Consoldi&ieancial Statements in Item
8.—“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the @&Dis responsible for the permanent storage ammbsies of spent nuclear fuel.
PGE has contracted with the USDOE for permanepbdil of spent nuclear fuel from Trojan that isetioin the Independent Spent
Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI), an NRC-licensgdrim dry storage facility that houses the fuethe former plant site. The spent
nuclear fuel is expected to remain in the ISFSIl permanent off-site storage is available. Shiphwnthe spent nuclear fuel from
the ISFSI to off-site storage is not expected tadmapleted prior to 2033. For additional informati@garding this matter, see “
Trojan decommissioning activiti&ésn Note 7, Asset Retirement Obligations, in thet®s to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8.—“Financial Statements and SupplementaraDat
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ITEM 1A. RISKFACTORS.

Certain risks and uncertainties that could havegm#icant impact on PGE’s business, financial cibiadh, results of operations or
cash flows, or that may cause the Company’s actsallts to vary materially from the forward-lookistatements contained in this
Annual Report on Form -K, include those set forth below.

Recovery of PGE’s costs is subject to regulatory wview and approval, and the inability to recover cos may adversely affect
the Company’s results of operations.

The prices that PGE charges for its retail seryiassuthorized by the OPUC, are a major factdetermining the Company’s
operating income, financial position, liquidity,caaredit ratings. As a general matter, PGE seeksdmver in customer prices most
of the costs incurred in connection with the ogeratf its business, including, among other thirggsts related to capital projects
(such as the construction of new facilities orrniadification of existing facilities), the costs @dmpliance with legislative and
regulatory requirements and the costs of damage $torms and other natural disasters. Howeverett@n be no assurance that
such recovery will be granted. The OPUC has theaxity to disallow the recovery of any costs thatansiders imprudently
incurred. Although the OPUC is required to estéibtisstomer prices that are fair, just and reasenéttthas significant discretion in
the interpretation of this standard.

In February 2015, PGE filed with the OPUC a 2016é&al Rate Case (2016 GRC) with a 2016 test yemra@ditional information
regarding the 2016 GRC, see the Overview sectidtenf 7.—“Management’s Discussion and Analysis ioBRcial Condition and
Results of Operations.” In PGE’s three most regemeral rate cases (2015, 2014 and 2011), overedl increases approved by the
OPUC were less than the Company'’s initial proposatgler such circumstances, PGE attempts to matsagests at levels
consistent with the reduced price increases. Hokyévwhe Company is unable to do so, or if suchtecnanagement results in
increased operational risk, the Company'’s finaraa operating results could be adversely affected.

Economic conditions that result in reduced demanddr electricity and impair the financial stability of some of PGE s
customers, could affect the Company s results of operations.

Unfavorable economic conditions in Oregon may tdsuleduced demand for electricity. Such redudiondemand could adversely
affect PGE'’s results of operations and cash fld&sewnomic conditions could also result in an incegldevel of uncollectible
customer accounts and cause the Company’s vendorseavice providers to experience cash flow prokland be unable to
perform under existing or future contracts.

Market prices for power and natural gas are subjecto forces that are often not predictable and whicltan result in price
volatility and general market disruption, adverselyaffecting PGE’s costs and ability to manage its emgy portfolio and
procure required energy supply, which ultimately caild have an adverse effect on the Company’s liquitli and results of
operations.

As part of its normal business operations, PGEhages power and natural gas in the open market shdg- and long-term
contracts, which may specify variable prices ounmts. Market prices for power and natural gasrdheenced primarily by factors
related to supply and demand. These factors géynaralude the adequacy of generating capacityedaled and unscheduled
outages of generating facilities, hydroelectric anmad generation levels, prices and availabilityfudl sources for generation,
disruptions or constraints to transmission faefifiweather conditions, economic growth, and chaimggchnology.

Volatility in these markets can affect the availifpi price and demand for power and natural gastruption in power and natural ¢
markets could result in a deterioration of mariaatitlity, increase the risk of counterparty defaaffect regulatory and legislative
processes in unpredictable ways, affect wholesaleep prices, and impair PGE’s ability to managesitergy portfolio. Changes in
power and natural gas prices can also affect the@dtue of derivative instruments and cash requéets to purchase power and
natural gas. If power and natural gas prices deeréfam those contained in the Compargxisting purchased power and natural
agreements, PGE may
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be required to provide increased collateral, witichld adversely affect the Company’s liquidity. @ersely, if power and natural
gas prices rise, especially during periods wherCitvmpany requires greater-tharpected volumes that must be purchased at
or short-term prices, PGE could incur greater cth&ta originally estimated.

The risk of volatility in power costs is partialfgitigated through the AUT and the PCAM. PGE filesamnual AUT with an update
of the Company'’s forecasted net variable powersciusbe reflected in customer prices (baseline NVFPGe PCAM provides a
mechanism by which the Company can adjust futustoouer prices to reflect a portion of the differethetween each year’'s
baseline NVPC included in customer prices and a&t&@C. PGE is subject to a portion of the busimésis or benefit associated
with the difference between actual NVPC and baséliWPC by application of an asymmetrical “deadbaiithe PCAM provides fc
a fixed deadband range of $15 million below, to $8Mion above, baseline NVPC. Application of thE&AM requires that PGE
absorb certain power cost increases before the @aoynip allowed to recover any amount from customiecsordingly, the PCAM i
expected to only partially mitigate the potentiaiyverse financial impacts of forced generatingtptautages, reduced hydro and
wind availability, interruptions in fuel suppliesnd volatile wholesale energy prices.

The effects of weather on electricity usage can adssely affect results of operations.

Weather conditions can adversely affect PGE'’s regerand costs, impacting the Company’s resultpefations. Variations in
temperatures can affect customer demand for etétgtrivith warmer-than-normal winters or cooler4thaormal summers reducing
the demand for energy. Weather conditions are ¢hermant cause of usage variations from normal sedgatterns, particularly for
residential customers. Severe weather can alsopdisnergy delivery and damage the Company'’s treassom and distribution
system.

Rapid increases in load requirements resulting fuoexpected adverse weather changes, particufarbypled with transmission
constraints, could adversely impact PGE’s costability to meet the energy needs of its custoneasversely, rapid decreases in
load requirements could result in the sale of exee®rgy at depressed market prices.

Forced outages at PGE’s generating plants can incase the cost of power required to serve customergtause the cost of
replacement power purchased in the wholesale markegenerally exceeds the Company’s cost of generation

Forced outages at the Compagenerating plants could result in power costatgrahan those included in customer prices. 1r8;
the Company experienced forced outages at thrige génerating plants, and as a result, incurreckmental replacement power
costs of $17 million. As indicated above, applicatof the Company’s PCAM could help mitigate adedisancial impacts of such
outages; however, the cost sharing features ahthehanism do not provide full recovery in custoprzes. Inability to recover su
costs in future prices could have a negative impadhe Company’s results of operations.

The construction of new facilities, or modificatiors to existing facilities, is subject to risks thatould result in the disallowance
of certain costs for recovery in customer prices ohigher operating costs.

PGE's current position as a “short” utility requdrhat the Company supplement its own generatitimwdiolesale power purchases
to meet its retail load requirement. In additiand-term increases in both the number of customreisdemand for energy will
require continued expansion and upgrade of PGHismgdion, transmission, and distribution systenmms@ruction of new facilities
and modifications to existing facilities could Héeated by various factors, including unanticipatediays and cost increases and the
failure to obtain, or delay in obtaining, necesgagymits from state or federal agencies or trilndities, which could result in failure
to complete the projects and the disallowance dhgecosts in the rate determination processdtfiten, failure to complete
construction projects according to specificationgld result in reduced plant efficiency, equipmiiiure, and plant performance
that falls below expected levels, which could is® operating costs.
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Adverse changes in PGE'’s credit ratings could negaely affect its access to the capital markets anits cost of borrowed
funds.

Access to capital markets is important to PGE'$itglib operate its business and complete its ahpitojects. Credit rating agencies
evaluate the Company’s credit ratings on a peribdgis and when certain events occur. A ratingswdoade could increase the
interest rates and fees on PGE'’s revolving creditifies and letter of credit facilities, increagithe cost of funding day-to-day
working capital requirements, and could also resuftigher interest rates on future long-term déltatings downgrade could also
restrict the Company’s access to the commerciadpagarket, a principal source of short-term finaggior result in higher interest
costs.

In addition, if Moody’s Investors Service (Moodyahd/or Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (S&Bice their rating on PGE’s
unsecured debt to below investment grade, the Coynpauld be subject to requests by certain whodesalinterparties to post
additional performance assurance collateral, wbalid have an adverse effect on the Company’sdityui

PGE is subject to various legal and regulatory progedings, the outcome of which is uncertain, and relition unfavorable to
PGE could adversely affect the Company'’s results afperations, financial condition or cash flows.

From time to time in the normal course of its bass PGE is subject to various regulatory procegsdiawsuits, claims and other
matters, which could result in adverse judgmermtlesnents, fines, penalties, injunctions, or otledief. These matters are subject to
many uncertainties, the ultimate outcome of whi@nagement cannot predict. The final resolutionesfain matters in which PGE

is involved could require that the Company incypenditures over an extended period of time andrange of amounts that could
have an adverse effect on its cash flows and gestitiperations. Similarly, the terms of resolutomuld require the Company to
change its business practices and procedures, wbidH also have an adverse effect on its cashsflfimancial position or results of
operations.

There are certain pending legal and regulatorygedings, such as the proceedings related to rehmdsolesale market
transactions in the Pacific Northwest and the itigaion and any resulting remediation efforts tedisto the Portland Harbor site,
that may have an adverse effect on results of tipasaand cash flows for future reporting perideist additional information, see
Item 3.—“Legal Proceedings” and Note 18, Contingesdn the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateésim Item 8.—“Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Reduced river flows and unfavorable wind conditionsan adversely affect generation from hydroelectriand wind generating
resources. The Company could be required to replacenergy expected from these sources with higher ¢ggower from other
facilities or with wholesale market purchases, whig could have an adverse effect on results of operans.

PGE derives a significant portion of its power dygppom its own hydroelectric facilities and thrdugpng-term purchase contracts
with certain public utility districts in the staté Washington. Regional rainfall and snow pack Igegfect river flows and the
resulting amount of energy generated by theseitfasil Shortfalls in energy expected from lowertdoglroelectric generating
resources would require increased energy from tmapgany’s other generating resources and/or powehpses in the wholesale
market, which could have an adverse effect on tesfiloperations.

PGE also derives a portion of its power supply fieimd generating resources, for which the outputeigendent upon wind

conditions. Unfavorable wind conditions could regtincreased reliance on power from the Compatmgemal generating resources
or power purchases in the wholesale market, bowhath could have an adverse effect on resultpefations.
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Although the application of the PCAM could help igitte adverse financial effects from any decreagmiver provided by
hydroelectric and wind generating resources, &dbrery of any increase in power costs is not aslsunability to fully recover suc
costs in future prices could have a negative impadhe Company’s results of operations, as wedl sduction in renewable energy
credits and loss of production tax credits relatediind generating resources.

Capital and credit market conditions could adverseg} affect the Company’s access to capital, cost cdital, and ability to
execute its strategic plan as currently scheduled.

Access to capital and credit markets is importarRGES ability to operate. The Company expects to ikl and equity securitie
as necessary, to fund its future capital requirdmen addition, contractual commitments and reguarequirements may limit the
Company’s ability to delay or terminate certainjpats. For additional information concerning PG&&pital requirements, see “
Capital Requiremerg” in the Liquidity and Capital Resources sectioitem 7.—*Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

If the capital and credit market conditions in theited States and other parts of the world detatéggrthe Company’s future cost of
debt and equity capital, as well as access toalapirkets, could be adversely affected. In addjtiestrictions on PGE’s ability to
access capital markets could affect its abilitgxecute its strategic plan.

Legislative or regulatory efforts to reduce greenhase gas emissions could lead to increased capitaldeoperating costs and
have an adverse impact on the Company’s results operations.

Future legislation or regulations could resultimitations on greenhouse gas emissions from thepgaagis fossil fuel-fired
generation facilities. Compliance with any greerdegas emissions reduction requirements couldne&GE to incur significant
expenditures, including those related to carboruwca@nd sequestration technology, purchase ofsernigllowances and offsets,
fuel switching, and the replacement of high-emgtgreneration facilities with lower-emitting faciés.

The cost to comply with potential greenhouse gaissions reduction requirements is subject to sicgniit uncertainties, including
those related to: i) the timing of the implemertatof emissions reduction rules; ii) required lsvef emissions reductions; iii)
requirements with respect to the allocation of sioits allowances; iv) the maturation, regulatiod eommercialization of carbon
capture and sequestration technology; and v) PGdtigpliance alternatives. Although the Company cannoently estimate the
effect of future legislation or regulations onrégsults of operations, financial condition or célslws, the costs of compliance with
such legislation or regulations could be material.

Under certain circumstances, banks participating inPGE’s credit facilities could decline to fund advaces requested by the
Company or could withdraw from participation in the credit facilities.

PGE currently has unsecured revolving credit fiediwith several banks for an aggregate amoufif00 million. These revolving
credit facilities provide a primary source of ligiy and may be used to supplement operating dashand as backup for
commercial paper borrowings.

The revolving credit facilities represent commitrizely the participating banks to make loans andeitain cases, to issue letters of
credit. The Company is required to make certainesgntations to the banks each time it requestsi@ance under one of the credit
facilities. However, in the event certain circunm&t@s occur that could result in a material advehsage in the business, financial
condition or results of operations of PGE, the Campmay not be able to make such representationghich case the banks would
not be required to lend. PGE is also subject taiiethat one or more of the participating banksyrdefault on their obligation to
make loans under the credit facilities.
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In addition, it is possible that the Company migbt be aware of certain developments at the timekes such a representation in
connection with a request for a loan, which cowddse the representation to be untrue at the tinge miad constitute an event of
default. Such a circumstance could result in addthe banks’ commitments under the credit faesitand, in certain circumstances,
the accelerated repayment of any outstanding laéanbes.

Measures required to comply with state and federalegulations related to air emissions and water dis@arges from thermal
generating plants could result in increased capitaéxpenditures and operating costs and reduce gengirsg capacity, which
could adversely affect the Company s results of operations.

PGE is subject to state and federal requirememtsecaing air emissions and water discharges framihl generating plants. For
additional information, see the Environmental Miatgection in Item 1.—“Business.” These requiremeould adversely affect the
Company’s results of operations by requiring i) ithetallation of additional air emissions and watisicharge controls at PGE’s
generating plants, which could result in increasauital expenditures and ii) changes to the Compamyerations that could incre:
operating costs and reduce generating capacity.

Adverse capital market performance could result inreductions in the fair value of benefit plan assetand increase the
Company’s liabilities related to such plans. Sustaied declines in the fair value of the plans’ asset®uld result in significant
increases in funding requirements, which could advsely affect PGE’s liquidity and results of operatons.

Performance of the capital markets affects theevafiassets that are held in trust to satisfy &utbligations under PGE'’s defined
benefit pension plan. Sustained adverse markebymeaince could result in lower rates of return fase assets than projected by the
Company and could increase PGE's funding requirésneated to the pension plan. Additionally, chesin interest rates affect
PGE'’s liabilities under the pension plan. As ingtmates decrease, the Company’s liabilities irsggpotentially requiring additional
funding.

Performance of the capital markets also affectdaineralue of assets that are held in trust tesBafuture obligations under the
Company’s non-qualified employee benefit plans,chinclude deferred compensation plans. As chaimgi fair value of these
assets are recorded in current earnings, decreaseslversely affect the Company’s operating reshitaddition, such decreases
can require that PGE make additional paymentstisfgits obligations under these plans.

For additional information regarding PGE’s conttiba obligations under its pension and non-quaifienefit plans, see “
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitméritsthe Liquidity and Capital Resources sectiontém 7.—“Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &eabults of Operations,” andPension and Other Postretirement Pldria Note
10, Employee Benefits, in the Notes to Consolid&iedncial Statements in Item 8.— “Financial Stadaits and Supplementary
Data.”

Changes in technology may negatively impact the remues derived from PGE’s generation facilities.

A basic premise of PGE’s business is that geneya&iiectricity at central generation facilities aohés economies of scale and
produces electricity at a relatively low price. Masompanies and organizations conduct researcllewvelopment activities to seek
improvements in alternative technologies, suctuatdells, photovoltaic (solar) cells, micro-turegnand other forms of distributed
generation. It is possible that advances in sudimi@ogies will reduce the cost of alternative methof electricity production to a
level that is equal to or below that of centralrthal and wind generation facilities. Such a develept could limit the Company’s
future growth opportunities and limit growth in dend for PGE's electric service.
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Failure of PGE’s wholesale suppliers to perform thie contractual obligations could adversely affect he Company’s ability to
deliver electricity and increase the Company’s cost

PGE relies on suppliers to deliver natural gasl aod electricity, in accordance with short- andgderm contracts. Failure of
suppliers to comply with such contracts in a timnmignner could disrupt the Company’s ability to delielectricity and require PGE
to incur additional expenses in order to meet #eds of its customers. In addition, as these oastexpire, the Company could be
unable to continue to purchase natural gas, cogllestricity on terms and conditions equivalentitose of existing agreements.

Operational changes required to comply with both eisting and new environmental laws related to fish ad wildlife could
adversely affect PGE’s results of operations.

A portion of PGE’s total energy requirement is diggpwith power generated from hydroelectric anddwjenerating resources.
Operation of these facilities is subject to regalatelated to the protection of fish and wildlifene listing of various plants and
species of fish, birds, and other wildlife as thee®d or endangered has resulted in significamatipaal changes to these projects.
Salmon recovery plans could include further majmerational changes to the region’s hydroelectriggats, including those owned
by PGE and those from which the Company purchasegmpunder long-term contracts. In addition, laelating to the protection of
migratory birds and other wildlife could impact thhevelopment and operation of transmission linesvaind projects. Also, new
interpretations of existing laws and regulationsldde adopted or become applicable to such fas)itvhich could further increase
required expenditures for salmon recovery and egetan species protection and reduce the availabilihydroelectric or wind
generating resources to meet the Company’s eneggyrements.

PGE could be vulnerable to cyber security attackgjata security breaches, acts of terrorism or othesimilar events that could
disrupt its operations, require significant expendiures or result in claims against the Company.

In the normal course of business, PGE collects;gs®es, and retains sensitive and confidentiabeestand employee information,
as well as proprietary business information, areraies systems that directly impact the availghilftelectric power and the
transmission of electric power in its service tery. Despite the security measures in place, tragany’s systems, and those of
third-party service providers, could be vulnerableyber security attacks, data security breacets,of terrorism or other similar
events that could disrupt operations or resulbhénrelease of sensitive or confidential informati®ach events could cause a
shutdown of service or expose PGE to liabilityatidition, the Company may be required to expenadifiignt capital and other
resources to protect against security breachesaltdviate problems caused by security breach8k iaintains insurance coverage
against some, but not all, potential losses regyftiom these risks. However, insurance may nadszjuate to protect the Company
against liability in all cases. In addition, PGEighject to the risk that insurers will disputeberunable to perform their obligation:
the Company.

Storms and other natural disasters could damage thEompany'’s facilities and disrupt delivery of eledticity resulting in
significant property loss, repair costs, and reduad customer satisfaction.

PGE has exposure to natural disasters that cae s@yrsficant damage to its generation, transmissaod distribution facilities.
Such events can interrupt the delivery of eledirjéhcrease repair and service restoration expersal reduce revenues. Such
events, if repeated or prolonged, can also affestomer satisfaction and the level of regulatorgreight. As a regulated utility, the
Company is required to provide service to all costs within its service territory and generally bagn afforded liability protection
against customer claims related to service failbmgnd the Company’s reasonable control.

The OPUC has authorized the Company to collect #imannually, beginning in 2011, from retail ¢amers for such damages i
to defer any amount not utilized in the currentry®airing 2014, PGE utilized $5 million of the dadlfahed reserve as a result of
restoration costs associated with storm damagerimegibetween October and
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December 2014. The remaining reserve balance ofiidn as of December 31, 2014 is available tseffpotential storm damage
costs in future years.

PGE utilizes insurance, when possible, to mitighéecost of physical loss or damage to the Comgamgperty. As cost effective
insurance coverage for transmission and distribnutiee property (poles and wires) is currently agailable, however, the Company
would likely seek recovery of large losses to spiadperty through the ratemaking process.

PGE is subject to extensive regulation that affectthe Company’s operations and costs.

PGE is subject to regulation by the FERC, the OP&id, by certain federal, state and local autheritieder environmental and ott
laws. Such regulation significantly influences @@mpany’s operating environment and can have attedih many aspects of its
business. Changes to regulations are ongoing,fen@dmpany cannot predict with certainty the futoerse of such changes or the
ultimate effect that they might have on its businésowever, changes in regulations could delaydeeesely affect business plann
and transactions, and substantially increase tmep@aoy’s costs.

PGE has a workforce with a significant number of erployees approaching retirement, which could make itnore difficult to
maintain the workforce necessary to provide safe ahreliable service to customers and meet regulatomequirements.

The Company anticipates higher averages of retinenages over the next several years and willyikeded to replace a significant
number of employees in key positions. PGE’s abilitguccessfully implement a workforce successlan i dependent upon the
Company’s ability to employ and retain skilled mssional and technical workers. Without a skilledkforce, the Company would
face greater challenges in providing safe andbigiaervice to its customers and meeting regulatuirements, both of which
could affect operating results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

PGE's principal property, plant, and equipmentlacated on land owned by the Company or land utteecontrol of the Company
pursuant to existing leases, federal or state $egneasements or other agreements. In some oetess and transformers are
located on customer property. PGE leases its catpdreadquarters complex, located in Portland, @rebhe Indenture securing t
Company'’s First Mortgage Bonds (FMBSs) constituteract first mortgage lien on substantially allityt property and franchises,
other than expressly excepted property.

Generating Facilities

The following are generating facilities owned byP&s of December 31, 2014 :

Net
Facility Location Capacity @
Wholly-owned:
Natural Gas/Qil:
Beaver Clatskanie, Oregon 51€ MW
Port Westward Unit 1 Clatskanie, Oregon 401
Coyote Springs Boardman, Oregon 24¢
Port Westward Unit & Clatskanie, Oregon 224
Wwind:
Biglow Canyon Sherman County, Oregon 45C
Tucannon Rivef’ Columbia County, Washington 267
Hydro:
North Fork Clackamas River 58
Faraday Clackamas River 46
Oak Grove Clackamas River 44
River Mill Clackamas River 25
T.W. Sullivan Willamette River 18
Jointly-owned “:
Coal:
Boardmarf®
Boardman, Oregon 51€
Colstrip®© :
P Colstrip, Montana 29€
Hydro:
7)
R [0S Deschutes River 23C
Pelton” i
etton Deschutes River 73
Net capacity 3,414 MW

(1) Represents net capacity of generating urdieasonstrated by actual operating or test experjaraenf electricity used in the operation of a
given facility. For wind-powered generating faédg, nameplate ratings are used in place of netaityp A generator's nameplate rating is
its full-load capacity under normal operating caiwtis as defined by the manufacturer.

(2) Placed in service on December 30, 2

(3) Placed in service on December 15, 2

(4) Reflects PGE ownership shai

(5) PGE operates Boardman and has a 90% ownenséipst, which, on December 31, 2014, increasad 80%. For information concerning



the Company’s acquisition of the additional 10% evehip interest in Boardman on December 31, 2@8elNote 17, Jointly-owned Plant,
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementeim 8.—“Financial Statements and SupplementataD

(6) PPL Montana, LLC operates Colstrip and PGE has%a @@nership interes

(7) PGE operates Pelton and Round Butte and has a%@@nership intere:
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PGE’s hydroelectric projects are operated pursttaRERC licenses issued under the Federal PowefTAetlicenses for the
hydroelectric projects on the three different revekpire as follows: Clackamas River, 2055; Will#e®iver, 2035; and Deschutes
River, 2055.

Transmission and Distribution

PGE owns and/or has contractual rights associattbdregnsmission lines that deliver electricityrfrats generation facilities to its
distribution system in its service territory andato the Western Interconnection. As of Decemiie814 , PGE owned an electric
transmission system consisting of 1,162 circuiesiés follows: 212 circuit miles of 500 kV line;26ircuit miles of 230 kV line;
and 548 miles of 115 kV line. The Company also2&880 circuit miles of primary and secondary dsition lines that deliver
electricity to its customers.

The Company also has an ownership interest indifeAfing:

» Approximately 15% of the capacity on the Cofstiroject Transmission facilities from the Colsfipnt in Montana to
BPA'’s transmission system; and

« Approximately 20% of the capacity on the Pacifiatdwest Intertie, a 4,800 MW transmission faciligtween John Day, in
northern Oregon, and Malin, in southern Oregon tieaCalifornia border. The Pacific Northwest Ititers used primarily
for the transmission of interstate purchases aled sdi electricity among utilities, including PGE.

In addition, the Company has contractual rightdh&following transmission capacity:

» Approximately 3,240 MW of firm BPA transmission BPA'’s system to PGE’service territory in Oregon; &

* 195 MW of firm BPA transmission from mid-Colunabprojects in Washington to the northern end oftheific Northwest
Intertie, near John Day, Oregon, 100 MW to theham end of the Pacific DC Intertie, near Celilee@on, and 5 MW to
Biglow Canyon.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Citizens Utility Board of Oregon v. Public Utility Commission of Oregon and Utility Reform Project and ColleenO’ Neill v.
Public Utility Commission of Oregon, Public Utility Commission of Oregon, Marion County Oregon Circuit Court, the Court
of Appeals of the State of Oregon, and the Oregorureme Court.

PGE, in its 1993 general rate filing, sought OP@@raval to recover through rates future decommissgpcosts and full recovery
of, and a rate of return on, its Trojan investm®@E’s request was challenged, but in August 18830PUC issued a Declaratory
Ruling in PGE’s favor. The Citizens’ Utility Boaf€CUB) appealed the decision to the Oregon Couktpgfeals.

In PGE's 1995 general rate case, the OPUC issued an(@@5 Order) granting PGE full recovery of Trojaacdmmissioning cos

and 87% of its remaining undepreciated investmettié plant. The Utility Reform Project (URP) filad appeal of the 1995 Order
to the Marion County Circuit Court. The CUB alsledi an appeal to the Marion County Circuit Courltgnging the portion of the

1995 Order that authorized PGE to recover a rearits remaining undepreciated investment in Trojan

In April 1996, the Marion County Circuit Court issilia decision that found that the OPUC could nthi@ize PGE to collect a
return on its undepreciated investment in Trojdme T996 decision was appealed to the Oregon Coapmeals.

In June 1998, the Oregon Court of Appeals ruletttie@OPUC did not have the authority to allow PG Eecover a rate of return on

its undepreciated investment in Trojan. The coemanded the matter to the OPUC for reconsiderafiais 1995 Order in light of
the court’s decision.
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In September 2000, PGE, CUB, and the OPUC Stafédgiroceedings related to PGE’s recovery ofntestment in the Trojan
plant (Settlement). The URP did not participatéhm Settlement and filed a complaint with the OPd@llenging PGE applicatiot
for approval of the accounting and ratemaking elemef the Settlement.

In March 2002, the OPUC issued an order (Settlet@edér) denying all of the URP’s challenges andrapipg PGE’s application
for the accounting and ratemaking elements of #tdeBnent. The URP appealed the Settlement OrdéetMarion County Circuit
Court. Following various appeals and proceedingsQregon Court of Appeals issued an opinion iroet 2007 that reversed the
Settlement Order and remanded the Settlement @ydee OPUC for reconsideration.

As a result of its reconsideration of the Settlen@mler, the OPUC issued an order in September #@08equired PGE to refund
$33.1 million to customers. The Company complebeddistribution of the refund to customers, plusraed interest, as required.

In October 2008, the URP and the Class Action Bttsr{described in the Dreyer proceeding belowjasately appealed the
September 2008 OPUC order to the Oregon Court peAls. On February 6, 2013, the Oregon Court ofe@fgpissued an opinion
that upheld the September 2008 OPUC order.

On October 18, 2013, the Oregon Supreme Court sexdtpaintiffs’ petition seeking review of the February 6, 2013goreCourt o
Appeals decision.

On October 2, 2014, the Oregon Supreme Courtumaaiimous decision, affirmed the February 6, 206630n Court of Appeals
decision that upheld the OPUC order dated SepteBthez008. On January 15, 2015, the Oregon Sup@uue denied the plaintif
petition seeking reconsideration of the Octobet®,4 decision.

Dreyer, Gearhart and Kafoury Bros., LLC v. Portland General Electric Company, Marion County Circuit Court; and
Morgan v. Portland General Electric Company, Marion County Circuit Court.

In January 2003, two class action suits were fibebllarion County Circuit Court against PGE. The amecase seeks to represent
current PGE customers that were customers durm@éhiod from April 1, 1995 to October 1, 2000 (@ut Class) and the Morgan
case seeks to represent PGE customers that weoenaws during the period from April 1, 1995 to Qu#o 1, 2000, but who are no
longer customers (Former Class, together with thieedt Class, the Class Action Plaintiffs). Thesseek damages of $190 million
plus interest for the Current Class and $70 milpaurs interest for the Former Class, from the isiddo of a return on investment of
Trojan in the rates PGE charged its customers.

In April 2004, the Class Action Plaintiffs filedMotion for Partial Summary Judgment and in July20GE also moved for
Summary Judgment in its favor on all of the Clastigh Plaintiffs’ claims. In December 2004, the Jadjranted the Class Action
Plaintiffs’ motion for Class Certification and RafttSummary Judgment and denied PGE’s motion foni8ary Judgment. In
March 2005, PGE filed two Petitions with the Ore@upreme Court asking the Court to take jurisdiciad command the trial
Judge to dismiss the complaints, or to show caumsethey should not be dismissed, and seeking tauwvethe Class Certification.

In August 2006, the Oregon Supreme Court issuetirrgron PGE’s Petitions abating these class agtiooeedings until the OPUC
responded with respect to the certain issues #hbben remanded to the OPUC by the Marion Coumtpi€Court in the
proceeding described above.

In October 2006, the Marion County Circuit Cougised an Order of Abatement in response to thegwlithe Oregon Supreme
Court, abating the class actions for one year.

In October 2007, the Class Action Plaintiffs fil@d/iotion with the Marion County Circuit Court tdtlthe abatement. In
February 2009, the Circuit Court judge denied tratith to lift the abatement.
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Puget Sound Energy, Inc. v. All Jurisdictional Se#rs of Energy and/or Capacity at Wholesale Into Elgric Energy and/or
Capacity Markets in the Pacific Northwest, Including Parties to the Western System Power Pool AgreentenFederal Energy
Regulatory Commission and Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals (collectively, Pacific Northwest Refund proading).

In 2001, the FERC called for a hearing to explohetlver there may have been unjust and unreasocizdniges for spot market sales
of electricity in the Pacific Northwest from Deceent25, 2000 through June 20, 2001 (Pacific NorthResund proceeding). Durir
that period, PGE both sold and purchased elegtiitithe Pacific Northwest. Although FERC's origliacision terminated the
proceeding and denied the claims for refunds, @mpeal of this decision to the U.S. Ninth Circuitu@ of Appeals (Ninth Circuit),
the Ninth Circuit remanded the case to the FER@nmng other things, address market manipulatiteaege and account for the
evidence in any future orders regarding the awantkaial of refunds in the proceedings.

In response to the Ninth Circuit remand, the FESSDed several procedural orders that establisheslidantiary hearing, defined
the scope of the hearing, and described the buwflproof that must be met to justify abrogatiortlu# contracts at issue and the
imposition of refunds. The orders held that Bhebile-Sierrapublic interest standard governs challenges tbilageral contracts at
issue in this proceeding, and the strong presumpinmerMobile-Sierrathat the rates charged under each contract arandst
reasonable would have to be specifically overcoitieeieby: i) a showing that a respondent had vemlat contract or tariff and that
the violation had a direct connection to the rdigrged under the applicable contract; or ii) a shgwhat the contract rate at issue
imposed an excessive burden or seriously harmeplubiéc interest. The FERC also expanded the sobgee hearing to allow
parties to pursue refunds for transactions betweeanary 1, 2000 and December 24, 2000 under Se&&fi@of the Federal Power
Act by showing violations of a filed tariff or ragehedule or of a statutory requirement. The FER€tdd the presiding judge, if
necessary, to determine a refund methodology andltwlate refunds, but held that a mankéde remedy was not appropriate, gi
the bilateral contract nature of the Pacific Noristvspot markets. Refund claimants have filedipestfor appeal of these procedi
orders with the Ninth Circuit.

Pursuant to a FERC-ordered settlement proces§dhwany received notice of two claims for refundshie first phase of the
remand proceeding and reached agreements tolsatiielaims for an immaterial amount. The FERC aped both settlements
during 2012.

Additionally, the settlement between PGE and certéler parties in the California refund case ircka No. EL00-95, et seq.,
approved by the FERC in May 2007, resolved allnstabetween PGE and the California parties naméukisettlement as to
transactions in the Pacific Northwest during thitlesment period, January 1, 2000 through June @01 2but did not settle potential
claims from other market participants relatingramsactions in the Pacific Northwest.

The above-referenced settlements resulted in aselef the Company as a named respondent in sh@lfiase of the remand
proceedings, which are limited to initial and direlaims for refunds, but there remains a possjtitiat additional claims related to
this matter could be asserted against the Compaaysubsequent phase of the proceeding if refuredsrdered against some or all
of the current respondents.

During the first phase of the remand hearing, nommleted, two sets of refund proponents, the (itgaattle, Washington (Seattle)
and various California parties on behalf of theif@atia Energy Resource Scheduling division of @aifornia Department of Water
Resources (CERS), presented cases alleging thiplauespondents had engaged in unlawful actiied caused severe financial
harm that justified the imposition of refunds. Aftmnclusion of the hearing, the presiding Admmaitte Law Judge issued an Init
Decision on March 28, 2014 finding: i) that Seatlié not carry itdMobile-Sierraburden with respect to its refund claims againgt
of its respondent sellers; and ii) that the Califarepresentatives of CERS did not carry tMabile-Sierraburden with respect to
one of the two CERS’ respondents, but that CERSphadiuced evidence that the remaining CERS respidel engaged in
unlawful activity in the implementation of multipteansactions and bad faith in the formation ofmasy as 119 contracts. The
Administrative Law Judge scheduled a second phase
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of the hearing to commence after a final FERC deeisen the Initial Decision. The Administrative Laludge determined that in the
second phase the remaining respondent will haxappartunity to produce additional evidence as tg Whtransactions should be
considered legitimate and why refunds should nairblered. The findings in the Initial Decision aubject to further FERC action.
If the FERC requires one or more respondents tcemefikinds, it is possible that such respondentifsatiempt to recover similar
refunds from their suppliers, including the Company

Sierra Club and Montana Environmental Information Center v. PPL Montana LLC, Avista Corporation, PugetSound
Enerqy, Portland General Electric Company, Northwetern Corporation, and PacifiCorp , U.S. District Court for the District
of Montana.

On July 30, 2012, PGE received a Notice of Interte (Notice) for violations of the CAA at ColptSteam Electric Station

(CSES) from counsel on behalf of the Sierra Cluth tue Montana Environmental Information Center (REIThe Notice was also
addressed to the other CSES co-owners, includimghRihtana, LLC - the operator of CSES. PGE has% 2nership interest in
Units 3 and 4 of CSES. The Notice alleges certalations of the CAA, and stated that the SierrallCind MEIC would: i) reques
United States District Court to impose injunctiedief and civil penalties; ii) require a beneficaivironmental project in the areas
affected by the alleged air pollution; and iii) keeimbursement of Sierra Club’s and MEIC’s costhtigiation and attorney’s fees.

The Sierra Club and MEIC asserted that the CSESmawriolated the Title V air quality operating pérguring portions of 2008
and 2009 and that the owners have violated the GARailing to timely submit a complete air qualdperating permit application to
the Montana Department of Environmental Qualitye Bierra Club and MEIC also asserted violationspafcity provisions of the
CAA.

On March 6, 2013, the Sierra Club and MEIC suedBE&S co-owners, including PGE, for these and madit alleged violations of
various environmental related regulations. Thenpiifs are seeking relief that includes civil petied and an injunction preventing
the co-owners from operating CSES except in acomelavith the CAA, the Montana State Implementakitem, and the plant’s
federally enforceable air quality permits. In addit plaintiffs are seeking civil penalties agaitig co-owners including $32,500 per
day for each violation occurring through January20D9, and $37,500 per day for each violation oaog thereafter.

On May 3, 2013, the defendants filed a motion smiés 36 of the 39 claims in the complaint. In Seyder 2013, the plaintiffs filed
a motion for partial summary judgment regardingdppropriate method of calculating emissions ireesaAlso in September 2013,
the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint that wittw Title V and opacity claims, added claims agged with two 2011 projects,
and expanded the scope of certain claims to encesrgggoroximately 40 additional projects.

In July 2014, the court denied defendants’ mot@mdismiss and the plaintiffs’ motion for partialnsmary judgment. On August 27,
2014, the plaintiffs filed a second amended compldihe defendants’ response to the second amemeglaint was filed on
September 26, 2014. The second amended complaitihges to seek injunctive relief, declaratoryetland civil penalties for
alleged violations of the federal Clean Air Act.€Tplaintiffs state in the second amended compthattit was filed, in part, to
comply with the court’s ruling on the defendantstion to dismiss and plaintiffs’ motion for partslmmary judgment. Discovery
in this matter is ongoing with trial now schedufed November 2015.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

PGE’s common stock is traded on the New York Stexthange (NYSE) under the ticker symbol “POR”. A&ebruary 10, 2015,
there were 868 holders of record of PGE’s commoacksand the closing sales price of PGE’s commockstm that date was $37.74
per share. The following table sets forth, for preeiods indicated, the highest and lowest saleepiof PGE’s common stock as
reported on the NYSE.

Dividends
Declared
High Low Per Share
2014
Fourth Quarter $ 4031 $ 3207 % 0.28(
Third Quarter 34.7¢ 31.41 0.28(
Second Quarter 34.6¢ 32.01] 0.28(
First Quarter 32.7¢ 28.9¢ 0.27¢
2013
Fourth Quarter $ 3057 % 27.8: % 0.27¢
Third Quarter 33.2¢ 27.51 0.27¢
Second Quarter 32.91 29.1¢ 0.27¢
First Quarter 30.5: 27.4: 0.27(

While PGE expects to pay comparable quarterly éivits on its common stock in the future, the detitaraf any dividends is at ti
discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. Hmeount of any dividend declaration depends upotofa that the Board of
Directors deems relevant and may include, but atdimited to, PGE’s results of operations and ficial condition, future capital
expenditures and investments, and applicable remgyland contractual restrictions.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following consolidated selected financial dettauld be read in conjunction with Item 7.—*Managen's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiiems” and Item 8.—"Financial Statements and Seimgintary Data.”

Statement of Income Data:
Revenues, net
Gross margin
Income from operation8
Net income®

Net income attributable to Portland General
Electric CompanyV

Earnings per share—basic

Earnings per share—dilutéd

Dividends declared per common share
Statement of Cash Flows Data:

Capital expenditures

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(In millions, except per share amounts)

190 ¢ 181C $ 1808 $ 1,817 $ 1,78¢

62% 58% 60% 58% 54%
29¢ $ 20¢€ $ 30z $ 30¢ $ 267
174 104 14C 147 121
17¢ 10& 141 147 12¢

2.24 1.3¢€ 1.87 1.95 1.6¢€
2.1¢ 1.3¢ 1.87 1.9¢ 1.6¢
1.11¢ 1.09¢ 1.07¢ 1.05¢ 1.03¢
1,007 65€ 30¢< 30C 45(

(1) The year ended December 31, 2013 includesy8idn of costs expensed related to the Compa@yscade Crossing Transmission Project.
For information regarding this matter, segléctric Utility Plant” in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Padigj in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.—“Fai@nStatements and Supplementary Data.”

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets
Total long-term debt

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in millions)

Total Portland General Electric Company

shareholders’ equity
Common equity ratio

$ 704z $ 6,101 $ 567C $ 573 $ 5,49]
2,501 1,91¢ 1,63¢ 1,73¢ 1,80¢
1,911 1,81¢ 1,72¢ 1,66: 1,59

43.2% 48.71% 51.1% 48.€% 46.7%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

Forward-L ooking Statements

The information in this report includes statemehtg are forward-looking within the meaning of #vate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statementdude, but are not limited to, statements tbédte to expectations, beliefs,
plans, assumptions and objectives concerning fus@lts of operations, business prospects, flbads, the outcome of litigation
and regulatory proceedings, future capital expenelt, market conditions, future events or performeand other matters. Words or
phrases such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estendt“expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,” “pjects,” “will likely result,” “will
continue,” “should,” or similar expressions areesimied to identify such forward-looking statements.

” W ” ” ”

Forward-looking statements are not guaranteestofdperformance and involve risks and uncertasrttiat could cause actual
results or outcomes to differ materially from thes@ressed. PGE'’s expectations, beliefs and projecare expressed in good faith
and are believed by PGE to have a reasonableibakigling, but not limited to, management’s exartioraof historical operating
trends and data contained in records and otheradaitable from third parties, but there can bessurance that PGéEéexpectation:
beliefs or projections will be achieved or accorsipdid.

In addition to any assumptions and other factotsraatters referred to specifically in connectiotivguch forward-looking
statements, factors that could cause actual remuttatcomes for PGE to differ materially from tbatiscussed in forward-looking
statements include:

» governmental policies and regulatory auditsestigations and actions, including those of the EEBRd OPUC with respect
to allowed rates of return, financings, electrigitjcing and price structures, acquisition and oésp of facilities and other
assets, construction and operation of plant faslitransmission of electricity, recovery of powests and capital
investments, and current or prospective wholesaderetail competition;

» economic conditions that result in decreasedashehfor electricity, reduced revenue from salesxafess energy during
periods of low wholesale market prices, impairegficial stability of vendors and service providand elevated levels of
uncollectible customer accounts;

» the outcome of legal and regulatory proceedarg$issues including, but not limited to, the nrattéescribed in Note 18,
Contingencies, in the Notes to Consolidated Firddrgfatements in Item 8.— “Financial Statements @mplplementary
Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K;

* unseasonable or extreme weather and other hatwwaomena, which could affect customers’ demangdwer and PGE’s
ability and cost to procure adequate power anddupplies to serve its customers, and could inerdes Company’s costs to
maintain its generating facilities and transmissaod distribution systems;

» operational factors affecting PGE’s power getiegafacilities, including forced outages, hydradamind conditions, and
disruption of fuel supply, which may cause the Campto incur repair costs, as well as increasedepawsts for
replacement power;

» the failure to complete capital projects on stthe and within budget or the abandonment of chpitgects, which could
result in the Company'’s inability to recover prdjeosts;

» volatility in wholesale power and natural gages, which could require PGE to issue additioatiéls of credit or post
additional cash as collateral with counterpartiesspant to existing power and natural gas purchgssements;

» capital market conditions, including accessdpital, interest rate volatility, reductions in damad for investment-grade
commercial paper, as well as changes in PGE’staratiligs, which could have an impact on the Comjgacost of capital
and its ability to access the capital markets fapsut requirements for working capital, constructaf capital projects, and
the repayments of maturing debt;
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» future laws, regulations, and proceedings tbatccincrease the Company’s costs or affect theatjpms of the Company’s
thermal generating plants by imposing requiremémtadditional emissions controls or significantissions fees or taxes,
particularly with respect to coal-fired generatfagilities, in order to mitigate carbon dioxide, mgry and other gas
emissions;

» changes in wholesale prices for fuels, includiatural gas, coal and oil, and the impact of sti@nges on the Company’s
power costs;

» changes in the availability and price of wholesadever
» changes in residential, commercial, and indalsttistomer growth, and in demographic patternBGiE's service territon
» the effectiveness of PGEtisk management policies and proced

» declines in the fair value of securities heldtfe defined benefit pension plans and other liigplehs, which could result in
increased funding requirements for such plans;

» changes in, and compliance with, environmentalemthngered species laws and poli

» the effects of climate change, including changdahle environment that may affect energy costsomsumption, increase the
Company’s costs, or adversely affect its operations

* new federal, state, and local laws that could tzeerse effects on operating res

» cyber security attacks, data security breaabregther malicious acts that cause damage to tinep@ny’s generation,
transmission, and distribution facilities or infation technology systems, or result in the reledsmnfidential customer
and proprietary information;

» employee workforce factors, including a sigrafit number of employees approaching retiremengnpial strikes, work
stoppages, and transitions in senior management;

» political, economic, and financial market condit

» natural disasters and other risks, such as eattbgtlaod, drought, lightning, wind, and fi

» financial or regulatory accounting principles ofipies imposed by governing bodies; .

» acts of war or terrorisr
Any forward-looking statement speaks only as ofdate on which such statement is made, and, easagiquired by law, PGE
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-loglstatement to reflect events or circumstancies #fe date on which such
statement is made or to reflect the occurrencenahticipated events. New factors emerge from tortérie and it is not possible for

management to predict all such factors, nor cassess the impact of any such factor on the bissorebe extent to which any
factor, or combination of factors, may cause reswitdiffer materially from those contained in dagward-looking statement.

Overview
Capital Requirements and Financing—During 2014 , the following three new generatieagurces were under construction:

Port Westward Unit 2-In May 2013, PGE commenced construction of PW2Z2@&MW natural gas-fired flexible capacity
resource located adjacent to PW1 and Beaver natsk@hie, Oregon. In December 2014, this capae#tgurce was placed
in service. As of December 31, 2014 , $295 milimmcluded in Electric utility plant related to PA\Mncluding $20 million
of AFDC. The Company estimates that final completd the plant will require approximately $20 noti of capital
expenditures in 2015.

Tucannon River Wind Farm-In September 2013, PGE commenced constructiomocainon River in southeastern
Washington consisting of 116 turbines for a totheplate capacity of 267
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MW. In December 2014, this renewable resource wased in service. As of December 31, 2014 , $50amiis included
in Electric utility plant related to Tucannon Riyércluding $24 million of AFDC and net of a statdes tax refund of $23
million from the state of Washington. The Compasiireates that final completion of the wind farmlw#quire
approximately $29 million of capital expendituras2i015.

Carty Generating Station-In January 2014, the Company commenced construofi€arty, a 440 MW natural gas-fired
baseload resource in Eastern Oregon, located adjecBoardman. The total cost of Carty is estimate$450 million,
excluding AFDC, and the facility is expected todmine in the second quarter of 2016. As of Decamdtie 2014 , $260
million, including $16 million of AFDC, is includeth CWIP for Carty.

PGE’s capital requirements amounted to $948 mill@r2014 , with $606 million related to the constion of these new generation
resources. The remainder of the 2014 capital rements related to ongoing capital expenditurethi®upgrade, replacement, and
expansion of transmission, distribution and ger@nahfrastructure, as well as technology enhancgsand expenditures related to
hydro licensing. During 2014 , the combination a$le from operations in the amount of $518 milli@md proceeds from unsecured
term loans and issuances of FMBs in the amounb85$nillion funded the Company’s capital requiretsen

Capital requirements in 2015 are expected to apmate $629 million , which includes an estimatedZnillion related to the
construction of Carty. PGE expects to fund 201Brested capital requirements and contractual magsrdf long-term debt of $375
million with a combination of cash from operationdyich is expected to range from $460 million t@@%nillion , and issuances of
shares pursuant to an equity forward sale agreefB&®A) and long-term debt securities. For infoiioratoncerning the EFSA, see
Note 12, Equit-based Plans, in the Notes to Consolidated Fine8tadéements in Iltem 8.—Financial Statements and Supplemen
Data.” and for additional related information, $lee Liquidity and the Debt and Equity Financingst®ms of this Item 7.

General Rate Cases— On February 12, 2015, PGE filed with the OPU@&&GRC, which is based on a 2016 test year and
includes costs related to Carty. The Company’sesgjuwhen combined with other supplemental tahiéirges, would result in an
increase in annual revenues of $66 million. Sua@nge would result in an approximate 3.7% overalldase relative to currently
approved prices.

The net increase in annual revenue requiremenigtsrts the following (in millions):

Carty $ 83
Base business cost 39
Supplemental tariff updates* (56)

Annual revenue requirement, net $ 66

* Includes $26 million related to capital proje&fdrrals expected to be fully recovered in 2015, §illlion of accelerated customer credits related
to the settlement of a legal matter concerningscassociated with the operation of the ISFSI, ariillion increase in customer credits related
to the Residential Exchange Program, and othdf tgnilates.

PGE is proposing a capital structure of 50% delt%09%6 equity, a return on equity of 9.9%, a costayital of 7.67%, and a rate
base of approximately $4.5 billion.

Regulatory review of the 2016 GRC will continueatighout 2015, with a final order expected to baddgshy the OPUC by mid-
December 2015. New customer prices are expecteddome effective in 2016, with an initial price degse January 1 and a price
increase effective as Carty becomes operationathwb expected in the second quarter of 2016.

In December 2014, the OPUC issued an order on PBEHR'S GRC, which was based on a 2015 test yearn\ethmbined with
customer credits, the OPUC order authorized a $lldmincrease in annual revenues,
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representing an approximate 1% overall increaseistomer prices, which became effective Janua?p15. The order reflects a
capital structure of 50% debt and 50% equity, arrebn equity of 9.68%, a cost of capital of 7.56#d a rate base of approximal
$3.8 billion.

Pursuant to the 2015 GRC order, a forecast of @agkpenditures for PW2 of $323 million and Tucami®ver of $525 million was
used to set customers prices. However, to the etttahtotal actual capital expenditures are Ibas that used to set customer prices,
the 2015 revenue requirement impact of any showtilibe deferred for future refund to customdrsthe event that total actual
capital expenditures exceed those used to setroastarices, there is no deferral of such incremeragital costs. For further
information regarding actual costs recorded asaxfdnber 31, 2014, see “Capital Requirements arahEing” in this Overview,
above.

In December 2013, the OPUC issued an order on PBEH'4 GRC, which was based on a 2014 test yearOFéC authorized a
$61 million increase in annual revenues, represgran approximate 4% overall increase in custorriee®, which became effective
January 1, 2014. The order reflects a capital stramf 50% debt and 50% equity, a return on eqeiiy.75%, a cost of capital of
7.65%, and a rate base of approximately $3.1 hillio

The general rate case filings, as well as copig¢sebrders, direct testimony, exhibits, and stfiahs are available on the OPUC
website at www.oregon.gov/puc

Operating Activities —PGE is a vertically integrated electric utilitygaged in the generation, transmission, distribyitonl retail
sale of electricity in the state of Oregon, as waelthe wholesale purchase and sale of electdaitiynatural gas in the United States
and Canada. The Company generates revenues anflovesprimarily from the retail sale and distribrt of electricity to custome
in its service territory.

The Company’s revenues and income from operatianglactuate during the year due to, among othgalkes, the impacts of
seasonal weather conditions on the demand forrgliégtand changes in retail prices for electriciyd in customer usage patterns. In
addition, the availability and price of power anelfcan affect income from operations. PGE is aevipeaking utility that typically
experiences its highest retail energy demand dahiegvinter heating season, with a slightly lowealpin the summer that generally
results from air conditioning demand.

Customers and Demanrédln 2014 , retail energy deliveries decreased (fi@¥h 2013 , which was driven by the decrease in
residential energy deliveries and partially offggtincreases in commercial and industrial enerdiyeiges. The decline in demand
from residential customers is largely attributaiolevarmer weather conditions during the 2014 hgatgason relative to 2013. Total
heating degree-days in 20@ah indication of the extent to which customersliady to use, or have used, electricity for hegjiwas
11% lower than the 15-year average, and 13% lolnaer total heating degree days in 2013 .

The increases in commercial and industrial eneddiyeries were driven by increased demand frormhtbh tech industry, office
buildings, and the government and education seatdrish was partially offset by decreased demaachfa paper production
customer. Energy efficiency and conservation effoit retail customers influence demand, althougtittancial effects of such
efforts are intended to be mitigated by the dedagphechanism.
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For 2014 and 2013, the average number of retatbaters and deliveries, by customer class, wefellas/s:

2014 2013 Increase/
Average Average (Decrease)
Number of Energy Number of Energy in Energy
Customers Deliveries * Customers Deliveries * Deliveries
Residential 735,50: 7,462 728,48 7,70z (3.)%
Commercial 105,23: 7,49 104,38! 7,441 0.7
Industrial 26C 4,31( 263 4,27¢ 0.8
Total 840,99: 19,26¢ 833,12 19,41¢ (0.8)%

* In thousands of MW/

Power Operation—PGE utilizes a combination of its own generatieagaurces and wholesale market transactions totheet
energy needs of its retail customers. Based on rauedactors, including plant availability, custandemand, river flows, wind
conditions, and current wholesale prices, the Caomgantinuously makes economic dispatch decisinranieffort to obtain
reasonably-priced power for its retail customers.afesult, the amount of power generated and psechin the wholesale market to
meet the Company’s retail load requirement can framy period to period.

Plant availability is impacted by planned maintezeand forced, or unplanned, outages, during wihiehrespective plant is
unavailable to provide power. PGE’s thermal gemeggblants require varying levels of annual maiatese, which is generally
performed during the second quarter of the yeaailAlility of the plants PGE operates approxim&2é , 89% , and 94% for the
years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013, and 2@Epectively, with the availability of Colstrip, v PGE does not operate,
approximating 83% , 66% , and 93% , respectively.

Beginning in July 2013, the Company experiencedghmplanned plant outages with Boardman off-limeJtily 2013, Coyote
Springs off-line for September through November2@&hd Colstrip Unit 4 off-line for July 2013 thigiu January 2014. As a result
of these unplanned outages, the Company incurgedritental replacement power costs of approxim&2Igillion in 2014 and $17
million in 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , the Coypagenerating plants provided approximately 58%soretail load
requirement, compared to 54% in 2013 and 50% ir220he lower relative volume of power generatetheet the Compang’retai
load requirement during 2012 was primarily dueh®economic displacement of thermal generatiomieygy received from hydro
resources and lower-cost purchased power.

Energy received from PGE-owned hydroelectric plamis under contracts from mid-Columbia hydroelegirbjects increased 1%
2014 compared to 2013, primarily due to more fakte hydro conditions in 2014 . These resourcegiged approximately 18% of
the Company’s retail load requirement for 2014mpared with 17% for 2013 and 19% for 2012 . Eneggeived from these
sources exceeded projections (or “normal”) incluthetthe Company’s AUT by approximately 2% in 2014% in 2013 , and 11% in
2012 . Such projections, which are finalized wita OPUC in November each year, establish the poestrcomponent of retail
prices for the following calendar year. “Normalpresents the level of energy forecasted to beveddrom hydroelectric resources
for the year and is based on average regional hgahiditions. Any excess in hydro generation froat th
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projected in the AUT generally displaces power fitmigher cost sources, while any shortfall is gelheraplaced with power from
higher cost sources. Based on recent forecasegaiial hydro conditions, energy from hydro resears expected to be below
normal for 2015 .

Energy expected to be received from wind generatisgurces is projected annually in the AUT andubh 2013, was based on
wind studies completed in connection with the p&ing process of the wind farm. For 2014 and beydimel projection included in
the AUT is based on a five-year historical rollengerage of the wind farm. To the extent historicdrmation is not available for a
given year, the projections are based on wind studiny excess in wind generation from that prei@¢ah the AUT generally
displaces power from higher-cost sources, whilesimytfall is generally replaced with power frongiér-cost sources. Energy
received from wind generating resources fell shbthat projected in PGE’s AUT by 9% in 2014 , 1592013 and 20% in 2012 .

Pursuant to the Company’s PCAM, customer pricesheaadjusted to reflect a portion of the differebeéwveen each year's
forecasted NVPC included in customer prices (baséVPC) and actual NVPC for the year, to the edxdeh difference is outside
of a pre-determined “deadband,” which ranges frdf ®illion below to $30 million above baseline NVPI® the extent actual
NVPC is above or below the deadband, the PCAM ples/for 90% of the variance to be collected fromefuinded to customer
respectively, subject to a regulated earnings Tés.following is a summary of the impacts of ti@AM for 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

e For 2014 , actual NVPC was below baseline NVR@Dmillion , which is within the established dbadd range.
Accordingly, no estimated refund to customers vea®irded as of December 31, 2014 . A final detertiinaegarding the
2014 PCAM results will be made by the OPUC throagiublic filing and review in 2015 .

e For 2013, actual NVPC was above baseline NVP&14 million , which is within the established deand range.
Accordingly, no estimated collection from customees recorded as of December 31, 2013. A finalrdetation regarding
the 2013 PCAM results was made by the OPUC thraugtiblic filing and review in 2014 , which confircheo collection
from customers pursuant to the PCAM for 2013 .

* For 2012, actual NVPC was below baseline NVR&b7 million , and exceeded the lower deadbanestiold of $15
million . However, based on results of the regulaarnings test, no estimated refund to customassrecorded as of
December 31, 2012. A final determination regardimg2012 PCAM results was made by the OPUC threughblic filing
and review in 2013, which confirmed no refund igtomers pursuant to the PCAM for 2012 .

For further information concerning the PCAM, s&mver Costsinder “State of Oregon Regulatidnn the Regulation section of
Item 1.—“Business.”

Legal, Regulatory and Environmental Matters—PGE is a party to certain proceedings, the ulénmaitcome of which could have
a material impact on the results of operationsaash flows in future reporting periods. Such proasgs include, but are not limited
to, matters related to:

» Claims for refunds related to wholesale eneagjgssduring 20002001 in the Pacific Northwest Refund proceedingl

* Aninvestigation of environmental matters at Paordiddarbor

For additional information regarding the above atiter matters, see Note 18, Contingencies, in thited\to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Iltem 8.—“Financial Statements ancpeupentary Data.”

On June 2, 2014, the EPA released a proposedwhileh it calls the “Clean Power Plan,” intendeddsult in a reduction of carbon

emissions from existing power plants across alestto approximately 30% below 2005 levels by 2@30.additional information
regarding this proposed rule, see “Environmentattdig’ in Item 1.—Business.
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On December 19, 2014, the EPA signed a final ha¢ tegulates CCR as non-hazardous waste. Foiauddiinformation regarding
this new rule, see “Environmental Matters” in Itémm—Business.

The following discussion highlights certain regalgtitems, which have impacted the Company'’s reeentesults of operations, or
cash flows for 2014, or have affected customereggias authorized by the OPUC. In some cases,aimp&hy deferred the related
expenses or benefits as regulatory assets oriti@bjlrespectively, for later amortization andlirsion in customer prices, pending
OPUC review and authorization.

Power Costs—Pursuant to the AUT process, PGE files annuallgstimate of power costs for the following yeartHa event a
general rate case is filed in any given year, fasezd power costs would be included in such filing.

The 2014 AUT was approved by the OPUC and becafaeteke January 1, 2014, with an expected redudtiannual revenues of
approximately $17 million based on lower forecagiedier costs. This amount was included in the dv6d million revenue
increase authorized by the OPUC in the Companylg! ZBRC.

The 2015 AUT was approved by the OPUC and becafaetioke January 1, 2015, with an expected redudtiannual revenues of
approximately $60 million based on lower forecagiedier costs. This amount was included in the dvgt® million revenue
increase authorized by the OPUC in the Companyl$ZBRC.

In June 2014, the Company submitted the 2013 seelithe PCAM to the OPUC for final regulatory mwiand determination of a
customer refund or collection. Based on a regulatgdings test, no refund or collection resulted, ia October 2014, the OPUC
issued an order to such effect. For further infdioma see “‘Power Operations in the Operating Activities section of this Ovew,
above.

Renewable Resource Costdursuant to a renewable adjustment clause (RAChareésm, PGE can recover in customer prices
prudently incurred costs of renewable resourcesatigaexpected to be placed in service in the ntigrear. The Company may
submit a filing to the OPUC by April 1st each yeaith prices expected to become effective Januatyfithe following year. As
part of the RAC, the OPUC has authorized the daffefreligible costs not yet included in customecgs until the January 1st
effective date.

PGE submitted a RAC filing to the OPUC in 2014 eiptiting that the Tucannon River wind farm wouldgpteced into service
before the end of the year. The Company utilizedRAC to record the revenue requirement, which esdisnated to be
approximately $1 million, for the period from Dedeen 15, 2014 when the facility was placed into merwuntil December 31, 201
Because Tucannon River was included in the 2015 ,GREE proposed to provide the final actual deferesnue requirement to
the OPUC in the first quarter of 2015, with theftaollection under the RAC to begin no earlieathJuly 1, 2015.

Decoupling Mechanism-The decoupling mechanism, which the OPUC has aatftbthrough 2016, is intended to provide for
recovery of margin lost as a result of a reductialectricity sales attributable to energy effigig and conservation efforts by
residential and certain commercial customers. Taehanism provides for collection from (or refunyicastomers if weather
adjusted use per customer is less (or more) ttetrptbjected in the Company’s most recent genatalgase.

As part of the Company’s 2014 GRC, the OPUC apmgt@ehange in the refund or collection period tgibhdanuary 1. The
Company recorded an estimated refund of $5 millioring the year ended December 31, 2014, whicHteskfrom variances
between actual weather adjusted use per custordeghanprojected in the 2014 GRC. Any refund isested to occur over a one-
year period, which will begin January 1, 2016.

Capital deferral—In the 2011 General Rate Case (2011 GRC), the O&itlirized the Company to defer the costs assaciaith
four capital projects that were not completed attiime the 2011 GRC was approved. In 2012, PGEmefsuch costs and recorc
a regulatory asset of $16 million for potentialuite recovery in customer prices with an offsettingdit to Depreciation and
amortization expense. The OPUC authorized recovktlye deferred costs over a one-year period béginfanuary 1, 2014. For
2013, the Company has recorded a
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dditional deferred costs and interest associatéiu thése projects totaling $19 million, with recovef such amounts included in
customer prices over a one year period beginningala 1, 2015. Beginning January 1, 2014, the aadfsese projects were
reflected in the Company’s rate base.

Boardman Operating Life Adjustme—In PGE’s 2011 GRC, the OPUC approved a tariff gratzided a mechanism for future
consideration of customer price changes relatédetsecovery of the Company’s remaining investniem®oardman over a
shortened operating life. Pursuant to the tatiié, ©PUC approved recovery of increased depreciatipense reflecting a change in
the retirement date of Boardman from 2040 to 20&Destimated decommissioning costs, with new preéestive July 1, 2011. As
part of the 2014 GRC, the incremental depreciagiqrense that resulted from the shortened Boardifieewas rolled into base
customer prices, while recovery of the decommiseposts continue under this separate tariff. {Binéf also provides for annual
updates to decommissioning revenue requirementsreitised prices to take effect each January 1.

During the second quarter of 2014, the OPUC appmtttve Company’s request for recovery of additiateommissioning costs that
resulted from the acquisition of an additional 1ib#&rest in Boardman on December 31, 2013, which expected to result in
approximately $3 million of incremental revenue2di 4.

On December 31, 2014, PGE acquired an additiortdl d@nership share in Boardman previously held by afiithe former co-
owners. On September 18, 2014, the Company sulshtittthe OPUC a request for approval of the anapdate of the
decommissioning revenue requirements for 2015, kvimcluded the additional decommissioning coststeel to this incremental
10% ownership. PGE received authorization fromRE&C in November 2014 to consummate the acquisiibe OPUC authorize
the acquisition of the 10% interest in the 2015 GR@er, with recovery of the incremental shareefammissioning costs
authorized in the tariff effective January 1, 2015.
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Results of Operations

The following tables provide financial and operatibinformation to be considered in conjunctionhwitanagemerd’discussion an
analysis of results of operations.

The consolidated statements of income for the yer@sented (dollars in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
As % As % As %
Amount of Rev Amount of Rev Amount of Rev
Revenues, net $ 1,90C 100% $ 1,81( 10% $ 1,80¢ 10C%
Purchased power and fuel 713 38 757 42 72€ 40
Gross margin 1,187 62 1,05: 58 1,07¢ 60
Other operating expenses:
Generation, transmission and distribution 257 13 22F 12 211 12
Cascade Crossing transmission project — — 52 3 — —
Administrative and other 227 12 21¢ 12 21€ 12
Depreciation and amortization 301 16 24¢ 14 24¢ 14
Taxes other than income taxes 10¢ 6 10z 6 10z 5
Total other operating expenses 894 47 847 47 777 43
Income from operations 292 15 20€ 11 30z 17
Interest expense, net * 96 5 101 5 10¢ 6
Other income:
Allowance for equity funds used during
construction 37 2 13 1 6 —
Miscellaneous income, net 1 — 7 — 4 —
Other income, net 38 2 20 1 1C —
Income before income taxes 23t 12 12t 7 204 11
Income tax expense 61 3 21 1 64 3
Net income 174 9 104 6 14C 8
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling iatts Q) — Q) — Q) —
Net income attributable to Portland General
Electric Company $ 17t 9% $ 10& 6% $ 141 8%

* Includes an allowance for borrowed funds usedrduconstruction of $22 million in 2014 , $7 milfion 2013 , and $4 million in 2012 .
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Revenues, energy deliveries (based in MWh), antageenumber of retail customers consist of thewalhg for the years presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Revenues® (dollars in millions):
Retail:
Residential $ 89:< 47% $ 861 48% $ 86C 48%
Commercial 657 34 61¢ 34 632 34
Industrial 221 12 217 12 22¢€ 13
Subtotal 1,771 93 1,697 94 1,71¢ 95
Other accrued (deferred) revenues, net (8 — 5) — 4 —
Total retail revenues 1,767 93 1,69z 94 1,72z 95
Wholesale revenues 95 5 80 4 49 3
Other operating revenues 42 2 38 2 33 2
Total revenues $ 1,90C 10(% $ 1,81C 10(% $ 1,80¢% 10C%
Energy deliveries® (MWh in thousands):
Retail:
Residential 7,462 34% 7,702 35% 7,50k 35%
Commercial 7,49¢ 34 7,441 34 7,402 35
Industrial 4,31( 20 4,27¢ 20 4,28: 20
Total retail energy deliveries 19,26¢ 88 19,41¢ 89 19,19( 90
Wholesale energy deliveries 2,52( 12 2,35: 11 2,24¢ 10
Total energy deliveries 21,78¢ 10C% 21,77 10C% 21,43¢ 10C%
Average number of retail customers:
Residential 735,50: 87%  728,48: 87% 723,441 87%
Commercial 105,23: 13 104,38! 13 103,76t 13
Industrial 26C — 262 — 261 —
Total 840,99: 10C%  833,12¢ 10C% 827,46 10C%

(1) Includes both revenues from customers wholmase their energy supplies from the Company arehieas from the delivery of energy to
those commercial and industrial customers thathase their energy from ESSs.

(2) Includes both energy sold to retail custonaerd energy deliveries to those commercial and tnidlisustomers that purchase their energy
from ESSs.
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PGE's sources of energy, including total systend laad retail load requirement, for the years prieskare as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Sources of energy (MWh in thousands):
Generation:
Thermal:
Coal 4,46¢ 21% 4,07( 1% 3,61( 17%
Natural gas 3,42¢ 16 3,37t 1€ 2,88 14
Total thermal 7,89¢ 37 7,44°¢ 3t 6,49: 31
Hydro 1,75( 8 1,64¢ 8 1,94: 9
Wind 1,172 6 1,20( 5 1,12¢ 5
Total generation 10,81 51 10,29: 48 9,56( 45
Purchased power:
Term 5,92¢ 28 6,47 31 7,38 35
Hydro 1,56¢ 7 1,62¢ 8 1,72¢ 8
Wind 317 2 311 1 31¢ 1
Spot 2,62¢ 12 2,54 12 2,28t 11
Total purchased power 10,43 49 10,95¢ 52 11,71« 55
Total system load 21,25: 100%  21,25( 10(% 21,27« 10C%
Less: wholesale sales (2,520 (2,359 (2,249
Retail load requirement 18,73 18,89 19,02¢

Net income attributable to Portland General Electrc Companyfor the year ended December 31, 2014 was $175millor$2.18
per diluted share, compared to $105 million , aB%Iper diluted share, for the year ended Dece®be2013 . The $70 million , or
67% , increase in net income was primarily drivgrhlgher average retail prices resulting from theuhry 1, 2014 price increase
authorized by the OPUC in the Company’s 2014 GR®el net variable power costs, an increase in AF&QIting from a higher
average CWIP balance, and the charge to experg&2ahillion of capitalized costs related to Casc@dassing Transmission
Project in the second quarter of 2013 . A 0.8% ek in retail energy deliveries driven by a dedimresidential energy deliveries,
higher operating and maintenance expenses, combitie@ n increase in the Company’s effective tbe to 26.0% for 2014 from
16.8% for 2013 partially offset the increases tbineome.

Net income attributable to Portland General Eledc@dmpany for the year endDecember 31, 2013 was $105 million , or $1.35 per
diluted share, compared to $141 million , or $1p87 diluted share, for the year ended Decembe2(®I12 . The $36 million , or

26% , decrease in net income was primarily drivethie charge to expense in 2013 of $52 millionrefpusly capitalized costs
related to Cascade Crossing, $17 million of incretalereplacement power costs related to three anplé plant outages, and an
industrial customer refund of $9 million relatedctamulative over-billings over a period of severadrs. These three items are the
primary drivers for the reduction in the Comparipsome tax expense for 2013, which had a favoraiect to net income when
compared to 2012. In addition, higher repair casthie Company’s generating plants, higher opagatimd maintenance costs related
to PGE’s transmission and distribution system, aidétease in average variable power cost per M\t régher pension costs all
contributed to the decrease in net income. A 3%ease in retail energy deliveries to residentiatamers primarily resulting from
more extreme weather in 2013, an increase in tbevahce for debt and equity funds used for conssacas well as lower interest
expense partially offset the decreases to net iecom
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2014 Compared to 2013
Revenuesncreased $90 million , or 5% , in 2014 compareth\®013 as a result of the items discussed below.

Total retail revenuescreased $71 million , or 4% , in 2014 compareth\2013 , primarily due to the net effect of thédwing:

» A $60 million increase related to higher averegjail prices resulting from the January 1, 20didepincrease authorized by
the OPUC in the Company’s 2014 GRC;

» A $20 million increase related to an increasthinaverage retail price for the collection ofedefd costs related to four
capital projects beginning January 1, 2014 (offs&epreciation and amortization expense);

* A $9 million increase as a result of an indastcustomer refund recorded in the second quaft2013 (reflected in Other
retail revenues, net in the preceding table) rdledecumulative over-billings that occurred overesiod of several years as a
result of a meter configuration error; and

» A $5 million increase related to various itemsiiniing other supplemental tariff changes; partiafifset by

* A $13 million decrease related to an 0.8% deciimretail energy deliveries, consisting of a dese of 3.1% in residential,
partially offset by increases of 0.7% and 0.8%dmmercial and industrial, respectively; and

e A $10 million decrease related to the decoupiimachanism, with an overall estimated refund ofrfiion recorded in 2014
compared with an overall estimated collection ohdilion recorded in 2013.

Total heating degree-days in 2014 were lower tharilb-year average (as provided by the Nationalthée&ervice, as measured at
Portland International Airport), and total heatoiegree days in 2013 . While 2014 total cooling degtays exceeded the 15-year
average and 2013 total cooling degree-days. Thawirlg table presents the number of heating andircpdegree-days for 201ahd
2013, along with the 15-year averages:

Heating Degree-Days Cooling Degree-Days
Increase/ Increase/
2014 2013 (decrease) 2014 2013 (decrease)
1st quarter 1,891 1,90z ()% — — — %
2nd quarter 53C 59: (11 57 82 (30)
3rd quarter 18 90 (80) 57¢ 457 27
4th quarter 1,35¢ 1,801 (25) 17 — —
3,79¢ 4,38¢ (13 652 53¢ 21
15-year annual average 4,264 4,23¢ 1 452 454 —
Increase (decrease) from the
15-year annual average (11)% 3% 44% 1%

On a weather adjusted basis, retail energy detigen 2014 were 0.3% below 2013 , with energy eeids to residential customers
decreasing by 1.9%, and energy deliveries to cormialeand industrial customers each increasing OB&E projects that retail
energy deliveries for 2015 will be approximatel@%. higher than 2014 weather adjusted levels, aftewing for energy efficiency
and conservation efforts.

Wholesale revenuessult from sales of electricity to utilities andvger marketers that are made in the Company’steftorsecure
reasonably priced power for its retail customeranage risk, and administer its current long-ternola$ale contracts. Such sales can
vary significantly from year to year as a resuleobnomic conditions, power and fuel prices, hyatrd wind availability, and
customer demand.

In 2014 , the $15 million , or 19% , increase inol@sale revenues from 2013 consisted of $9 mill@ated to a 11% increase in
average wholesale price and $6 million related T&wincrease in wholesale sales volume.
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Other operating revenueascreased $4 million , or 11% , in 2014 from 2018imarily due to higher sales of excess transmissi
capacity and services, as well as an increaselégomtact rentals. The increase was partiallyedffy a $6 million decrease in gains
on the sale of excess natural gas not needed évatpns.

Purchased power and fuekxpense includes the cost of power purchased ahdi$ed to generate electricity to meet PGE’slretai
load requirements, as well as the cost of setliectréec and natural gas financial contracts. In20Purchased power and fuel
expense decreased $44 million , or 6% , from 204Bich was driven by a 6%ecline in the average variable power cost per Mg
$33.54 in 2014 from $35.61 in 2013 . The decreaagdviven by a decline in the Company’s cost ofirsdigas to fuel natural gas-
fired plants in 2014 compared with 2013, combinéith Wwigher-cost replacement power in 2013 relatethérmal plant outages.

Energy received from PGE-owned hydroelectric prgjend from mid-Columbia projects combined for 2@d&6 comparable with
2013, and represented 18% of the Company’s et requirement for 2014 and 17% for 2013 . Thyalroelectric energy
received exceeded that projected in PGE’s AUT lpyradmately 2% for 2014 and 1% for 2013 . Basedement forecasts of
regional hydro conditions in 2015 , energy from foytesources is expected to be below normal levels.

The following table presents the forecast of theilAp-September 2015 runoff (issued February 10,5 compared to the actual
runoffs for 2014 and 2013 (as a percentage of nipemaneasured over the 30-year period from 19ugh 2000):

Runoff as a Percent of Normal

2015 2014 2013
Location Forecast Actual Actual
Columbia River at The Dalles, Oregon 92% 10&% 10C%
Mid-Columbia River at Grand Coulee, Washington 96 11C 10€
Clackamas River at Estacada, Oregon 74 97 10z
Deschutes River at Moody, Oregon 93 98 98

*  Volumetric water supply forecasts for the Pacifiortiiwest region are prepared by the Northwest Rtegecast Center in conjunction
the Natural Resources Conservation Service and otluperating agencies.

Energy received from PGE-owned wind generatinguesss (Biglow Canyon and Tucannon River) in 201drel@sed 2% from
2013, and represented 6% of the Company’s reiadl fequirement in each of those years. Energyvweatérom wind generating
resources fell short of projections included in @@mpany’s AUT by approximately 9% in 2014 compansith 15% in 2013 .

Actual NVPC , which consists of Purchased power and fuel ex@ansof Wholesale revenues, decreased $59 mitio2014
compared with 2013 . The decrease was largelyalae®bo decline in the average variable power ceisMWh, combined with an
11% increase in the average price per MWh of wiaddegower sales and a 7% increase in the voluménolfesale power sales. For
2014 , actual NVPC was $7 million below baseline®8/ compared with $11 million above for 2013 .

Generation, transmission and distributionexpense increased $32 million , or 14% , in 20Imared with 2013 . Storm related
and service restoration costs were collectively $dldon higher primarily related to the Compangervice territory experiencing
three major wind storms during the fourth quarfe2@l4 ($5 million of which was offset by increasedenues utilizing the storm
recovery mechanism); operating costs increasedifiédmas a result of the Company’s ownership iagrin Boardman increasing to
80% from 65% on December 31, 2013; and maintenande@verhaul expenses at PGE’s generation fasilitiere $6 million greater
than in 2013. In addition, other distribution expes were up $7 million, including $4 million of stitation related expense; other
generation expenses increased $3 million; and athesmission expenses increased $1 million. Mgrbésetting these increases
was a $3 million net decrease in 2014 due to exptaken in 2013 related to the Company’s benchrbiarkor renewable resources
pursuant to the 2009 IRP.

Cascade Crossing transmission projeaeflects $52 million of costs expensed in the sdaqunarter of 2013, which were previously
recorded as construction work-in-progress (CWIBy.d&elditional information, seeElectric Utility Plant” in Note 2, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes tonSolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.—"FinahSitatements and
Supplementary Data.”

Administrative and other expense increased $8 million , or 4% , in 2014 cameg with 2013 . The increase was due in largetpart
$5 million more incentive compensation expensendsxbin 2014 than in 2013 due to the higher nainmein 2014. Additionally,



customer service expenses, reflecting higher infition technology costs, were $4 million higher 012, while medical premiums,
rent and other items combined to increase expenseilfon. Partially offsetting these increases a&var$3 million reduction in
injuries and damages expense resulting from inseragcoveries related to prior year claims and enfi®n reduction in pension
expense due to higher discount rates.

Depreciation and amortizationexpense in 2014 increased $53 million , or 21%mpmared with 2013 . In 2013, PGE deferred, for
future recovery, $17 million of costs related tarfeaapital projects as authorized in the Compa@@k1l GRC and in 2014 recorded
$16 million of amortization expense related to dotual recovery of these costs (offset in Retaiéneies). The addition of capital
assets also contributed to an increase of $16amiiti Depreciation and amortization expense year gear.

Taxes other than income taxeexpense increased $6 million , or 6% , in 2014 canexb with 2013, primarily due to higher property
taxes, resulting from increases in appraised ptppaltues, along with an increase in payroll taxes.

Interest expenseadecreased $5 million , or 5% , in 2014 compareth 213 as a $16 million reduction resulted fromhigher
allowance for borrowed funds used during constamctiue to the higher average CWIP balance, paroéitet by an increase in
interest expense from the higher average balandelafoutstanding in 2014, resulting from the cartiion of PW2, Carty, and
Tucannon River.

Other income, netwas $38 million in 2014 compared with $20 million2013 . The increase was primarily due to a $2Homi
increase in the allowance for equity funds usedhduronstruction from the higher average CWIP bedapartially offset by a
decrease in earnings from the Non-qualified bemddih trust assets.

Income tax expenséncreased $40 million , or 190% , in 2014 compaced013 , primarily due to the increase in preitecome in
2014 compared to 2013, which was driven in parthigycharges to expense in 2013 related to Cascadsi@y and an industrial
customer refund. The effective tax rate increase2bt0% for 2014 from 16.8% for 2013 due primatidythe increase in pre-tax
income and the smaller relative percentage thesgesented by federal and state tax credits gligrtiffset by the effect of
increased AFDC equity.

2013 Compared to 2012
Revenuesncreased $5 million in 2013 compared with 2012 assult of the items discussed below.

Total retail revenuegecreased $31 million , or 2% , in 2013 compareat 2012 , primarily due to the net effect of thédwing:

» A $38 million decrease resulting from lower age prices due primarily to lower expected powstgas established in the
Company’s 2013 AUT and a larger portion of energivéries going to customers who purchase theirggnteom ESSs;

* A $9 million decrease related to an industrigtomer refund for cumulative over-billings thatooed over a period of
several years as a result of a meter configuraicor. Management believes the customer billingrde not material to any
past reporting period. The Company corrected tligenin the second quarter of 2013 through arobperiod adjustment;
and

* A $4 million decrease related to the CompanyC#\PI, as the estimated refund to customers relat¢ddg 2011 PCAM was
reduced in 2012, with no estimated refund to olectibn from customers recorded in 2013; partiaffiget by

* A $20 million increase related to higher volunoé€nergy deliveries driven by more extreme weaith@013 compared to
2012. Residential energy deliveries were up 2.6Z0ih3, while commercial and industrial deliveriesnbined were
comparable to 2012.

Both heating and cooling degree-days in 2013 exabéte 15-year averages (as provided by the Natieather Service, as
measured at Portland International Airport), winl€012 , both heating and cooling degree-day<fdibw the 15¢/ear averages. T
following table presents the number of heating @maling degree-days for 2013 and 2012 , along thighl5-year averages:

Heating Degree-Days Cooling Degree-Days
Increase/ Increase/
2013 2012 (decrease) 2013 2012 (decrease)
1st quarter 1,90: 1,967 (3)% — — — %
2nd quarter 59: 70¢ (16) 82 40 10k
3rd quarter 90 58 55 457 39t 16
4th quarter 1,801 1,43¢ 26 — 1 (200

4,38¢ 4,16¢ 5 53¢ 43¢ 24



15-year annual average 4,23¢ 4,23t — 454 45€ —
Increase (decrease) from the
15-year annual average 3% (2% 19% (4%

On a weather adjusted basis, retail energy detigen 2013 were comparable to 2Q1th energy deliveries to residential custon
increasing by 1%, and energy deliveries to comraéerid industrial customers combined were compartabprior year.

Wholesale revenues 2013 increased $31 million , or 63% , from 2Q1ghich consisted of $29 million related to a 55%rease in
the average wholesale price and $2 million relétesl 5% increase in wholesale sales volume.

Other operating revenuescreased $5 million , or 15% , in 2013 from 20R2imarily due to an increase in gains on the efle
excess natural gas, and an increase in the salk 0bt needed for operations.

Purchased power and fuekxpense increased $31 million , or 4% , in 201&fRD12 , largely due to a 4% increase in average
variable power cost per MWh. Such increase waedrbwy a 16% increase in the cost of purchased pameéa decrease in energy
received from hydroelectric projects. In additidnring the second half of 2013, the Company expeed unplanned plant outages
at three of its generating facilities and incur$dd million of incremental replacement power coAt40% decrease in the average
variable power cost per MWh of per generated dartidfset the increases. The average variable pawest increased to $35.61 per

MWh in 2013 from $34.25 per MWh in 2012 .

Hydroelectric energy, from PGE-owned hydroelegtricjects and from mid-Columbia projects combinextrdased 11% during
2013 from 2012 due to less favorable hydro conatim 2013. Total hydroelectric energy receivedeexed that projected in the
Company’s AUT by approximately 1% for 2013 and 1ft#62012 .
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The following table presents the actual of the AfriSeptember runoff for 2013 and 2012 (as a peege of normal, as measured
over the 30-year period from 1971 through 2000):

Runoff as a Percent of Normal

2013 2012
Location Actual Actual
Columbia River at The Dalles, Oregon 10C% 12€%
Mid-Columbia River at Grand Coulee, Washington 10¢ 12¢
Clackamas River at Estacada, Oregon 10z 138
Deschutes River at Moody, Oregon 98 11¢

*  Volumetric water supply forecasts for the Pacifiorthiwest region are prepared by the Northwest Rfggecast Center in conjunction
the Natural Resources Conservation Service and otfuperating agencies.

Energy received from PGE-owned wind generatinguesss (Biglow Canyon) increased 7% from 2012 duantfavorable wind
conditions in 2012, and represented 6% of the Caoryipaetail load requirement in 2013 and in 20Ehergy received from Biglo
Canyon fell short of projections included in then@any’s AUT by approximately 15% in 2013 comparéth\20% in 2012 .

Actual NVPC for 2013 was comparable with 2012 . A decreaseedrby a 55% increase in the average variable poostrper
MWh of wholesale power sales, was largely offsealdfo increase in the average variable power eydtipvh. For 2013, actual
NVPC was$11 million above baseline NVPC, compared with $iilfion below baseline NVPC for 2012 .

Generation, transmission and distributionexpense increased $14 million , or 7% , in 2013manad to 2012 . The increase is
largely due to $5 million related to planned ovetrand repair costs at Colstrip and Coyote Sprifi§amnillion related to increased
delivery system repair and restoration work, $3iamlfor the warranty extension related to thedtphase of Biglow Canyon, and
million of expense associated with the Companytschenark proposals that were not selected in the j@6&ess for new generation.

Cascade Crossing transmission projeaeflects $52 million of costs expensed in the sdaqunarter of 2013, which were previously
recorded as CWIP. For additional information, s&gdettric Utility Plant” in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Padig; ir
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementgeim B.—“Financial Statements and Supplementary.Data

Administrative and other expense increased $3 million , or 1% , in 2013 canegh to 2012 , as a $6 million increase in employee
pension expense, driven by a lower discount rads, partially offset by amortization of $3 milliom 2012 of deferred costs relatec
the Trojan refund matter.

Depreciation and amortizationexpense in 2013 was comparable to 2012 , as ali@mincrease resulting from capital additions
was largely offset by an increase in costs defartaded to four capital projects as authorizethexCompany’s 2011 GRC, a
decrease in the asset retirement obligation (AR®)Iting from the decommissioning of the Bull Rywmlto facility in 2012, and the
amortization in 2012 of tax credits related to HBESI located at the former Trojan site.

Interest expensedecreased $7 million , or 6% , in 2013 compare20th2 , and consisted of $4 million related to thertg of the
2013 maturities and issuances of long-term debt$&naiillion related to an increase in the allowafweborrowed funds used for
construction, which was driven by a higher aver@y¢lP balance resulting from the commencement ottrestruction of PW2,
Carty, and Tucannon River in 2013.

Other income, netwas $20 million in 2013 compared to $10 millior2id12 . The increase was primarily due to a $7 omilli
increase in the allowance for equity funds usectémstruction from the higher average CWIP balaaseyell as an increase in
earnings from the non-qualified benefit plan trassets.
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Income tax expenselecreased $43 million , or 67% , in 2013 comparigd 2012 , with the effective tax rate decreasmg .8%
for 2013 from 31.4% for 2012 . These decreasepramrily due to a decrease in the pre-tax incoon€013 compared with 2012,
which was driven by the $52 million charge to exgm 2013 related to Cascade Crossing, combingdothier unfavorable impac
to 2013 pre-tax income. Also contributing to therdases was an increase to deferred tax balan2@d.tfor a change in the
Company’s composite state tax rate and an incliega®duction tax credits in 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Discussions, forward-looking statements and prmastin this section, and similar statements irepffarts of the Form 10-K, are
subject to PGE’s assumptions regarding the avéitlabind cost of capital. See “Current capital aneldit market conditions could
adversely affect the Company’s access to capibal, @f capital, and ability to execute its stratggan as currently scheduled.” in
Item 1A.—“Risk Factors.”

Capital Requirements

The following table presents actual capital expemds and debt maturities for 2014 and projectgitalaexpenditures and future
debt maturities for 2015 through 2019 (in millioegcluding allowance for funds used during consiong or AFDC):

Years Ending December 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Ongoing capital expenditures $ 31C $ 38 $ 3Bz % 33¢ % 30C $ 30C
Port Westward Unit 2 11¢ 2C — — — —
Tucannon River Wind Farm 38C 29 — — — —
Carty Generating Station 10¢ 17z 35 — — —
Hydro licensing and construction 32 22 10 2 1 2

Total capital expenditures ~ $ 94 » % 62¢ $ 396 $ 341  $ 301 % 30z
Long-term debt maturities $ — $ 37t % 67 $ 58 % 7% $ 30C

* Amounts shown include removal costs, which alded in other net operating activities in thesmidated statements of cash flows.
For a discussion concerning PGE’s ability to futsdfiiture capital requirements, see “Debt and Fdtittancings” in this Item 7.

Ongoing capital expenditures-Consists of upgrades to and replacement of trasgmnisdistribution, and generation infrastructus
well as new customer connections. For the year§ #xbugh 2017, approximately $100 million rela@she implementation of the
Company’s new customer information and meter dataagement systems.

Port Westward Unit —PW2 is a 220 MW natural gas-fired capacity reselocated adjacent to PW1 and Beaver near Clagskani
Oregon that was placed in service in December 2844f December 31, 2014, $295 million is includedElectric utility plant for
PW?2, including $20 million of AFDC. The Companyigstes that final completion of the plant will réguapproximately $20
million of capital expenditures in 2015.

Tucannon River Wind Farm-Tucannon River is a 267 MW nameplate capacity viamth, consisting of 116 turbines each with a
generating capacity of 2.3 MWs, located in souttezas/Nashington. This renewable resource was placeervice in December
2014. As of December 31, 2014, $501 million isulmigd in Electric utility plant for Tucannon Rivéncluding $24 million of AFDC
and net of a state sales tax refund of $23 mifiiom the state
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of Washington. The Company estimates that finalgletion of the wind farm will require approximate$29 million of capital
expenditures in 2015.

Carty Generating Statior-Carty is a 440 MW natural gas-fired baseload resmin Eastern Oregon, located adjacent to Boardman
The total cost of Carty is estimated at $450 milliexcluding AFDC, and the facility is expected®online in the second quarter of
2016. As of December 31, 2014 , $260 million, indihg $16 million of AFDC, is included in CWIP foratty.

Hydro licensing and constructi—PGE’ s hydroelectric projects are operated pursuanERC licenses issued under the Federal
Power Act. The licenses for the hydroelectric prtgeexpire as follows: Clackamas River, 2055; Wikdte River, 2035; and
Deschutes River, 2055. Capital spending requiresneilected in the preceding table relate primddlynodifications to the
Companys various hydro facilities to enhance fish passagksurvival, as required by conditions contaimethé operating license

Liquidity

PGE’s access to short-term debt markets, includiuglving credit from banks, helps provide necestiguidity to support the
Company'’s operating activities, including the pash of power and fuel. Long-term capital requiretsiane driven largely by
capital expenditures for distribution, transmissiand generation facilities to support both new exidting customers, as well as ¢
refinancing activities. PGE's liquidity and capitaljuirements can also be significantly affecteether working capital needs,
including margin deposit requirements related tolesale market activities, which can vary dependipgn the Company’s forward
positions and the corresponding price curves.

The following summarizes PGE's cash flows for tleeigds presented (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year $ 107 $ 12 $ 6
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities 51¢ 544 494

Investing activities (999 (692) (2949

Financing activities 49¢ 243 (199
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 20 95 6
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 127 $ 107 $ 12

2014Compared t@013

Cash Flows from Operating ActivitiesCash flows from operating activities are generdtyermined by the amount and timing of
cash received from customers and payments madmttovs, as well as the nature and amount of ndmite&ss, including
depreciation and amortization, deferred incomegaaed pension and other postretirement benefis dosluded in net income
during a given period. The $26 million decreasedsh flows from operating activities in 2014 congubio 2013vas largely due to
decrease in the net change in working capital ifemd a decrease in the amount received relatimb teettlement of a legal matter
concerning costs associated with the operatiohef$FSI. These decreases were partially offsanbincrease to Net income, net of
non-cash items, and an increase in cash receigadtfre Bonneville Power Administration to be retdro customers pursuant to
the Residential Exchange Program.

Cash provided by operations includes the recovenustomer prices of non-cash charges for depreciahd amortization. The
Company estimates that such charges in 2015 wigedrom $300 million to $310 million . Combinedtiwvall other sources, cash
provided by operations in 2015 is estimated to esfingm $460 million to $500 million . This estimaeticipates no change in
margin deposits held by brokers as of Decembe?@14 , which is based on both the timing of coritsattlements and projected
energy prices. The remaining estimated cash floars bperations in 2015 is expected from normal atirey activities.

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitiesCash flows used in investing activities consistnarrily of capital expenditures related to new
construction and improvements to PGE'’s distributioemsmission, and generation facilities. The $30#on increase in net cash



used in investing activities in 2014 compared td2®as primarily due to a $351 milliégmcrease in capital expenditures, largely
to the construction of three new generation prsjéeiv2, Carty and Tucannon River), partially oftsgta decrease in contributions
to the Nuclear decommissioning trust. For additiemf@rmation regarding the contributions to thedMaar decommissioning trust,
see Note 3, Balance Sheet Components, and Notesét Retirement Obligations, in the Notes to Cadatdd Financial Statements

in Item 8.—“Financial Statements and Supplemenfmata.”

The Company plans approximately $629 million ofitagxpenditures in 2015 related to upgrades tbraplacement of generation,
transmission, and distribution infrastructure, irtthg $172 million related to the
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construction of Carty. PGE plans to fund the 20dpital expenditures with the cash expected to bergeed from operations during
2015, as discussed above, as well as with tharnsguof debt and equity securities. For additiamfairmation, see ‘Capital
Requirement” and “ Debt and Equity Financingsin the Liquidity and Capital Resources sectiorito$ Item 7.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities-Financing activities provide supplemental cashbfoth day-to-day operations and capital
requirements as needed. During 2014 , cash protgedich activities consisted of net proceeds veceirom the issuances of term
bank loans of $305 million and FMBs of $280 milljgrartially offset by the payment of dividends &7$million . During 2013 , net
cash provided by financing activities consistedhetf proceeds received from the issuances of consteak in the amount of $67
million and FMBs in the aggregate amount of $37liom, partially offset by the repayment of FMBs$®£00 million and
commercial paper of $17 million , and payment @idénds of $84 million .

2013Compared t®012

Cash Flows from Operating ActivitiesThe $50 million increase in cash flows from opegactivities in 2013 compared to 2012
was largely due to the receipt of $44 million ie third quarter of 2013 related to the settleméat legal matter concerning costs
associated with the operation of the ISFSI. Sucbuarhwas transferred into the Nuclear decommiss@hiiust, and consequently is
also reflected as an outflow of cash for investngvities. The net change in working capital itepartially offset by a decrease in
Net income after the consideration of -cash items, also contributed to the increase sh flaws from operating activities.

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitiesThe $398 million increase in net cash used instiag activities in 2013 compared to 2012
was primarily due to a $353 million increase initapexpenditures, largely due to the constructibthree new generation projects
(PW2, Carty and Tucannon River), and a $44 miliontribution to the Nuclear decommissioning trusthie third quarter of 2013.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities-During 2013 , cash provided by financing actiwt@nsisted of net proceeds received from
the issuances of common stock in the aggregate rnod@67 million and FMBs in the aggregate amafr§377 million, partially
offset by the repayment of FMBs of $100 million asmnmercial paper of $17 million, and payment efdinds of $84 million .
During 2012 , net cash used in financing activitiessisted of the repayment of FMBs of $100 millipayment of dividends of $81
million and net maturities of commercial paper @83%nillion.

Dividends on Common Stock

The following table presents common stock dividetsielslared in 2014 :

Declared Per

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Common Share
February 19, 2014 March 25, 2014 April 15, 2014 $ 0.27¢
May 7, 2014 June 25, 2014 July 15, 2014 0.28(
July 24, 2014 September 25, 2014 October 15, 2014 0.28(
October 23, 2014 December 26, 2014 January 15, 2015 0.28(

While the Company expects to pay comparable guaidéridends on its common stock in the future, deelaration of any dividen
is at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Bioes. The amount of any dividend declaration dépend upon factors that the

Board of Directors deems relevant and may inclbdéare not limited to, PGE’s results of operatiand financial condition, future
capital expenditures and investments, and app&cagulatory and contractual restrictions.

Credit Ratings and Debt Covenants

PGE's secured and unsecured debt is rated invesgramhe by Moody’s and S&P, with current creditrrgs and outlook as follows:

Moody’s S&P
First Mortgage Bonds Al A-
Senior unsecured debt A3 BBB
Commercial paper Prime-2 A-2

Outlook Stable Stable



Should Moody’s and/or S&P reduce their credit mutim PGE'’s unsecured debt below investment grageCompany could be
subject to requests by certain of its wholesalemodity and transmission counterparties to positiadd! performance assurance
collateral in connection with its price risk managmt activities. The performance assurance codlhtan be in the form of cash
deposits or letters of credit, depending on theseof the underlying agreements, and are baseldeocontract terms and commodity
prices and can vary from period to period. Caslodip provided as collateral are classified as Medgposits in PGE consolidate
balance sheet, while any letters of credit issuecdhat reflected in the Company’s consolidated hadasheet.

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE had posted approglyn&#1 million of collateral with these counterpes, consisting of $11
million in cash and $30 million in bank lettersas&dit, $11 million of which is related to mast&tting agreements. Based on the
Company'’s energy portfolio, estimates of energykegprices, and the level of collateral outstandiegf December 31, 2014 , the
approximate amount of additional collateral thaildde requested upon a single agency downgraleloav investment grade is
approximately $112 million and decreases to appnately $57 million by December 31, 2015 . The am@fradditional collateral
that could be requested upon a dual agency dowedodelow investment grade is approximately $24lfam and decreases to
approximately $119 million by December 31, 2015 .

PGE’s financing arrangements do not contain ratiriggers that would result in the acceleratiomexfuired interest and principal
payments in the event of a ratings downgrade. Hewehke cost of borrowing and issuing letters efd@runder the credit facilities
would increase.
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The issuance of FMBs requires that PGE meet easriogerage and security provisions set forth innlkdenture of Mortgage and
Deed of Trust securing the bonds. PGE estimaté®thBecember 31, 2014 , under the most restrigdsgance test in the Indenture
of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, the Company coulchssued up to approximately $685 million of adial FMBs. Any issuances
of FMBs would be subject to market conditions anmgbants could be further limited by regulatory authations or by covenants a
tests contained in other financing agreements. B&khas the ability to release property from the of the Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Trust under certain circumstancesydicy) bond credits, deposits of cash, or certdessaxchanges or other
dispositions of property.

PGE's credit facilities contain customary covenantd credit provisions, including a requirement thmits consolidated
indebtedness, as defined in the credit agreemend$% of total capitalization (debt to total capitatio). As of December 31, 2014 ,
the Company'’s debt to total capital ratio, as daked under the credit agreements, was 56.7% .

Debt and Equity Financings

PGE'’s ability to secure sufficient long-term capéiba reasonable cost is determined by its firdp@rformance and outlook, its
credit ratings, its capital expenditure requirersgatternatives available to investors, market @@, and other factors.
Management believes that the availability of reurmivcredit facilities, the expected ability to isslong-term debt and equity
securities, and cash expected to be generateddpenations provide sufficient cash flow and ligtido meet the Company’s
anticipated capital and operating requirementshferforeseeable future. However, the Company’stabd issue long-term debt and
equity could be adversely affected by changesitalanarket conditions. For 2015 , PGE expectital estimated capital
requirements and maturities of long-term debt wibkh from operations, issuances of debt secudtiap to $300 million and
issuances of equity securities under the EFSA pfagmately $270 million. The actual timing and ambof such issuances of debt
and equity securities will be dependent upon timintj and amount of capital expenditures.

Short-term DebtPGE has approval from the FERC to issue stear debt up to a total of $900 million through kelry 6, 2016 ar
had the following unsecured revolving credit fawh as of December 31, 2014:

* A $400 million revolving credit facility, which ischeduled to terminate in November 2018;

» A $300 million revolving credit facility, which ischeduled to terminate in December 2

These revolving credit facilities supplement opagatash flows and provide a primary source ofidgy. Pursuant to the terms of
the agreements, the revolving credit facilities rhayused for general corporate purposes, backumfomercial paper borrowings,
and the issuance of standby letters of credit.

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE had no borrowingstanting under the revolving credit facilities,smnmercial paper
outstanding, and $20 million of letters of crediued. As of December 31, 2014 , the aggregateedrayailable credit under the
revolving credit facilities was $680 million .

The Company also has two letter of credit fac#itimder which it may obtain letters of credit inaggregate amount not to exceed
$60 million. Under these facilities, an additio8&b6 million of letters of credit was outstandingod®ecember 31, 2014 .

Long-term DebtDuring 2014 , PGE issued a total of $280 millior=FdMBs, consisting of the following:
* In November , issued $80 million of 3.51% Sef®4Bs due 2024
e In October , issued $100 million of 4.44% Sef#&4Bs due 2046 anc
e In August, issued $100 million of 4.39% SefddBs due 2045

In January 2015, the Company repaid $70 millioB.d6% Series FMBs and issued $75 million of 3.55%e3 FMBs due 2030.
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In addition to the issuances of FMBs, PGE obtafoed term loans in an aggregate principal amour&3if5 million during 2014
pursuant to a credit agreement. The term loandsateates are set at the beginning of the int@exsbdd for periods ranging from one-
to six-months, as selected by PGE and are bas#tkdrondon Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus &3ib points, with no other
fees. The credit agreement expires October 30,,2108hich time any amounts outstanding underéha {oans become due and
payable.

As of December 31, 2014 , total long-term debttamiging was $2,501 million , with scheduled matesitof $375 million in 2015 .
In addition, PGE has the option to remarket throR@83 the $21 million of Pollution Control ReverBends held by the Company.

Equity.In connection with PGE’s public offering of 11,1000 shares of its common stock in 2013, the Compatgred into an
EFSA. Pursuant to the EFSA, a forward countergaotyowed 11,100,000 shares of PEGEbmmon stock from third parties and ¢
borrowed shares were sold in a registered publariafy. PGE receives proceeds from the sale ofttimemon stock when the EFSA
is physically settled. As of December 31, 2014, @ompany could have physically settled the EFSAdivering 10,400,008hare:
of PGE common stock to the forward counterpartgxohange for cash of $275 million . The Companycgrates physical
settlement of the EFSA by delivery of newly isssbdres on or before the EFSA’s expiration dataioéld 1, 2015. For additional
information on the EFSA, see Note 12, Equity-beRlkeds, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial tatgs in Iltem 8.—“Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Capital StructurePGE's financial objectives include maintaining antoon equity ratio (common equity to total consdiedh
capitalization, including current debt maturitie$)approximately 50%. Achievement of this objectivedps the Company maintain
investment grade debt ratings and provides acodssad-term capital at favorable interest ratese Tompany’s common equity
ratios were 43.3% and 48.7% as of December 31, 286d42013 , respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table presents PGE’s contractualgutions as of December 31, 2014 (in millions):

There-

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 after Total

Long-term debt $ 37t $§ 67 $ 58 $ 75 $ 30C $1,62¢ $ 2,501

Interest on long-term debt 11€ 112 11C 10¢ 92 1,557 2,09t

Capital and other purchase commitments 242 21 2 2 2 74 34:
Purchased power and fuel:

Electricity purchases 17¢ 167 14C 143 143 83: 1,60t

Capacity contracts 27 26 6 6 5 20 9C

Public Utility Districts 8 7 5 4 2 23 49

Natural gas 56 37 40 40 36 244 458

Coal and transportation 23 14 11 5 5 — 58

Operating leases 1C 11 12 11 8 19z 244

Total $103 $ 46z $ 384 $ 392 $ 59 $456¢ $7,43¢

* Future interest on long-term debt is calculateddudl on the assumption that all debt remains awlisiga until maturity. For debt instruments
with variable rates, interest is calculated forfadlire periods using the rates in effect as ofdbawer 31, 2014 .

As of December 31, 2014 , no contributions to PGfession plan are expected for 2015 through 2@éntributions beyond 2019
are not estimated due to significant uncertaintijriancial market and demographic outcomes.
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Other Financial Obligations

PGE has entered into lorigrm power purchase agreements with certain pukility districts in the state of Washington unaerich
it has acquired a percentage of the output of thyeeoelectric projects (the Priest Rapids, WanapuaohWells hydroelectric
projects). The Company is required to pay its prtipoate share of the operating and debt servistsaif the projects whether or 1
they are operable. The agreements further prowiate $hould any other purchaser of output defauppayments as a result of
bankruptcy or insolvency, PGE would be allocatgulaarata share of both the output and the operatingdebt service costs of the
defaulting purchaser. For the Wells project, PGHEildde allocated up to a cumulative maximum of 2Z5%he defaulting
purchaser’s percentage of the output. For the fiRiapids and Wanapum projects, PGE would be aldcap to a cumulative
maximum that would not adversely affect the taxnapiestatus of any outstanding debt. For additiamfakrmation on these longgrm
power purchase agreements, s&ublic Utility Districts” in Note 15, Commitments and Guarantees, in theedlto Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8.—“Financial Stateth@md Supplementary Data.”

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

PGE entered into an EFSA in connection with a tegesl public offering of its common stock in 20T8e Company may settle the
EFSA with issuance of PGE common stock, for castebshare settlement from time-to-time, in whalgart, through June 11,
2015. For additional information on the EFSA, seeNL2, Equity-based Plans, in the Notes to Codiatdd Financial Statements in
Iltem 8.—“Financial Statements and SupplementarnaDat

PGE has no other offalance sheet arrangements other than outstarettegsl of credit from time to time that have, & sgasonabl
likely to have, a material current or future effeatits consolidated financial condition, changegfriancial condition, revenues or
expenses, results of operations, liquidity, cagitgdenditures or capital resources.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial stateséntonformity with GAAP requires that managemegoply accounting policies
and make estimates and assumptions that affectrammported in the statements. The following antiag policies represent those
that management believes are particularly impottathie consolidated financial statements andréwatire the use of estimates,
assumptions, and judgments to determine mattersithanherently uncertain.

Regulatory Accounting

As a rate-regulated enterprise, PGE applies remwylaiccounting, which includes the recognitionegjulatory assets and liabilities
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. Riegylassets represent probable future revenueiasss with certain incurred
costs that are expected to be recovered from cestotihrough the ratemaking process. Regulatorilitiab represent probable
future reductions in revenues associated with atsathiat are expected to be credited or refundeddtomers through the
ratemaking process. Regulatory accounting is ap@tepas long as prices are established or sutgegiproval by independent third-
party regulators; prices are designed to recowesfiecific enterprise’s cost of service; and imwid demand for service, it is
reasonable to assume that prices set at levelsiitha¢cover costs can be charged to and collefrtad customers. Amortization of
regulatory assets and liabilities is reflectechia statement of income over the period in whicly #re included in customer prices.

If future recovery of regulatory assets is not @iale, PGE would expense such items in the periold datermination is made.
Further, if PGE determines that all or a portionit®itility operations no longer meet the critefidacontinued application of
regulatory accounting, the Company would be reguioewrite off those regulatory assets and liab#itrelated to operations that no
longer meet requirements for regulatory accounting.

56




Table of Contents

Discontinued application of regulatory accountinguwd have a material impact on the Company’s resflbperations and financial
position.

Asset Retirement Obligations

PGE recognizes AROs for legal obligations relatedismantlement and restoration costs associatéxdtieé future retirement of
tangible long-lived assets. Upon initial recogmitiof AROs that are measurable, the probability-Wigid future cash flows for the
associated retirement costs, discounted usingdit-@ejusted riskree rate, are recognized as both a liability amdraincrease in tf
capitalized carrying amount of the related longdiwassets. Due to the long lead time involved, kketaisk premium cannot be
determined for inclusion in future cash flows. btimating the liability, management must utilizgraficant judgment and
assumptions in determining whether a legal obligagixists to remove assets. Other estimates mesldted to lease provisions,
ownership agreements, licensing issues, cost @stsmaflation, and certain legal requirements. ri¢fes that may arise over time
with regard to these assumptions and determinatianshange future amounts recorded for AROs.

Capitalized asset retirement costs related torgdadility plant are depreciated over the estirddtte of the related asset and
included in Depreciation and amortization expensthé consolidated statements of income. Accraifdhe ARO liability is
classified as an operating expense in the congetidstatements of income. Accumulated asset regineremoval costs that do not
gualify as AROs have been reclassified from accatedl depreciation to regulatory liabilities in g@solidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition

Retail customers are billed monthly for electriaige based on meter readings taken throughoutdhéhmAt the end of each month,
PGE estimates the revenue earned from the last neete date through the last day of the month, whis not yet been billed to
customers. Such amount, which is classified as lldcbievenues in the Company’s consolidated balaheets, is calculated based
on each month’s actual net retail system loadntlraber of days from the last meter read date thrdlg last day of the month, and
current customer prices.

Contingencies

PGE has various unresolved legal and regulatoryemsaabout which there is inherent uncertaintyhhie ultimate outcome
contingent upon several factors. Such contingerarie®valuated using the best information availabless contingency is accrued,
and disclosed if material, when it is probable #ratsset has been impaired or a liability incuard the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. If a range of probable Bsstablished, the minimum amount in the rangedsuad, unless some other
amount within the range appears to be a bettanatdi If the probable loss cannot be reasonahbiyatsd, no accrual is recorded,
but the loss contingency and the reasons to tleetdtfiat it cannot be reasonably estimated aréodisd. Material loss contingencies
are disclosed when it is reasonably possible thaisaet has been impaired or a liability incurkestablished accruals reflect
management’s assessment of inherent risks, credihimess, and complexities involved in the proc&sgre can be no assurance as
to the ultimate outcome of any particular contingen

Price Risk Management

PGE engages in price risk management activitiesanage exposure to commodity and foreign currerenket fluctuations and to
manage volatility in net power costs for its retaistomers. The Company utilizes derivative insents, which may include forwa
futures, swap, and option contracts for electrjaigtural gas, oil, and foreign currency. Thesévdtve instruments are recorded at
fair value, or “marked-to-market,” in PGE'’s conslalied financial statements.

Fair value adjustments consist of reevaluatingdirevalue of derivative contracts at the end afreeeporting period for the
remaining term of the contract and recording argnge in fair value in Net income for the periodir Falue is the present value of
the difference between the contracted price andottveard market price
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multiplied by the total quantity of the contractrfoption contracts, a theoretical value is calimdaising Black-Scholes models that
utilize price volatility, price correlation, time expiration, interest rate and forward commodiigecurves. The fair value of these
options is the difference between the premium paiceived and the theoretical value at the faiu& measurement date.

Determining the fair value of these financial instients requires the use of prices at which a boiyseller could currently contract
to purchase or sell a commodity at a future dateni@d “forward prices”). Forward price “curves” arged to determine the current
fair market value of a commodity to be deliveredha future. PGE's forward price curves are creétedtilizing actively quoted
market indicators received from electronic andpktme brokers, industry publications, and othercesi Forward price curves can
change with market conditions and can be mater#flycted by unpredictable factors such as weathdithe economy. PGE’s
forward price curves are validated using brokertgsiand market data from a regulated exchangeiffietedces for any single
location, delivery date and commodity are less fn

Pension Plan

Primary assumptions used in the actuarial valuafdPGE’s pension plan include the discount rdte ,e@xpected return on plan
assets, mortality rates, and wage escalation. Tdssemptions are evaluated by the Company, reviewedally with the plan
actuaries and trust investment consultants, andtagdn light of market changes, trends, and fuéxqeectations. Significant
differences between assumptions and actual experigan have a material impact on the valuatioh@fpension benefit plan
obligation and net periodic pension cost.

PGE’s pension discount rate is determined basedpmrtfolio of high-quality bonds that match theation of the plan cash flows.
The expected rate of return on plan assets is laséte projected long-term return on assets irpthe investment portfolio. PGE
capitalizes a portion of pension expense baseti@proportion of labor costs capitalized.

Changes in actuarial assumptions can also haveariai@ffect on net periodic pension expense. 5% reduction in the expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets, or redndti the discount rate, would have the effechoféasing the 2014 net periodic
pension expense by approximately $2 million.

Fair Value Measurements

PGE applies fair value measurements to its findiasisets and liabilities, with fair value definegithe price that would be receiver
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability incaderly transaction between market participanth@measurement date. The
Company’s financial assets and liabilities consfst) derivative instruments entered into in coctian with its price risk
management activities; ii) the majority of assetkltby the Nuclear decommissioning trust, the Remplan and the Non-qualified
benefit plan trust; and iii) long-term debt. Inwialg these items, the Company uses inputs and gssuns that market participants
would use to determine their fair value, utilizimguation techniques that maximize the use of alad®e inputs and minimize the 1
of unobservable inputs. The determination of faiue can require subjective and complex judgmedtRBE’s assessment of the
inputs and the significance of a particular inputdir value measurement may affect the valuatich® instruments and their
placement within the fair value hierarchy repoiiteds financial statements.
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSUR ES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

PGE is exposed to various forms of market risksegiimg primarily of fluctuations in commaodity peis, foreign currency exchange
rates, and interest rates, as well as credit Agl.variations in the Company’'market risk or credit risk may affect its futdireancial
position, results of operations or cash flows, iasutsed below.

Risk Management Committee

PGE has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) whickdponsible for providing oversight of the adequaicgt effectiveness of
corporate policies, guidelines, and proceduresifarket and credit risk management related to thegamy’s energy portfolio
management activities. The RMC consists of offigard Company representatives with responsibilityrisk management, finance
and accounting, legal, rates and regulatory affamsver operations, and generation operations RME reviews and approves
adoption of policies and procedures, and monitorsgiance with policies, procedures, and limitsaoregular basis through reports
and meetings. The RMC also reviews and recommaski$imits that are subject to approval by PGE’'saBbof Directors.

Commodity Price Risk

PGE is exposed to commodity price risk as its prynfrusiness is to provide electricity to its retaistomers. The Company engages
in price risk management activities to manage exygoi volatility in net power costs for its retailstomers. The Company uses
power purchase contracts to supplement its thetmgdtoelectric, and wind generation and to resporftuctuations in the demand
for electricity and variability in generating plamperations. The Company also enters into contfacthe purchase of fuel for the
Company'’s natural gas- and coal-fired generatiagtsl These contracts for the purchase of powefui@xpose the Company to
market risk. The Company uses instruments sucbragfd contracts, which may involve physical datwef an energy commodity;
financial swap and futures agreements, which mayire payments to, or receipt of payments fromntemparties based on the
differential between a fixed and variable pricetfoe commodity; and option contracts to mitigagk that arises from market
fluctuations of commodity prices. PGE does not gega trading activities for non-retail purposes.

The following table presents energy commaodity detiike fair values as a net liability as of DecemBgr2014 that are expected to
settle in each respective year (in millions):

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
Commodity contracts:
Electricity $ 5 $ 1¢ 3 6 $ 5 % 5 % 22 3 107
Natural gas 49 44 18 3 — — 114
$ 9¢ 3 63 % 24 % 8 $ 5 $ 22 3 221

PGE reports energy commaodity derivative fair valags net asset or liability, which combines puseBaand sales expected to settle
in the years noted above. As a short utility, epexgmmodity fair values exposed to commodity prisk are primarily related to
purchase contracts, which are slightly offset bgsa

PGE's energy portfolio activities are subject tguiation, with related costs included in retailges approved by the OPUC. The
timing differences between the recognition of gaind losses on certain derivative instruments beu tealization and subsequent
recovery in prices are deferred as regulatory asset regulatory liabilities to reflect the effeofgegulation, significantly mitigating
commodity price risk for the Company. As contraats settled, these deferrals reverse and are rizeapss Purchased power and
fuel in the statements of income and included @RICAM. PGE remains subject to cash flow risk mfttrm of collateral
requirements based on the value of open positindsegulatory risk if recovery is disallowed by @@UC. PGE attempts to
mitigate both types of risks through prudent engngcurement practices.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

PGE is exposed to foreign currency risk assocmittdnatural gas forward and swap contracts denatadhin Canadian dollars in
energy portfolio. Foreign currency risk is the rifkchanges in value of pending financial obligatian foreign currencies that could
occur prior to the settlement of the obligation tlwe change in the value of that foreign curreinaglation to the U.S. dollar. PGE
monitors its exposure to fluctuations in the Caaadixchange rate with an appropriate hedging giyate

As of December 31, 2014 , a 10% change in the w@itiee Canadian dollar would result in an immatiechange in exposure for
transactions that will settle over the next tweivenths.

I nterest Rate Risk

To meet short-term cash requirements, PGE hality &0 issue commercial paper for terms of u2#® days and has revolving
credit facilities that permit same day borrowingkhough any borrowings under the commercial pggwegram or the revolving
credit facilities carry a fixed rate during the@spective terms, the short-term nature of suctolangs subjects the Company to
fluctuations in interest rates that result fromraes in market conditions. As of December 31, 2(RGE had no borrowings
outstanding under its revolving credit facilitiesdano commercial paper outstanding.

PGE currently has no financial instruments to ratiggrisk related to changes in short-term intemgsts, including those on
commercial paper; however, it may consider suctringents in the future as considered necessary.

As of December 31, 2014 , the total fair value eatying amounts by maturity date of PGE'’s longrtetebt are as follows (in
millions):

Total Carrying Amounts by Maturity Date
Fair There-
Value Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 after
First Mortgage Bonds $ 246( $ 207t $ 7C 3 67 $ 58 $ 75 $ 1,80¢%
Unsecured term bank loans 30¢ 30¢E 30¢ — — — —
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds 13€ 121 — — — — 121
Total $ 2901 $ 2501 $ 37t % 67 $ 58 $ 75 $  1,92¢

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE’s unsecured term lmamis in the amount of $305 million were the dolyg-term debt instruments
subject to interest rate risk exposures. As of DewEr 31, 2014 a 10% change in the interest rate of these unséd¢arm bank loar
would result in an immaterial change in interes risk exposure over the next twelve months.

Credit Risk

PGE is exposed to credit risk in its commodity eniisk management activities related to potentaperformance by counterparti
PGE manages the risk of counterparty default adogr its credit policies by performing financ@kdit reviews, setting limits and
monitoring exposures, and requiring collaterattfie form of cash, letters of credit, and guaranteden needed. The Company also
uses standardized enabling agreements and, innceaises, master netting agreements, which allowhéonetting of positive and
negative exposures under multiple agreements witinterparties. Despite such mitigation effortsadég by counterparties may
periodically occur. Based upon periodic review amdluation, allowances are recorded to reflectitrisk related to wholesale
accounts receivable.

The large number and diversified base of residemiienmercial, and industrial customers, combindti the Company’s ability to
discontinue service, contribute to reduce credk with respect to trade accounts receivable fretailrsales. Estimated provisions
for uncollectible accounts receivable related taitsales are provided for such risk.
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As of December 31, 2014 , PGE'’s credit risk expessi$4 million for commodity activities with extelly-rated investment grade
counterparties and matures in 2016. The creditisighcluded in accounts receivable and price msiagement assets, offset by
related accounts payable and price risk managelimaeéiiities.

Investment grade includes those counterpartiesavittinimum credit rating on senior unsecured déBta@3 (as assigned by
Moody’s) or BBB- (as assigned by S&P), and alss¢hcounterparties whose obligations are guaramtesecured by an investment
grade entity. The credit exposure includes actifatyelectricity and natural gas forward, swap, aptlon contracts. Posted collateral
may be in the form of cash or letters of credit aral/ represent prepayment or credit exposure agseira

Omitted from the market risk exposures discussedahre long-term power purchase contracts wittacepublic utility districts in
the state of Washington and with the City of PodlaOregon. These contracts provide PGE with agmeage share of hydro facility
output in exchange for an equivalent percentageestfeoperating and debt service costs. These attstexpire at varying dates
through 2052. For additional information, seublic Utility Districts” in Note 15, Commitments and Guarantees, in theeslto
Consolidated Financial Statements in Iltem 8.—“FaialnStatements and Supplementary Data.” Managebwiatves that
circumstances that could result in the nonperfooediy these counterparties are remote.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The following financial statements and report ai@uded in Item 8:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourtiing

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@ibecember 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéoyears ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,8t12013

Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yeargedgiecember 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ymailed December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Portland General Electric Company
Portland, Oregon

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Portland General Electric Companysabdidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , haddlated consolidated statements of income, celngmisive income, equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in 1@ ended December 31, 2014 . We also have autlieeCompany’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December&114 , based on criteria establishethiernal Control-Integrated Framework
(2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission. The Company’s manageise
responsible for these financial statements, fonta@ing effective internal control over financraporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over finahoigoorting, included in the accompanying Managetsefnnual Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express an opinion on these financial statés and an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBlqUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective infezoatrol over financial reporting was maintainedail material respects. Our
audits of the financial statements included exanginon a test basis, evidence supporting the arma@unat disclosures in the financ
statements, assessing the accounting principlesamsksignificant estimates made by managementeaaldating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimecontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing thk tiet a material weakness exists and testing ealdiaing the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thessskrisk. Our audits also included performing satbler procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdlat our audits provide a reasonable basisupopinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or p@rs performing similar functions, and effected by tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reaoassurance regarding the reliability of financégdorting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes toedance with generally accepted accounting priesipA company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigiek and procedures that (1) pertain to the maartee of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettifansactions and dispositions of the assetsatdmpany; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementad@gordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdseapenditures of the company are being madeiordgcordance with
authorizations of management and directors of timepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance lieggsckvention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, oras#ipn of the company’s assets that could havatenal effect on the financial
statements.
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Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolnover financial reporting, including the posdktip of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatetected on a timely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effeetiess of the internal control over financial rejpgrto future periods are subject to
the risk that the controls may become inadequataus= of changes in conditions, or that the degfreempliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all mategspects, the financial position of
Portland General Electric Company and subsidiasesf December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the resuliir operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the pegimded December 31, 2014 , in conformity with aatiog principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Als@unopinion, the Company maintained, in all mategapects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 2014 , based on the criteria establisheltiernal Controlintegrated Framewor
(2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidike Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 12, 2015
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PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Revenues, net $ 1,90C % 1,81C % 1,80¢
Operating expenses:
Purchased power and fuel 71z 757 72€
Generation, transmission and distribution 257 22t 211
Cascade Crossing transmission project — 52 —
Administrative and other 227 21¢ 21€
Depreciation and amortization 301 24¢ 24¢
Taxes other than income taxes 10¢ 10z 10z
Total operating expenses 1,607 1,60 1,50:
Income from operations 292 20¢€ 30z
Interest expense, net 96 101 10¢
Other income:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 37 13 6
Miscellaneous income, net 1 7 4
Other income, net 38 20 10
Income before income taxes 23t 12t 204
Income tax expense 61 21 64
Net income 174 104 14C
Less: net loss attributable to noncontrolling iatts Q) Q) (D)
Net income attributable to Portland General Electrc Company $ 17t 3 108 $ 141
Weighted-average shares outstanding (in thousands):
Basic 78,18( 76,82: 75,49¢
Diluted 80,49« 77,38¢ 75,64’
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 224 % 136 % 1.87
Diluted $ 218 $ 138 $ 1.87

See accompanying notes to consolidated financastistents.
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PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Net income $ 174 % 104 % 14C

Other comprehensive income (loss)—Change in congpiemsretirement

benefits liability and amortization, net of taxd<$@ in 2014 and ($1) in 2013 2 1 —
Comprehensive income 172 10t 14C

Less: comprehensive loss attributable to the nanelling interests Q) Q) (D]
Comprehensive income attributable to Portland Geneal Electric Company  $ 172 $ 106 $ 141

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#tistents.
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PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions)
As of December 31,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 127 ¢ 107
Accounts receivable, net 14¢ 14¢€
Unbilled revenues 93 104
Inventories, at average cost:
Materials and supplies 42 41
Fuel 40 24
Regulatory assets—current 13z 66
Other current assets 11t 103
Total current assets 69¢ 591
Electric utility plant:
Generation 3,74 2,96¢
Transmission 44( 417
Distribution 3,07¢ 2,94:
General 42¢€ 381
Intangible 47¢ 38¢
Construction work-in-progress 417 50¢
Total electric utility plant 8,57¢ 7,60:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,899 (2,729
Electric utility plant, net 5,67¢ 4,88(
Regulatory assets—noncurrent 494 464
Nuclear decommissioning trust 90 82
Non-qualified benefit plan trust 32 35
Other noncurrent assets 48 49
Total assets $ 7,04z % 6,101

See accompanying notes to consolidated financastistents.
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PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS, continued
(In millions, except share amounts)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Liabilities from price risk management activitiesarent
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Regulatory liabilities—noncurrent
Deferred income taxes
Unfunded status of pension and postretirement plans
Liabilities from price risk management activitieseaturrent
Asset retirement obligations
Non-qualified benefit plan liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (see notes)
Equity:
Portland General Electric Company shareholdersitgqu

Preferred stock, no par value, 30,000,000 shatb®rdzed; none issued and

outstanding

Common stock, no par value, 160,000,000 sharesandidl; 78,228,339 and
78,085,559 shares issued and outstanding as ohibere31, 2014 and 2013,

respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings

Total Portland General Electric Company sharehsldsguity

Noncontrolling interests’ equity
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#tistents.
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As of December 31,

2014 2013
15€¢ 17z
10¢€ 48
37¢ —
23¢€ 171
87:s 39¢
2,12¢ 1,91¢
90¢ 86&
62¢ 58¢
237 154
12z 141
11€ 10C
10t 101
21 25
5,131 4,281
91¢ 911
(7) ©)
1,00( 91&
1,911 1,81¢
= 1
1,911 1,82(
7,042 6,101
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PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Portland General Electric Company
Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated

Balance as of December 31, 2011

Shares issued pursuant to equity-
based plans

Stock-based compensation

Dividends declared ($1.075 per
share)

Net income (loss)

Balance as of December 31, 2012

Issuances of common stock, net ol
issuance costs of $3

Shares issued pursuant to equity-
based plans

Stock-based compensation

Dividends declared ($1.095 per
share)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income

Balance as of December 31, 2013

Shares issued pursuant to equity-
based plans

Stock-based compensation

Dividends declared ($1.115 per
share)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive loss

Balance as of December 31, 2014

Common Stock Other Noncontrolling

Comprehensive Retained Interests’

Shares Amount Loss Earnings Equity
75,362,995 $ 83 $ 6 $ 83: 3
193,31¢ 1 — — —
— 4 — — —
— - - (81) —
— — — 141 (@)
75,556,27 841 (6) 89:¢ 2
2,365,001 67 — — —
164,28" 1 — — —
— 2 — — —
— - - (85) —
— — — 10% (@)
— — 1 — —
78,085,55 911 5) 913 1
142,78( 1 — — —
— 6 — — —
— - - (89) —
— — — 17t (@)
— - @) — —
78,228,33 $ 91t % (7 % 1,00( —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financastistents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 174  $ 104 $ 14C
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 301 24¢ 24¢
Increase (decrease) in net liabilities from prisk management activities 45 (18 (A7%)
Regulatory deferrals—price risk management actisiti (45) 18 172
Cascade Crossing transmission project — 52 —
Deferred income taxes 39 11 47
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (37) (13 (6)
Pension and other postretirement benefits 33 37 27
Regulatory deferral of settled derivative instrutsen 10 7 9
Unrealized losses on non-qualified benefit plasttassets 7 3 3
Decoupling mechanism deferrals, net of amortization 6 (6) 2
Power cost deferrals, net of amortization — (6) ()]
Other non-cash income and expenses, net 12 18 17
Changes in working capital, net of effects fromgharse of 10% interest in
Boardman:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and unbillegimess 8 — 4
(Increase) decrease in margin deposits 2 37 34
Income tax refund received — — 8
(Decrease) increase in payables and accrued tiebili (13 14 1
Other working capital items, net (12) 17 1
Cash received to be returned to customers pursoidimé Residential
Exchange Program
13 1 —
Proceeds received from Trojan spent fuel legalesaént 6 44 —
Contribution to non-qualified employee benefit trus (8) (6) —
Contribution to voluntary employees’ benefit asation trust ©)] 3 2
Other, net (16) (15 (6)
Net cash provided by operating activities 51¢ 544 494
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (1,00%) (65€) (303)
Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust seesiriti (29 (26) (26)
Sales of nuclear decommissioning trust securities 17 25 23
Contribution to nuclear decommissioning trust (6) (44) —
Cash received in connection with purchase of 10&@st in Boardman, net o
cash paid 8 — —
Proceeds received from insurance recoveries 3 6 —
Proceeds from sale of properties 5 — 10
Other, net 5 3 2
Net cash used in investing activities (999 (692) (299




See accompanying notes to consolidated financaststents.
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(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt $ 58t % 38C $ —
Payments on long-term debt — (100 (200
Proceeds from issuances of common stock, net wéiese costs — 67 —
Borrowings on short-term debt — 35 —
Payments on short-term debt — (35) —
Maturities of commercial paper, net — an (13
Dividends paid (87) (84) (81)
Debt issuance costs 2 ©)] —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 49¢ 243 (199
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 20 95 6
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 107 12 6
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 127 % 107 % 12
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 86 % a0 $ 97
Income taxes 22 10 13
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Accrued capital additions 70 84 19
Accrued dividends payable 23 22 21
Accrued sales tax refund related to Tucannon Rexd Farm 23 — —
Preliminary engineering transferred to Constructiamk in progress from
Other noncurrent assets — 9 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#tistents.
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NOTE 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Nature of Operations

Portland General Electric Company (PGE or the Cawypis a single, vertically integrated electridititiengaged in the generation,
purchase, transmission, distribution, and retdd e&electricity in the state of Oregon. The Comypalso sells electricity and natural
gas in the wholesale market to utilities, brokarg] power marketers. PGE operates as a single sggnith revenues and costs
related to its business activities maintained araly@ed on a total electric operations basis. P@&fporate headquarters is located
in Portland, Oregon and its service area is locatgilely within Oregon. PGE’s service area incli@@incorporated cities, of whic
Portland and Salem are the largest, within a stppgoved service area allocation of approximatddp@ square miles. As of
December 31, 2014 , PGE served 842,273 retail mug®with a service area population of approxinyate8 million , comprising
approximately 46% of the state’s population.

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE had 2,600 employeis,780 employees covered under two separate agmrts with Local Union
No. 125 of the International Brotherhood of ElemtiWorkers. Such agreements cc743 and 37 employees and expire in
February 2016 and August 2017, respectively.

PGE is subject to the jurisdiction of the Publidlityt Commission of Oregon (OPUC) with respect ébail prices, utility services,
accounting policies and practices, issuances affges, and certain other matters. Retail priaesbased on the Company’s cost to
serve customers, including an opportunity to eameaonable rate of return, as determined by tHé@RFhe Company is also
subject to regulation by the Federal Energy RegafaCommission (FERC) in matters related to whdkesaergy transactions,
transmission services, reliability standards, redtgas pipelines, hydroelectric project licensiaggounting policies and practices,
short-term debt issuances, and certain other rsatter

Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of PGE and its wholly-owned subsidiaries twose variable interest
entities (VIES) where PGE has determined it isptimary beneficiary. The Company’s ownership studrdirect expenses and costs
related to jointly-owned generating plants are atstuded in its consolidated financial statemehitsercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

For entities that are determined to meet the defmbf a VIE and where the Company has determinisdthe primary beneficiary,
the VIE is consolidated and a noncontrolling insgie recognized for any third party interests.sThms resulted in the Company
consolidating entities in which it has less tha08&b equity interest. For further information, seméN16, Variable Interest Entities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordamth accounting principles generally acceptethenUnited States of America
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates adrgstions that affect the reported amounts of assd liabilities, and
disclosures of gain or loss contingencies, asefitite of the financial statements and the repanealints of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results couiified materially from those estimates.

Customer Billing Matter
In May 2013, PGE discovered that it had over-bili@dndustrial customer during a period of sevgealrs as a result of a meter
configuration error. An analysis of the data defead that the Company’s revenues were overstategppyoximately $3 million in

2012 and in 2011, $2 million in 2010, and $1 millio 2009. PGE
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believes the customer billing error is not matetgehny annual reporting period. The Company ctéecbthis matter in the second
quarter of 2013 as an out of period adjustment,randrded, as a reduction to Revenues, net, adéfuthhe customer in the amount
of $9 million .

Reclassifications

To conform with the 2014 presentation, PGE hasesified Margin deposits of $9 million with Othemrent assets in the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, B®&a8dition, the Company reclassified Renewabjasichent clause deferrals of
$1 million to Other non-cash income and expensesinithe operating activities section of the cdidsded statement of cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2012 and sepamatedented Cash received to be returned to cussgmuesuant to the Residential
Exchange Program of $1 million from Other non-ceslome and expenses, net for the year ended Dec&hp2013.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Highly liquid investments with maturities of threeonths or less at the date of acquisition are ifiedsas cash equivalents, of which
PGE had $120 million and $104 million as of Decen8ie 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at invoiced anso@sed on prices that are subject to federal (FERE state (OPUC)
regulations. Balances do not bear interest; howdater fees are assessed beginning 16 businesaffaythe invoice due date.
Accounts that are inactivated due to nonpaymentlaaeged-off in the period in which the receivabldeemed uncollectible, but no
sooner than 45 business days after the due d#te @ihal invoice.

Provisions for uncollectible accounts receivablatesl to retail sales are charged to Administrating other expense and are
recorded in the same period as the related revenithsan offsetting credit to the allowance forcoliectible accounts. Such
estimates are based on management’'s assessmieatpobbability of collection, aging of accountsaie@able, bad debt write-offs,
actual customer billings, and other factors.

Provisions for uncollectible accounts receivablatesl to wholesale sales are charged to Purchaseer@and fuel expense and are
recorded periodically based on a review of courtdypon-performance risk and contractual rightfféet when applicable. There
have been no material write-offs of accounts reatal® related to wholesale sales in 2014 , 20132844 .

Price Risk Management

PGE engages in price risk management activitidiging financial instruments such as forward, fi¢uswap, and option contracts
for electricity, natural gas, oil and foreign cureg. These instruments are measured at fair valdeecorded on the consolidated
balance sheets as assets or liabilities from pisgemanagement activities. Changes in fair vahgeracognized in the consolidated
statement of income, offset by the effects of ratprly accounting. Certain electricity forward cemtis that were entered into in
anticipation of serving the Company’s regulateditébad may meet the requirements for treatmedeuthe normal purchases and
normal sales scope exception. Such contracts amecarded at fair value and are recognized undemal accounting.

Price risk management activities are utilized asemic hedges to protect against variability ineotpd future cash flows due to
associated price risk and to manage exposure &ilitylin net power costs for the Company’s retaiktomers.
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In accordance with ratemaking and cost recoverggsses authorized by the OPUC, PGE recognizesulatery asset or liability to
defer unrealized losses or gains, respectivelyasivative instruments until settlement. At thediof settlement, PGE recognizes a
realized gain or loss on the derivative instrument.

Electricity sale and purchase transactions thaphysically settled are recorded in Revenues amdh@sed power and fuel expense
upon settlement, respectively, while transactitias &re not physically settled (financial transats) are recorded on a net basis in
Purchased power and fuel expense upon financidsent.

Pursuant to transactions entered into in connegtithPGE’s price risk management activities, tt@{pany may be required to
provide collateral with certain counterparties. Todateral requirements are based on the corneatis and commodity prices and
can vary period to period. Cash deposits providecb#lateral are included with Other current asgetie consolidated balance
sheets and were $11 million and $9 million as oféeber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Lettecsetfit provided as collateral
are not recorded on the Company’s consolidatechbalaheet and were $30 million and $29 millionfa@ecember 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

I nventories

PGE's inventories, which are recorded at averagg consist primarily of materials and suppliesuse in operations, maintenance
and capital activities and fuel for use in genaplants. Fuel inventories include natural gas.amid coal. Periodically, the
Company assesses the realizability of inventonptoposes of determining that inventory is recordethe lower of average cost or
market.

Electric Utility Plant
Capitalization Policy

Electric utility plant is capitalized at its origihcost, which includes direct labor, materials andplies, and contractor costs, as well
as indirect costs such as engineering, supervisimpjoyee benefits, and an allowance for funds dseiehg construction (AFDC).
Plant replacements are capitalized, with minor #@marged to expense as incurred. Periodic majortemance inspections and
overhauls at the Comparsygenerating plants are charged to expense aseédcsubject to regulatory accounting as applicabdest:

to purchase or develop software applications fariral use only are capitalized and amortized theestimated useful life of the
software. Costs of obtaining a FERC license forGbenpany’s hydroelectric projects are capitalizad amortized over the related
license period.

During the period of construction, costs expectedd included in the final value of the construcsdet, and depreciated once the
asset is complete and placed in service, are fitbsis Construction work-in-progress (CWIP) indgtie utility plant on the
consolidated balance sheets. If the project becamdmble of being abandoned, such costs are expémshe period such
determination is made. If any costs are expenbedCbmpany may seek recovery of such costs in mestprices, although there ¢
be no guarantee such recovery would be granted.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, PGE cti&@%2 million of costs previously included in CWigtated to the Cascade
Crossing Transmission Project (Cascade Crossingghwvas originally proposed as a 215-mile, 500tknsmission project
between Boardman, Oregon and Salem, Oregon. Baised opdated forecast of demand and future trag@misapacity in the
region, PGE determined in the second quarter 08 204t the original projections of transmissionagity limitations contemplated
in the Company’s 2009 Integrated Resource Plaaclkasowledged by the OPUC, were not likely to futtaterialize. As a result,
PGE and Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) watkeward refining the scope of the project and ateat a non-binding
memorandum of understanding (MOU) in May 2013.dnreection with the MOU, the parties explored a gtion under which
BPA could provide PGE with ownership of approxiniate 500 MW of transmission capacity rights. Aseault of the changed
conditions reflected in the MOU, PGE also suspermditting and development of Cascade

74




Table of Contents
PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continu ed

Crossing and charged the capitalized costs retat€hscade Crossing to expense in the second go&a&613. In October 2013, the
parties determined that they would not be able&zh an agreement on the financial terms for thpgsed ownership of
transmission capacity rights and, therefore, agte@iscontinue discussions on this option. The gamy has determined that, under
current conditions, the best option for meetingriasmsmission needs is to continue to acquire tn&son service offered under
BPA’s Open Access Transmission Tariff. PGE hasrd@teed that it will not seek recovery of these sost

PGE records AFDC, which is intended to represembmpany’s cost of funds used for constructioppses and is based on the
rate granted in the latest general rate case fatyelynds and the cost of actual borrowings fdotdends. AFDC is capitalized as
part of the cost of plant and credited to the ctidated statements of income. The average rate lms®{E was 7.4% in 2014 , and
7.5% in 2013 and in 2012 . AFDC from borrowed fum@s $22 million in 2014 , $7 million in 2013 , a®d million in 2012 and is
reflected as a reduction to Interest expense. AFRD equity funds was $37 million in 2014 , $13lioih in 2013 , and $6 milliom
2012 and is included in Other income, net.

Costs disallowed for recovery in customer priceany, are charged to expense at the time suchalisace is probable.
Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linéhod, based upon original cost, and includes dmat for cost of removal and
expected salvage. Depreciation expense as a perctet related average depreciable plant in semwias 3.6% in 2014 , 3.7% in
2013, and 3.8% in 2012 . Estimated asset retireneemoval costs included in depreciation expense w67 million in 2014 , and
$55 million in 2013 and in 2012 .

Periodic studies are conducted to update depregipirameters (i.e. retirement dispersion pattewerage service lives, and net
salvage rates), including estimates of asset naéint obligations (AROs) and asset retirement reinoysts. The studies are
conducted at a minimum of every five years anditeé with the OPUC for approval and inclusion ifudure rate proceeding. The
most recent depreciation study was completed faB2®ith an order received from the OPUC in Sepem2®14 authorizing new
depreciation rates effective January 1, 2015.

Thermal generation plants are depreciated usiifg-apan methodology which ensures that plant itneest is recovered by the
estimated retirement dates, which range from 202ZD69 . Depreciation is provided on the Companiter classes of plant in
service over their estimated average service lwegh are as follows (in years):

Generation, excluding thermal:

Hydro 87
Wind 27
Transmission 53
Distribution 40
General 13

The original cost of depreciable property unitd,afeany related salvage value, is charged to actated depreciation when prope
is retired and removed from service. Cost of rerhexpenditures are recorded against AROs or toraatated asset retirement
removal costs, included in Regulatory liabilitiésy, assets without AROSs.

Intangible plant consists primarily of computerta@fre development costs, which are amortized oitleerefive or ten years, and
hydro licensing costs, which are amortized overagglicable license term, which range from 30 to/&8rs. Accumulated
amortization was $191 million and $170 million december 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, witlbrization expense of $25
million in 2014 , and $22 million in 2013 and in12D. Future
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estimated amortization expense as of December@H & as follows: $35 million in 2015 ; $33 miltion 2016 ; $29 million in
2017 ; $28 million in 2018 ; and $22 million in ZD1

Marketable Securities

All of PGE's investments in marketable securitias|uded in the Norgualified benefit plan trust and Nuclear decomnoissig trust
on the consolidated balance sheets, are classsiédhding. These securities are classified asunemdt because they are not
available for use in operations. Trading securiiesstated at fair value based on quoted mariaagpmRealized and unrealized gains
and losses on the Naqualified benefit plan trust assets are include@iiner income, net. Realized and unrealized gaidda@sses c
the Nuclear decommissioning trust fund assetsem@rded as regulatory liabilities or assets, respg, for future ratemaking. The
cost of securities sold is based on the averagenwethod.

Regulatory Accounting
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

As a rate-regulated enterprise, the Company apmgdatory accounting, resulting in regulatoryeds®r regulatory liabilities.
Regulatory assets represent i) probable futurenteyassociated with certain actual or estimatets ¢bat are expected to be
recovered from customers through the ratemakinggs® or ii) probable future collections from cuséos resulting from revenue
accrued for completed alternative revenue progranosjded certain criteria are met. Regulatoryilides represent probable future
reductions in revenue associated with amountsatteaéxpected to be credited to customers throughetiemaking process.
Regulatory accounting is appropriate as long aseprare established by or subject to approval dgpendent third-party regulators;
prices are designed to recover the specific engargrcost of service; and in view of demand fovige, it is reasonable to assume
that prices set at levels that will recover costs be charged to and collected from customers. @mceegulatory asset or liability is
reflected in prices, the respective regulatory tagiskability is amortized to the appropriate linem in the consolidated statement of
income over the period in which it is included nicps.

Circumstances that could result in the disconticeasf regulatory accounting include i) increaseghpetition that restricts the
Company'’s ability to establish prices to recovexcific costs, and ii) a significant change in thenmer in which prices are set by
regulators from cost-based regulation to anothen fof regulation. PGE periodically reviews the efi of regulatory accounting to
ensure that its continued application is approeriBased on a current evaluation of the variou®fa@nd conditions, management
believes that recovery of the Company’s regulagmsets is probable.

For additional information concerning the Compamnggulatory assets and liabilities, see Note 6 uRegry Assets and Liabilities.
Power Cost Adjustment Mechanism

PGE is subject to a power cost adjustment mechaf@€AM) as approved by the OPUC. Pursuant to thaNPGhe Company can
adjust future customer prices to reflect a portibthe difference between each year's forecastédareable power costs (NVPC)
included in customer prices (baseline NVPC) andadiVPC. PGE is subject to a portion of the bussnisk or benefit associated
with the difference between actual NVPC and baseMiPC by application of an asymmetrical “deadbandhich ranges from $15
million below to $30 million above baseline NVPCVRC consists of i) the cost of power purchasedfaatiused to generate
electricity to meet PGE'retail load requirements, as well as the costtifed electric and natural gas financial consieait of whict
is classified as Purchased power and fuel in thegamy’s consolidated statements of income; and is niétwholesale sales, whic
are classified as Revenues, net in the consolidgdttements of income.
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To the extent actual NVPC, subject to certain adjests, is outside the deadband range, the PCAMdas for 90% of the excess
variance to be collected from or refunded to cugieamPursuant to a regulated earnings test, adefilhoccur only to the extent th
it results in PGE’s actual regulated return on gg{ROE) for that year being no less than 1% alibeeCompany’s latest authorized
ROE, while a collection will occur only to the emteéhat it results in PGE’s actual regulated ROEfiat year being no greater than
1% below the Company’s authorized ROE. PGE's aizhdrROE was 9.75% for 2014 , and 10% for 2013fan2012 .

Any estimated refund to customers pursuant to &N is recorded as a reduction in Revenues in thieg@any’s consolidated
statements of income, while any estimated colledtiom customers is recorded as a reduction intfased power and fuel expense.
A final determination of any customer refund oredtfion is made in the following year by the OPW@ugh a public filing and
review.

For 2014 , actual NVPC was below baseline NVPC bynllion , which is within the established deadaange. Accordingly, no
estimated refund to customers was recorded as @ iger 31, 2014 . A final determination regardimg 2014PCAM results will b
made by the OPUC through a public filing and revie\2015 .

For 2013, actual NVPC was above baseline NVPCIdyrillion , which is within the established deaddaange. Accordingly, no
estimated collection from customers was recordeaf &2cember 31, 2013 . A final determination relyag the 2013 PCAM results
was made by the OPUC through a public filing andew in 2014 , which confirmed no collection fromstomers pursuant to the
PCAM for 2013 .

For 2012 , actual NVPC was below baseline NVPC b illion , and exceeded the lower deadband tltdstt $15 million .
However, based on results of the regulated earn@sjsno estimated refund to customers was redas®f December 31, 2012 . A
final determination regarding the 2012 PCAM resulés made by the OPUC through a public filing aadew in 2013 , which
confirmed no refund to customers pursuant to tha@@r 2012 .

Asset Retirement Obligations

Legal obligations related to the future retiremeintangible long-lived assets are classified as AR® PGE’s consolidated balance
sheet. An ARO is recognized in the period in whitdh incurred if a reasonable estimate of faineatan be made. Due to the long
lead time involved until decommissioning activitmscur, the Company uses present value technicresibe quoted market prices
and a market-risk premium are not available. Thesemt value of estimated future dismantlement asbration costs is capitalized
and included in Electric utility plant, net on tbensolidated balance sheets with a correspondisgtdb ARO. Such estimates are

revised periodically, with actual expenditures dearto the ARO as incurred.

The estimated capitalized costs of AROs are degetiover the estimated life of the related asdgaith is included in Depreciation
and amortization in the consolidated statemenisazime. Changes in the ARO resulting from the pgessdi time (accretion) is
based on the original discount rate and recograsesh increase in the carrying amount of the ligdahd as a charge to accretion
expense, which is classified as Depreciation anorézation expense in the Company’s consolidatatkstents of income.

The difference between the timing of the recognitid the AROs’ depreciation and accretion expeasesthe amount included in
customers’ prices is recorded as a regulatory assetbility in the Company’s consolidated balamsteets. PGE had a regulatory
liability related to AROs in the amount of $39 naiti as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 . See NdRe@latory Assets and
Liabilities.

Contingencies

Contingencies are evaluated using the best infeomatvailable at the time the consolidated finalsiatements are prepared. Loss
contingencies are accrued, and disclosed if méterieen it is probable that an asset has been
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impaired or a liability incurred as of the finarc#atement date and the amount of the loss caeas®nably estimated. If a
reasonable estimate of probable loss cannot bentied, a range of loss may be established, inlwtése the minimum amount in
the range is accrued, unless some other amourihwiith range appears to be a better estimate. lcegtd incurred in connection
with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred.

A loss contingency will also be disclosed whers itéasonably possible that an asset has been edpaia liability incurred if the
estimate or range of potential loss is materiad frobable or reasonably possible loss cannatdmonably estimated, disclosure of
the loss contingency includes a statement to fifetteand the reasons.

If an asset has been impaired or a liability inedrafter the financial statement date, but prigdh&issuance of the financial
statements, the loss contingency is disclosedaternal, and the amount of any estimated losscsrded in the subsequent reporting
period.

Gain contingencies are recognized when realizechemdisclosed when material.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (AOCL) presknh the consolidated balance sheets is comprfdbe difference between
the non-qualified benefit plans’ obligations recizga in net income and the unfunded position.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized as electricity is deliveredistomers and include amounts for any serygo@gded. The prices charged to
customers are subject to federal (FERC), and g0##&JC) regulation. Franchise taxes, which are ctl# from customers and
remitted to taxing authorities, are recorded onasg basis in PGE'’s consolidated statements ofiecé&mounts collected from
customers are included in Revenues, net and amduat® taxing authorities are included in Taxé®pthan income taxes and
totaled $42 million in 2014 , $41 million in 2013nd $42 million in 2012 .

Retail revenue is billed monthly based on metedirggs taken throughout the month. Unbilled revemeesents the revenue earned
from the last meter read date through the lastofilye month, which has not been billed as of #st ¢lay of the month. Unbilled
revenue is calculated based on each merabtual net retail system load, the number of flays the last meter read date througt
last day of the month, and current retail custopmizes.

As a rate-regulated utility, there are situatiansvhich PGE recognizes revenue to be billed toornets in future periods or defers
the recognition of certain revenues to the penodtich the related costs are incurred or apprdoyethe OPUC for amortization. F
additional information, seeRegulatory Assets and Liabiliti&sn this Note 2.

Stock-Based Compensation

The measurement and recognition of compensatioarsefor all share-based payment awards, inclugistgicted stock units, is
based on the estimated fair value of the awards fain value of the portion of the award that ignoétely expected to vest is
recognized as expense over the requisite vestingddGE attributes the value of stock-based caorsgiion to expense on a
straight-line basis.

I ncome Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method, which requires the recognitiond#ferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequaenaietemporary differences between financial stat@ncarrying amounts and tax
bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax sasset liabilities are measured using enacted tas expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary défifees are expected

78




Table of Contents
PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continu ed

to be recovered or settled. The effect on defdiardssets and liabilities of a change in tax r&stescognized in income in current
and future periods that includes the enactment daig valuation allowance is established to redieterred tax assets to the “more
likely than not” amount expected to be realizeflinre tax returns.

As a rateregulated enterprise, changes in deferred taxsaasetliabilities that are related to certain propare required to be pass
on to customers through future prices and are elbog credited directly to a regulatory asset gulatory liability. These amounts
were recognized as net regulatory assets of $8®midnd $76 million as of December 31, 2014 an@i®0respectively, and will be
included in prices when the temporary differenea®rse.

Unrecognized tax benefits represent managementsoted treatment of a tax position taken in a fisedreturn, or planned to be

taken in a future tax return, that has not bedectfd in measuring income tax expense for findmeorting purposes. Until such
positions are no longer considered uncertain, P@&@dwnot recognize the tax benefits resulting fsumh positions and would rep
the tax effect as a liability in the Company’s coligated balance sheet.

PGE records any interest and penalties relatetctmme tax deficiencies in Interest expense andr@tleeme, net, respectively, in
the consolidated statements of income.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-R8yenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic GA6)J 2014-09), creates a new
Topic 606 and supersedes the revenue recognitipiregnents in Topic 60Revenue Recognitigrand most industry-specific
guidance throughout the Industry Topics of the @cation. ASU 2014-09 provides a five-step analydisransactions to determine
when and how revenue is recognized that consist}identify the contract with the customer; iieintify the performance
obligations in the contract; iii) determine thensaction price; iv) allocate the transaction pt@éhe performance obligations in the
contract; and v) recognize revenue when or as padhrmance obligation is satisfied. Companiestcamsition to the requirements
of this ASU either retrospectively or as a cumukateffect adjustment as of the date of adoptiong¢ivis January 1, 2017 for the
Company, with early adoption prohibited. The impawctthe Company’s consolidated financial positmnsolidated results of
operations, or consolidated cash flows of the adopif ASU 2014-09 is not known at this time.

NOTE 3: BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS
Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable is net of an allowance for liectible accounts of $6 million as of December 2014 and 2013 The following
is the activity in the allowance for uncollectildecounts (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Balance as of beginning of year $ 6 $ 5 $ 6
Increase in provision 6 6 6
Amounts written off, less recoveries (6) 5) @)
Balance as of end of year $ 6 $ 6 $ 5
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Trust Accounts
PGE maintains two trust accounts as follows:

Nuclear decommissioning tr— Reflects assets held in trust to cover generalmetiesioning costs and operation of the
Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (IS&RSHe Trojan nuclear power plant (Trojan), whigs closed in 1993. The
Nuclear decommissioning trust includes amountsct#d from customers less qualified expenditures ahy realized ar
unrealized gains and losses on the investmentstieidin. In 2014 and 2013, the Company receiveahifibn and $44 million ,
respectively, from the settlement of a legal mat@rcerning costs associated with the operatiagheofSFSI. Those funds were
deposited into the Nuclear decommissioning trust.delditional information concerning the legal regtsee Note 7, Asset
Retirement Obligations.

Nor-qualified benefit plan trust-Reflects assets held in trust to cover the ohbgatof PGE’s non-qualified benefit plans and
represents contributions made by the Company leslfigd expenditures plus any realized and unzedligains and losses on the
investment held therein.

The trusts are comprised of the following investtaexs of December 31 (in millions):

Nuclear Non-Qualified Benefit
Decommissioning Trust Plan Trust
2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash equivalents $ 65 % 50 % — % —
Marketable securities, at fair value:
Equity securities — — 6 8
Debt securities 25 23 — 1
Insurance contracts, at cash surrender value — — 26 26
$ Q0 % 82 $ 32 3 35

For information concerning the fair value measunetnoé those assets recorded at fair value helbertrusts, see Note 4, Fair Value
of Financial Instruments.
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Other Current Assets and Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Other current assets and Accrued expenses andatirent liabilities consist of the following (inilions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Other current assets:
Prepaid expenses $ 3¢ % 38
Current deferred income tax asset 33 42
Accrued sales tax refund related to Tucannon RNied Farm 23 —
Margin deposits 11 9
Assets from price risk management activities 6 13
Other 3 1
$ 118 $ 10z
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities:
Regulatory liabilities—current $ 6C 9 1
Accrued employee compensation and benefits 51 46
Accrued interest payable 26 23
Dividends payable 23 22
Accrued taxes payable 22 21
Other 54 58
$ 23¢9 171

NOTE 4: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

PGE determines the fair value of financial instratseboth assets and liabilities recognized andetagnized in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets, for which it is pcable to estimate fair value as of December 31420 2013 , and then classifies
these financial assets and liabilities based airavélue hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy isdito prioritize the inputs to the
valuation techniques used to measure fair values&lthree broad levels and application to the Cagnpee discussed below.

Level 1 Quoted prices are available in active marketsdentiical assets or liabilities as of the reportiage
Level 2 Pricing inputs include those that are directlyraliiectly observable in the marketplace as of éporting date
Level 3 Pricing inputs include significant inputs which ameobservable for the asset or liabi
Financial assets and liabilities are classifiethir entirety based on the lowest level of infattis significant to the fair value
measurement. The Company’s assessment of theisagitié of a particular input to the fair value meament requires judgment,
and may affect the valuation of fair value assat$labilities and their placement within the faalue hierarchy.
PGE recognizes transfers between levels in thesédire hierarchy as of the end of the reportingagkfor all of its financial

instruments. Changes to market liquidity conditjadhe availability of observable inputs, or changethe economic structure of a
security marketplace may require transfer of treisges between levels. There were
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no significant transfers between levels duringybars ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 , excegat ttemsfers from Level 3 to
Level 2 presented in this note.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities vehealues were recognized at fair value are asvislloy level within the fair value
hierarchy (in millions):

As of December 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Nuclear decommissioning trust
Money market funds $ — 3 65 $ —  $ 65
Debt securities:
Domestic government 7 7 — 14
Corporate credit — 11 — 11
Non-qualified benefit plan truét:
Equity securities:
Domestic 4 1 — 5
International 1 — — 1
Assets from price risk management activitie¥:
Electricity — 4 1 5
Natural gas — 2 — 2
$ 12 $ 90 $ 1 3 10z
Liabilities - Liabilities from price risk managemen
activities @©@:
Electricity $ — 3 32 % 8C $ 112
Natural gas — 95 21 11€
$ — 3 127 % 101 ¢ 22¢

(1) Activities are subject to regulation, with certgiamins and losses deferred pursuant to regulat@guating and included in regulatory asset
regulatory liabilities as appropriate.

(2) Excludes insurance policies of $26 milliowhich are recorded at cash surrender v

(3) For further information, see Note 5, Price Risk lsigeamen
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As of December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Nuclear decommissioning trust
Money market funds $ —  $ 56 % —  $ 58
Debt securities:
Domestic government 6 8 — 14
Corporate credit — 9 — 9
Non-qualified benefit plan truét:
Equity securities:
Domestic 4 3 — 7
International 1 — — 1
Debt securities - domestic government 1 — — 1
Assets from price risk management activitie3:
Electricity — 9 1 10
Natural gas — 4 — 4
$ 12 % 92 % 1 9 10¢
Liabilities - Liabilities from price risk managenten
activities™®:
Electricity $ — % c 3 117 $ 127
Natural gas — 40 23 63
$ —  $ 50 $ 14C % 19C

(1) Activities are subject to regulation, with certgiamins and losses deferred pursuant to regulat@guating and included in regulatory asset
regulatory liabilities as appropriate.

(2) Excludes insurance policies of $26 milliowhich are recorded at cash surrender v

(3) For further information, see Note 5, Price Risk [sigemen

Trust assets held in the Nuclear decommissioning and Non-queadifbenefit plan trusts are recorded at fair vaiuRGE's
consolidated balance sheets and invested in sesutiit are exposed to interest rate, credit aadteh volatility risks. These assets
are classified within Level 1, 2 or 3 based onftilewing factors:

Money market funds-PGE invests in money market funds that seek totaiai a stable net asset value. These funds invest
in high-quality, short-term, diversified money marknstruments, short-term treasury bills, fedaggncy securities,
certificates of deposits, and commercial paper. &amarket funds are classified as Level 2 in tlevidue hierarchy as the
securities are traded in active markets of sinsurities but are not directly valued using quatedket prices.

Debt securities—PGE invests in highly-liquid United States tregssecurities to support the investment objectividb®
trusts. These domestic government securities assified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy tuthe availability of
quoted prices for identical assets in an activeketaas of the reporting date.

Assets classified as Level 2 in the fair valuedriey include domestic government debt securisiesh as municipal debt,
and corporate credit securities. Prices are deteunby evaluating pricing data such as broker guiatesimilar securities
and adjusted for observable differences. Signifiggouts used in valuation models generally inclbodachmark yield and
issuer spreads. The external credit rating, coupta) and maturity of each security are considardle valuation as
applicable.
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Equity securities—Equity mutual fund and common stock securitiespaimarily classified as Level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy due to the availability of quoted prifesidentical assets in an active market as oféperting date. Principal
markets for equity prices include published exclearguch as NASDAQ and the New York Stock ExchaNy6SE). Certait
mutual fund assets included in commingled trustseparately managed accounts are classified a$ 2@véhe fair value
hierarchy as pricing inputs are directly or indthgobservable in the marketplace.

Assets and liabilities from price risk management activities are recorded at fair value in PGE’s consolidatddrize sheets and
consist of derivative instruments entered intol®y Company to manage its exposure to commodite pis& and foreign currency
exchange rate risk, and reduce volatility in nat/@ocosts for the Company’s retail customers. [eoliteonal information regarding
these assets and liabilities, see Note 5, Pride R@agement.

For those assets and liabilities from price riskhagement activities classified as Level 2, faiueak derived using present value
formulas that utilize inputs such as forward comityoprices and interest rates. Substantially athefse inputs are observable in the
marketplace throughout the full term of the instemnty can be derived from observable data, or ggpasted by observable levels at
which transactions are executed in the marketplastruments in this category include commodityvfards, futures and swaps.

Assets and liabilities from price risk managemeniviies classified as Level 3 consist of instrurtgefor which fair value is derived

using one or more significant inputs that are rastepvable for the entire term of the instrumenegehinstruments consist of longer
term commodity forwards, futures and swaps.
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Quantitative information regarding the significambobservable inputs used in the measurement afll3assets and liabilities from
price risk management activities is presented below

Significant Price per Unit
Fair Value Valuation Unobservable Weighted
Commodity Contracts Assets Liabilities Technique Input Low High Average
(in millions)
As of December 31, 2014:
Electricity
Discounted forward price
Electricity physical forward $ — 77 cash flow (per MWh) $ 1197 $122.7: $ 37.4:
Natural gas
Discounted forward price
Natural gas financial swaps — 21 cash flow (per Dth) 2.8¢ 4.8¢ 3.41
Electricity
Discounted forward price
Electricity financial futures 1 3 cash flow (per MWh) 11.97 39.2¢ 27.8¢
$ 1 % 101
As of December 31, 2013:
Electricity
Discounted forward price
Electricity physical forward $ — 10Z cash flow (per MWh) $ 96 $ 77.9t $ 40.1¢
Natural gas
Discounted forward price
Natural gas financial swaps — 23 cash flow (per Dth) 3.1€ 4.4¢ 3.71
Electricity
Discounted forward price
Electricity financial futures 1 14 cash flow (per MWh) 9.6 46.07 33.01
$ 1 3 14C

The significant unobservable inputs used in the Gamy’s fair value measurement of price risk managgrassets and liabilities are
long-term forward prices for commodity derivativE®r shorter term contracts, the Company usesnallgrdeveloped price curves
that employ the mid-point of the market’'s bid-apkesd derived using observed transactions in anteakets, as well as historical
experience as a participant in those markets. Tingsenally-developed price curves are validategiragt nonbinding broker quotes,
market data from a regulated exchange and benchmagkassessments from a pricing vendor. Foriceldager term contracts,
observable, liquid market transactions are notlalks for the duration of the delivery period. lich circumstances, the Company
uses internally-developed price curves, whichzdilbbservable data and regression techniquesitedeture prices. In addition,
changes in the fair value measurement of pricemakagement assets and liabilities are analyzedeas®lved on a monthly basis
the Company. This process includes analytical vewiechanges in commodity prices as well as prooesito analyze and identify
the reasons for the changes over specific repoptmipds.

The Company’s Level 3 assets and liabilities frameorisk management activities are sensitive toketgprice changes in the
respective underlying commodities. The significaotthe impact is dependent upon the magnitudaeptice change and the
Company’s position as either the buyer or selle¢hefcontract. Sensitivity of the fair value measoents to changes in the
significant unobservable inputs is as follows:

Significant Unobservable Input Position Change to Input Impact on Fair Value Measurement
Market price Buy Increase (decrease) Gain (loss)
Market price Sell Increase (decrease) Loss (gain)
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Changes in the fair value of net liabilities fromice risk management activities (net of assets fpoice risk management activities)
classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchgrevas follows (in millions):

Years Ended December

31,

2014 2013
Net liabilities from price risk management actegias of beginning of year $ 13¢ % 16
Net realized and unrealized losses 15 134
Settlements 4) 1)
Net transfers out of Level 3 to Level 2 (50 (20
Net liabilities from price risk management actegias of end of year $ 10C $ 13¢
12 ¢ 13:

Level 3 net unrealized losses that have been @itset by the effect of regulatory accounting $

* Includes realized losses, net of $3 million iM2Gnd $1 million ir?013.

Transfers into Level 3 occur when significant irgpused to value the Compasylerivative instruments become less observabdé
as a delivery location becoming significantly légaid. During the years ended December 31, 20142813 , there were no
significant transfers into Level 3 from Level 2ansfers out of Level 3 occur when the significaipits become more observable,
such as when the time between the valuation date¢rendelivery term of a transaction becomes shdP@E records transfers in and
transfers out of Level 3 at the end of the repgrpiariod for all of its derivative instruments. fiséers from Level 2 to Level 1 for i
Company'’s price risk management assets and liakilito not occur as quoted prices are not avaifablielentical instruments. As
such, the Compang’assets and liabilities from price risk managenraetivities mature and settle as Level 2 fair vaheasurement

Long-term debt is recorded at amortized cost in PGE’s consolidhtddnce sheets. The fair value of the Company’8&&hd
Pollution Control Bonds is classified as a Levéhi2 value measurement and is estimated basedeoquibted market prices for the
same or similar issues or on the current ratesaaffto PGE for debt of similar remaining maturiti€ke fair value of PGE’s
unsecured term bank loans is classified as Let@ ¥alue measurement and is estimated basededtetims of the loans and the
Company'’s creditworthiness. These significant ueolmble inputs to the Level 3 fair value measurdrirariude the interest rate
and the length of the loan. The estimated fair&alithe Company’s unsecured term bank loans appat&s their carrying value.

As of December 31, 2014 , the carrying amount oER®ng-term debt was $2,501 million and its estied aggregate fair value
was $2,901 million , consisting of $2,596 millionda$305 million classified as Level 2 and Levet&spectively, in the fair value
hierarchy. As of December 31, 2013, the carryimpant of PGE's long-term debt was $1,916 million és estimated aggregate
fair value was $2,074 million , all classified asvel 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

For fair value information concerning the Comparmession plan assets, see Note 10, Employee Benefit

NOTE 5: PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT

PGE patrticipates in the wholesale marketplacederoto balance its supply of power, which consi$ti$s own generating resources
combined with wholesale market transactions, totreeneeds of its retail customers, manage ristt,a@minister its existing long-
term wholesale contracts. Such activities include ind power purchases and sales resulting fremosgic dispatch decisions for

its own generation. As a result of this ongoing
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business activity, PGE is exposed to commaodityeprisk and foreign currency exchange rate risk re/laglverse changes in prices
and/or rates may affect the Company’s financialtmrs performance, or cash flow.

PGE utilizes derivative instruments in its wholesalectric utility activities to manage its expastw commodity price risk and
foreign exchange rate risk in order to manage Witjyaih net power costs for its retail customerfiese derivative instruments may
include forward, futures, swap, and option cong#ot electricity, natural gas, oil and foreign raumcy, which are recorded at fair
value on the consolidated balance sheet, with @dsimgfair value recorded in the statement of ineolm accordance with
ratemaking and cost recovery processes authoriz&aelOPUC, PGE recognizes a regulatory assetlpitity to defer the gains and
losses from derivative activity until settlementtloé associated derivative instrument. PGE maygdese certain derivative
instruments as cash flow hedges or may use derévatstruments as economic hedges. PGE does nagetig trading activities for
non-retail purposes.

PGE’s Assets and Liabilities from price risk managet activities consist of the following (in milts):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Current assets:
Commodity contracts:
Electricity $ 4 $ 9
Natural gas 2 4
Total current derivative assets 6 ® 13 o
Noncurrent assets:
Commodity contracts:
Electricity 1 1
Total noncurrent derivative assets 1@ 1@
Total derivative assets not designated as hedgstgiiments $ 7 $ 14
Total derivative assets $ 7 $ 14
Current liabilities:
Commodity contracts:
Electricity $ 54 $ 20
Natural gas 52 29
Total current derivative liabilities 10€ 49
Noncurrent liabilities:
Commodity contracts:
Electricity 58 107
Natural gas 64 34
Total noncurrent derivative liabilities 122 141
Total derivative liabilities not designated as hiadgnstruments $ 22¢ $ 19C
Total derivative liabilities $ 22t % 19C

(1) Included in Other current assets on the consolitda#tance shee
(2) Included in Other noncurrent assets on the cora@liibalance she
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PGE’s net volumes related to its Assets and Liabilitiesn price risk management activities resultingnfrits derivative transactior
which are expected to deliver or settle at varidates through 2035, were as follows (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Commodity contracts:
Electricity 16 MWh 14 MWh
Natural gas 127 Dth 10€ Dth
Foreign currency exchange $ 7  Canadian $ 7  Canadian

PGE has elected to report gross on the consolidetighce sheets the positive and negative exposesaking from derivative
instruments pursuant to agreements that meet firétaa of a master netting arrangement. In theecaf default on, or termination
of, any contract under the master netting arrangésnthese agreements provide for the net settleafietl related contractual
obligations with a counterparty through a singlgmant. These types of transactions may includedweivative instruments,
derivatives qualifying for scope exceptions, reables and payables arising from settled positiand,other forms of non-cash
collateral, such as letters of credit, which arel@ded from the offsetting table below.

Information related to price risk management liéie8 subject to master netting agreements is lisafe (in millions):

Gross Gross Net Gross Amounts Not Offset in
Amounts Amounts Amounts Consolidated Balance Sheets
Recognized Offset Presented Derivatives Cash Collateral® Net Amount
As of December 31, 2014
Liabilities:
Commodity contracts:
Electricity @ $ 55 % — % 55 % 55 $ — % —
Natural gas’ 17 — 17 17) — —
$ 72 % — 8 72 $ 72) $ — 3 —
As of December 31, 2013:
Liabilities:
Commodity contracts:
Electricity @ $ 91 $ — % 91 $ 91 $ — % —
Natural ga$”’ 1 — 1 (1) — —
$ 92 % — 3 92 $ 92 $ —  $ —

(1) As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Comanycollateral posted of $11 million and $7 milliorespectively, which consists entirely of
letters of credit.

(2) Included in Liabilities from price risk managent activities—current and Liabilities from pridek management activitiesrencurren

88




Table of Contents
PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continu ed

Net realized and unrealized losses on derivataestictions not designated as hedging instrumentdassified in Purchased pov
and fuel in the consolidated statements of inconteveere as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Commodity contracts:
Electricity $ 12 3 7€ % 5€
Natural Gas 72 28 19
Foreign currency exchange — 1 —

Net unrealized losses and certain net realizee$ogsesented in the table above are offset wiltgrstatement of income by t
effects of regulatory accounting. Of the net lassognized in net income for the years ended Dece81he€014 , 2013 , and 2012 ,
$83 million , $120 million , and $42 million , remgtively, have been offset.

Assuming no changes in market prices and inteagss rthe following table presents the year in vitlie net unrealized loss
recorded as of December 31, 2014 related to PGigative activities would be realized as a resfithe settlement of the
underlying derivative instrument (in millions):

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
Commodity contracts:
Electricity $ 5 $ 1¢ 3 6 $ 5 ¢ 5 % 22 $ 107
Natural gas 49 44 18 3 — — 114
Net unrealized loss $ 9% 3 63 $ 24 % 8 §$ 5 % 22 3% 221

PGE’s secured and unsecured debt is currently edtenyestment grade by Moody'’s Investors Servideddy’s) and Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Services (S&P). Should Moody’s an&&P reduce their rating on the Company’s unsetdebt to below
investment grade, PGE could be subject to reqbgstertain wholesale counterparties to post adwliperformance assurance
collateral, in the form of cash or letters of ctedased on total portfolio positions with eachtafse counterparties and some other
counterparties will have the right to terminateitlagreements with the Company.

The aggregate fair value of all derivative instrutsewith credit-risk-related contingent featureattivere in a liability position as of
December 31, 2014 was $216 million , for which @@mpany had posted $29 million in collateral, cetiisg primarily of letters of
credit. If the credit-risk-related contingent fe@si underlying these agreements were triggere@egber 31, 2014 , the cash
requirement to either post as collateral or s#étgeinstruments immediately would have been $21Bomi. As of December 31,
2014 , PGE had posted an additional $11 milliocash collateral for derivative instruments withanedit-risk-related contingent
features, which is classified as Margin depositthenCompany’s consolidated balance sheet.
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Counterparties representing 10% or more of Asgetd_@bilities from price risk management actistieere as follows:

Assets from price risk management activities:
Counterparty A
Counterparty B

Liabilities from price risk management activities:
Counterparty C
Counterparty D

As of December 31,

2014 2013
63% 53%
14 6
7% 59%
22% 43%
12 11
34% 54%

For additional information concerning the deterrimraof fair value for the Company’s Assets andhiliies from price risk

management activities, see Note 4, Fair Value ofifr¢ial Instruments.
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NOTE 6: REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The majority of PGES regulatory assets and liabilities are reflecteclistomer prices and are amortized over the périadhich the
are reflected in customer prices. Items not culyeeflected in prices are pending before the ratguy body as discussed below.

Regulatory assets and liabilities consist of tHefang (dollars in millions):

VXeighted As of December 31,
Re‘ﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁg 2014 2013
Life @ Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Regulatory assets:
Price risk managemefit 3years $ 10C $ 121 % 36 $ 14C
Pension and other postretirement plédns @ — 247 — 194
Deferred income taxe? @ — 86 — 76
Debt issuance cosfs 8 years — 15 — 17
Deferred capital projects 1 year 1¢ — 1€ 18
Other® Various 14 25 14 19
Total regulatory assets $ 13¢ $ 494 $ 66 $ 464
Regulatory liabilities:
Asset retirement removal co$ts @ $ — $ 804 $ — $ 747
Trojan decommissioning activities 2 years 23 34 — 49
Asset retirement obligatiorfs @ — 39 — 39
Other Various 37 29 1 30
Total regulatory liabilities $ 60 o $ 90€ $ 1o $ 86t

(1) As of December 31, 2014

(2) Does not include a return on investm

(3) Recovery expected over the average servieefiemployees. For additional information, seeeNitSummary of Significant Accounting
Policies.

(4) Recovery expected over the estimated lives of $ete

(5) Of the total other unamortized regulatory abs¢ances, a return is recorded on $33 million @ million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

(6) Included in rate base for ratemaking purpc

(7) Included in Accrued expenses and other currenilitiab on the consolidated balance she

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE had regulatory as$&83 million earning a return on investmentteg following rates: i) $33
million earning a return by inclusion in rate baige;$19 million at PGE’s cost of debt of 5.54%i), $9 million at the approved rate
for deferred accounts under amortization, rangingifl.47% to 1.77% , depending on the year of agbrand iv) $2 million at
PGE’s cost of capital of 7.65% .

Price risk managemeirrepresents the difference between the net unrédlisses recognized on derivative instrumentseeltd
price risk management activities and their reatimadnd subsequent recovery in customer pricestufthrer information regarding
assets and liabilities from price risk managemetivities, see Note 5, Price Risk Management.

Pension and other postretirement plaepresents unrecognized components of the berafis funded status, which are
recoverable in customer prices when recognize@impariodic benefit cost. For further informatisege Note 10, Employee Benefits.
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Deferred income taxerepresents income tax benefits resulting from piyprelated timing differences that previously flesvto
customers and will be included in customer pricesmthe temporary differences reverse. For fuitifermation, see Note 11,
Income Taxes.

Debt issuance cosrepresents unrecognized debt issuance costs rétatiedht instruments retired prior to the stipudateaturity
date.

Deferred capital projectrepresents costs related to four capital projéetswere deferred for future accounting treatmemsyant tc
the Company’s 2011 GRC. The recovery of these prajasts in customer prices began January 1, 2014.

Asset retirement removal corepresent the costs that do not qualify as AROsaaa component of depreciation expense allowed
in customer prices. Such costs are recorded aguéatery liability as they are collected in pricaad are reduced by actual removal
costs incurred.

Trojan decommissioning activitiespresents proceeds received for the settlementagfal matter concerning the reimbursement
from the United States Department of Energy ofatennonitoring costs incurred related to spent eacfuel at Trojan. The procee
will be returned to customers over a three-yeaiogdreginning January 1, 2015 and offset amourgsipusly collected from
customers in relation to Trojan decommissioningviigs. To conform with the 2014 presentation, P@Elassified tax credits to be
returned to customers related to the operatioh@f$FSI in the amount of $8 million from OtherTimjan decommissioning
activities in the noncurrent regulatory liabilitissction as of December 31, 2013 in the precedibig t

Asset retirement obligatiorrepresent the difference in the timing of recogmitof i) the amounts recognized for depreciation
expense of the asset retirement costs and accudtibe ARO, and ii) the amount recovered in cugtpprices.

NOTE 7: ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

AROs consist of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Trojan decommissioning activities $ 41 % 41
Utility plant 64 49
Non-utility property 11 10
Asset retirement obligations $ 11€ % 10C

Trojan decommissioning activitiespresents the present value of future decommisgjarosts for the plant, which ceased operation
in 1993. The remaining decommissioning activitigmprily consist of the longerm operation and decommissioning of the ISFE
interim dry storage facility that is licensed by tRuclear Regulatory Commission. The ISFSI is toseathe spent nuclear fuel at the
former plant site until an off-site storage fagilis available. Decommissioning of the ISFSI améfisite restoration activities will
begin once shipment of all the spent fuel to a &thbtates Department of Energy (USDOE) facilitgdmplete, which is not
expected prior to 2033.

In 2004, the co-owners of Trojan (PGE, Eugene W&tEtectric Board, and PacifiCorp, collectively eefed to as Plaintiffs) filed a
complaint against the USDOE for failure to acceyardg nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998. PGE hadacted with the USDOE for
the permanent disposal of spent nuclear fuel ieroi@ allow the final decommissioning of Trojan.elRlaintiffs paid for permanent
disposal services during the period of plant openat
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and have met all other conditions precedent. Thmfffs were seeking approximately $112 milliondamages incurred through
20009.

A trial before the U.S. Court of Federal Claims doded in 2012, with the U.S. Court of Federal @kissuing a judgment award
certain damages to the Plaintiffs. In 2013, thenfifés received $70 million for the settlementtbfs matter. The settlement
agreement also provided for a process to submihsléor allowable costs for the period 2010 thro2gii 3, and was subsequently
extended to cover 2014 through 2016. In 2014, tamiffs received $9 milliorfor costs related to 2010 through 2013. The Com
will seek recovery of any costs for subsequentopksrin future extensions of the agreement.

PGE has received proceeds of $50 million relatdtbtshare in this legal matter, with $44 millieceived in 2013 and $6 million
received in 2014. Such funds were deposited irdd\thclear decommissioning trust and recorded agualatory liability to offset
amounts previously collected in relation to Troglatommissioning activities. In December 2014, tiRJC issued an order on the
Company's 2015 GRC, authorizing the return of t&@ #illion of proceeds received related to thislagatter to customers over a
three-year period beginning January 1, 2015.

The ARO related to Trojan decommissioning actigiinot impacted by the outcome of this legal endiecause the proceeds
received in connection with the settlement of tgal matter are for past Trojan decommissionirggsand this ARO reflects future
Trojan decommissioning costs.

Utility plant represents AROs that have been recognized for dthgp@ny’s thermal and wind generation sites, digtiilm and
transmission assets where disposal is governedwigoemental regulation. During 2014, the Compamguired AROs totaling $8
million related to the three new generating resestr®ort Westward Unit 2 (PW2), Tucannon River Whiadm (Tucannon River),
and Carty Generating Station (Carty).

In December 2014 and 2013, PGE increased its AR®eckto Boardman by $7 millicand$4 million , respectively, in connection
with the acquisition of additional interests in Ba@an, with corresponding increases in the cosslghe plant, included in
Electric utility plant, net on the consolidateddrade sheet. For additional information regardirg@ompany’s acquisition of
additional interests in Boardman, see Note 17 tlysogwned Plant.

Nor-utility propertyprimarily represents AROs which have been recoghiaeportions of unregulated properties leaseithiral
parties.

The following is a summary of the changes in thenBany’s AROs (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Balance as of beginning of year $ 10C % 94 3 87
Liabilities incurred 15 4 —
Liabilities settled 3 4 3
Accretion expense 6 6 6
Revisions in estimated cash flows 2 — 4
Balance as of end of year $ 11€ $ 10C % 94

Pursuant to regulation, the amortization of utiptgnt AROs is included in depreciation expenseiaralistomer prices. Any
differences in the timing of recognition of costs financial reporting and ratemaking purposesdaferred as a regulatory asset or
regulatory liability. Recovery of Trojan decommimsing costs is included in PGE'’s retail prices,ragpmately $4 million annually,
with an equal amount recorded in Depreciation andrézation expense.
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PGE maintains a separate trust account, Nucleantleéssioning trust in the consolidated balance tsheefunds collected from
customers through prices to cover the cost of firdgcommissioning activities. Sed@fust Account$ in Note 3, Balance Sheet
Components, for additional information on the Nacldecommissioning trust.

The Oak Grove hydro facility and transmission aistirithution plant located on public right-of-waysdaon certain easements meet
the requirements of a legal obligation and willuieg removal when the plant is no longer in servite ARO liability is not
currently measurable as management believes thse tissets will be used in utility operations lierforeseeable future. Removal
costs are charged to accumulated asset retirem@olval costs, which is included in Regulatory ligilbs on PGE’s consolidated
balance sheets.

NOTE 8: CREDIT FACILITIES

PGE has credit facilities with an aggregate capaxfits700 million as follows:
* A $400 million revolving credit facility, whicks scheduled to terminate in November 2028¢

» A $300 million revolving credit facility, whicks scheduled to terminate in December 2017

Pursuant to the terms of the agreements, bothwiegptredit facilities may be used for general avgte purposes and as backup for
commercial paper borrowings, and also permit thedace of standby letters of credit. PGE may bofamwene , two , three , or six
months at a fixed interest rate established atitie of the borrowing, or at a variable interese fmr any period up to the then
remaining term of the applicable credit facilityotB revolving credit facilities contain two, oyear extensions subject to approva
the banks, require annual fees based on PGE's umeskcredit ratings, and contain customary covenantl default provisions,
including a requirement that limits consolidatedahtedness, as defined in the agreement, to 65.@8tabcapitalization. As of
December 31, 2014 , PGE was in compliance withabigenant with a 56.7% debt to total capital ratio.

PGE classifies any borrowings under the revolvirgglit facilities and outstanding commercial papeBaort-term debt in the
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 34, 2BGE had no borrowings or commercial paper antbhg, $20 million of
letters of credit issued, and an aggregate aveiledgbacity of $680 million under the revolving atédcilities.

In addition, PGE has two one-year $30 million letiEcredit facilities, under which the Company ceqguest letters of credit for
original terms not to exceed one year. The issuahsach letters of credit are subject to the applrof the issuing institution. As of
December 31, 2014 , $56 million of letters of ctdwid been issued under these facilities.

The Company has a commercial paper program undiehwthmay issue commercial paper for terms ofw@70 days, limited to the
unused amount of credit under the credit facilities

Pursuant to an order issued by the FERC, the Coyripaauthorized to issue short-term debt up to $8dlon through February 6,

2016 . The authorization provides that if utiligsats financed by unsecured debt are divestedatpeosportionate share of the
unsecured debt must also be divested.
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Short-term borrowings under these credit facilidesl related interest rates were as follows (doitamillions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Average daily amount of short-term debt outstanding $ — $ 9 $ 4
Weighted daily average interest rate * —% 0.4% 0.4%
Maximum amount outstanding during the year $ — % 54 % 44

*  Excludes the effect of commitment fees, facilitgdeand other financing fe

NOTE 9: LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following (in mitig):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
First Mortgage Bonds, rates range from 3.46% to 9.31%, with a weiglateerage rate of
o i o .
5.42% in 2014 and 5.62% in 2013, due at variousidirough 2048 $ 207§ 1,79t
Unsecured term bank loans rates range from 0.86% to 0.93%, due October 2015 30E —
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds 5% rate, due 2033 142 14¢
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds owned by PGE (21) 27
Total long-term debt 2,501 1,91¢
Less: current portion of long-term debt (375) —
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 2,12¢ $ 1,91¢

First Mortgage Bond—During 2014, PGE issued a total of $280 milliorFMBs, consisting of the following:
* In November , issued $80 million of 3.51% Sef®4Bs due 2024
e In October , issued $100 million of 4.44% Sef#4Bs due 2046 anc
* In August, issued $100 million of 4.39% Sefd8Bs due 2045

The Indenture securing PGE’s outstanding FMBs diiss a direct first mortgage lien on substantiall regulated utility property,
other than expressly excepted property. Intergziysble semi-annually on FMBs.

In January 2015, the Company issued $75 millioB.65% Series FMBs due 2030.

Unsecured term bank loarsDuring 2014, PGE obtained four term loans purst@aatcredit agreement in an aggregate principal
amount of $305 million . The term loan interestgatre set at the beginning of the interest péaogeriods ranging from one- to
six-months, as selected by PGE and are based drmtiton Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plussis points, with no other fe
The credit agreement expires October 30, 2015hathatime any amounts outstanding under the teanddoecome due and paya
Upon the occurrence of certain events of defaudt, Gompany’s obligations under the credit agreemmeayt be accelerated. Such
events of default include payment defaults to lesdeder the credit agreement, covenant defauttotrer customary defaults.
Interest is payable monthly on the unsecured teank foans.

Pollution Control Revenue Bon—In January 2014, PGE retired $6 million of PotmtiControl Revenue Bonds (PCBs). The
Company has the option to remarket through 203%#iemillion of PCBs held by PGE as of December28il4. At the time of an’
remarketing, the Company can choose a new intextesperiod that could
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be daily, weekly, or a fixed term. The new intemasé would be based on market conditions at the tf remarketing. The PCBs
could be backed by FMBs or a bank letter of crddgending on market conditions. Interest is paysbiri-annually on PCBs.

As of December 31, 2014 , the future minimum ppatpayments on long-term debt are as follows (ihans):

Years ending December 31:

2015 $ 37¢
2016 67
2017 58
2018 75
2019 30C
Thereafter 1,62¢

$ 2,501

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

Defined Benefit Pension P—PGE sponsors a non-contributory defined benefisipenplan. The plan has been closed to most nev
employees since January 31, 2009 and to all neviogress since January 1, 2012. No changes were todde benefits provided to
existing participants when the plan was closedete amployees.

The assets of the pension plan are held in adandgsare comprised of equity and debt instrumefitsf avhich are recorded at fair
value. Pension plan calculations include sevemalagtions which are reviewed annually and are @obas appropriate, with the
measurement date of December 31.

PGE made no contributions to the pension plan iM2®013 , and 2012 . No contributions to the enplan are expected in 2015

In 2014, the Company offered certain eligible gdpants of the pension plan the option to seldatrgp sum distribution. As a result
of this offering, PGE made lump sum distributiootling $16 million on July 1, 2014.

Other Postretirement BenefitsRGE has non-contributory postretirement healthlé@dsurance plans, as well as Health
Reimbursement Accounts (HRAS) for its employeediéctively “Other Postretirement Benefitsi the following tables). Employet
are covered under a Defined Dollar Medical Berfifin which limits PGE’s obligation pursuant to ffestretirement health plan by
establishing a maximum benefit per employee witiplegrees paying the additional cost.

The assets of these plans are held in voluntaryamees’ beneficiary association trusts and are c@ag of money market funds,
common stocks, common and collective trust fundstnerships/joint ventures, and registered investroempanies, all of which a
recorded at fair value. Postretirement health gadrisurance benefit plan calculations includeesavassumptions which are
reviewed annually with PGE’s consulting actuaried &rust investment consultants and updated a®ppate, with measurement
dates of December 31.

Contributions to the HRAs provide for claims byimets for qualified medical costs. For bargainingptoyees, the participants’
accounts are credited with 58% of the value ofetilmployee’s accumulated sick time as of April 302 stated amount per
compensable hour worked, plus 100% of their eatinegl off accumulated at the time of retirement. &ttive non-bargaining
employeesthe Company grants a fixed dollar amount that beitome available for qualified medical expensesiupeir retiremen
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Nor-Qualified Benefit Plans—The nongualified benefit plans (NQBP) in the following teb include obligations for a Supplemer
Executive Retirement Plan, and a directors pensiam, both of which were closed to new participant$997. The NQBP also
include pension make-up benefits for employeespheticipate in the unfunded Management Deferrech@msation Plan (MDCP).
Investments in a non-qualified benefit plan trasisisting of trust-owned life insurance policiesl anarketable securities, provide
funding for the future requirements of these pldigese trust assets are included in the accompagutgiibes for informational
purposes only and are not considered segregatecksinidted under current accounting standards.imfestments in marketable
securities, consisting of money market, bond, andtg mutual funds, are classified as trading aabrded at fair value. The
measurement date for the non-qualified benefitplamecember 31.

Other NQBP—In addition to the non-qualified benefit plansalissed above, PGE provides certain employees dsdewlirectors
with deferred compensation plans, whereby partitgpanay defer a portion of their earned compensalibese unfunded plans
include the MDCP and the Outside Directors’ Defér@»mpensation Plan. PGE holds investments in eguaiified benefit plan
trust which are intended to be a funding sourcdHese plans.

Trust assets and plan liabilities related to theBRQncluded in PGE’s consolidated balance sheetasfollows as of December 31
(in millions):

2014 2013
Other Other
NQBP NQBP Total NQBP NQBP Total
Non-qualified benefit plan trust $ ST 17 3 32 % 1€ $ 18 % 35
Non-qualified benefit plan liabilities * 25 8C 10t 22 79 101

* For the NQBP, excludes the current portion of$ilion in 2014 and in 2013, which is classifiedOther current liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

See “Trust Account$ in Note 3, Balance Sheet Components, for infoiamabn the Non-qualified benefit plan trust.

Investment Policy and Asset Allocat—The Board of Directors of PGE appoints an Investn@mmittee, which is comprised of
officers of the Company. In addition, the Boardadstablishes the Company’s asset allocation. ifrestment Committee is then
responsible for implementation and oversight ofahset allocation. The Company’s investment pdticyts pension and other
postretirement plans is to balance risk and retumough a diversified portfolio of equity securstjdixed income securities and other
alternative investments. The commitments to eaabschre controlled by an asset deployment andnsashgement strategy that
takes profits from asset classes whose allocatiams shifted above their target ranges to fundfitgreeyments and investments in
asset classes whose allocations have shifted kblintarget ranges.
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The asset allocations for the plans, and the tal{patation, are as follows:

As of December 31,
2014 2013
Actual Target * Actual Target *
Defined Benefit Pension Plan:
Equity securities 66% 67% 67% 67%
Debt securities 34 33 33 33
Total 10C% 10C% 10C% 10C%
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans:
Equity securities 66% 67% 58% 58%
Debt securities 34 33 42 42
Total 10C% 10% 10C% 10C%
Non-Qualified Benefits Plans:
Equity securities 18% 13% 24% 16%
Debt securities 1 7 1 9
Insurance contracts 80 80 75 75
Total 10C% 10C% 10C% 10C%

The target for the Defined Benefit Pension Rigpresents the mid-point of the investment targegje. Due to the nature of the investment
vehicles in both the Other Postretirement Bendéih® and the Non-Qualified Benefit Plans, thesgetarare the weighted average of the mid-
point of the respective investment target ranggsaed by the Investment Committee. Due to the owketised to calculate the weighted
average targets for the Other Postretirement BeRkfhs and Non-Qualified Benefit Plans, reportectentages are affected by the fair
market values of the investments within the pools.

The Company’s overall investment strategy is totritee goals and objectives of the individual pldmsugh a wide diversification

of asset types, fund strategies, and fund managqusty securities primarily include investmentsass the capitalization ranges and
style biases, both domestically and internation&llyxed income securities include, but are nottkahito, corporate bonds of
companies from diversified industries, mortgagekledcsecurities, and U.S. Treasuries. Other typ@svektments include
investments in hedge funds and private equity fuhdsfollow several different strategies.
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The fair values of the Company’s pension plan assedl other postretirement benefit plan assetssst @ategory are as follows (in
millions):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As of December 31, 2014:
Defined Benefit Pension Plan assets:
Money market funds $ — 3 6 $ — % 6
Equity securities:
Domestic $ 42  $ 14€ % — 3 18¢
International — 171 — 171
Debt securities:
Domestic government and corporate credit — 197 — 197
Private equity funds — — 29 29
$ 42 % 52C $ A 591
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans assets:
Money market funds $ — 3 6 $ — 3 6
Equity securities:
Domestic 10 1 — 11
International 10 — — 10
Debt securities—Domestic government 5 — — 5
$ 25 8 7 % — % 32
As of December 31, 2013:
Defined Benefit Pension Plan assets:
Equity securities:
Domestic $ 166 $ 18§ — % 18-
International 18t — — 18t
Debt securities:
Domestic government and corporate credit — 181 — 181
Corporate credit 14 — — 14
Private equity funds — — 31 31
$ 36 % 20C ¢ 31 % 59¢
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans assets:
Money market funds $ —  $ 1 ¢ — 3 1C
Equity securities:
Domestic 8 2 — 10
International 9 — — 9
Debt securities—Domestic government 3 — — 3
$ 2C $ 12 % — 3 32

An overview of the identification of Level 1, 2,&8 financial instruments is provided in Note 4irM&alue of Financial Instrument
The following methods are used in valuation of easbet class of investments held in the pensiorotiie postretirement benefit
plan trusts.

Money market fun— PGE invests in money market funds that seek to taiaia stable net asset value. These funds inwvdsgh-
quality, short-term, diversified money market instients, short term treasury bills, federal ageecysties, certificates of deposit,
and commercial paper. Money market funds held éntithsts are classified as Level 2 instrumentbexg are traded in an active
market of similar securities but are not directijued using quoted prices.
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Equity securitie— Equity mutual fund and common stock securitiesctassified as Level 1 securities as pricing in@usbased on
unadjusted prices in an active market. Principaketa for equity prices include published exchargge as NASDAQ and NYSE.
Mutual fund assets included in commingled trustsegrarately managed accounts are classified as 2eeeurities due to pricing
inputs that are not directly or indirectly obsereain the marketplace.

Debt securitie— PGE invests in highly-liquid United States treasamyg corporate credit mutual fund securities tqsuipthe
investment objectives of the trusts. These seegriie classified as Level 1 instruments due thitjidy observable nature of prici
in an active market.

Fair values for Level 2 debt securities, includingnicipal debt and corporate credit securities,tgame-backed securities and asset-
backed securities are determined by evaluatingngridata, such as broker quotes, for similar séearadjusted for observable
differences. Significant inputs used in valuatiood®ls generally include benchmark yield and isspeeads. The external credit
rating, coupon rate, and maturity of each secuaig/considered in the valuation if applicable.

Private equity fun—PGE invests in a combination of primary and seconfiand-of-funds which hold ownership positions in
privately held companies across the major domasiicinternational private equity sectors, includiug not limited to, venture
capital, buyout and special situations. Privatdtggavestments are classified as Level 3 secwritiee to fund valuation
methodologies that utilize discounted cash flowtkeacomparable and limited secondary market pgitindevelop estimates of
fund valuation. PGE valuation of individual fundrfsemance compares stated fund performance agaudished benchmarks.

Changes in the fair value of assets held by thsiparplan classified as Level 3 in the fair valierérchy, which consists of Private
equity funds, were as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013
Level 3 balance as of beginning of year $ 31 $ 32
Unrealized gains, net 2 4
Realized gains (losses), net 3 2
Sales, net (7) ©)]
Level 3 balance as of end of year $ 29§ 31
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The following tables provide certain informationtivrespect to the Company’s defined benefit penglian, other postretirement
benefits, and non-qualified benefit plans as of lndhe years ended December 31, 2014 and 20#8rmation related to the Other
NQBP is not included in the following tables (dedlan millions):

Defined Benefit Pension Other Postretirement Non-Qualified
Plan Benefits Benefit Plans
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Benefit obligation:

As of January 1 $ 708 $ 726 $ 77 $ 84 % 24 % 27
Service cost 15 17 2 2 — —
Interest cost 34 30 4 3 1 1
Participants’ contributions — — 1 2 — —
Actuarial (gain) loss 72 (38) 4 9 5 2
Contractual termination benefit: — — 1 1 — —
Benefit payments (48) (32) (6) (6) (©)] 2
Administrative expenses (D) — — — — —

As of December 31 $ 771 $ 70t $ 83 $ 77 0% 27 % 24

Fair value of plan assets:

As of January 1 $ 50¢ $ 537 $ 32 $ 28 % 1€ % 15
Actual return on plan assets 44 91 1 5 1 3
Company contributions — — 4 3 1 —
Participants’ contributions — — 1 2 — —
Benefit payments (48) (32 (6) (6) (©)] 2
Administrative expenses (D) — — — — —

As of December 31 $ 501 $ 59¢€ $ 32 $ 32 % 15 % 16

Unfunded position as of

December 31 $ (18¢) $ (109 $ 1) $ 45 % 12 $ (8)
Accumulated benefit plan obligation

as of December 31 $ 691 $ 631 N/A N/A $ 27 % 24
Classification in consolidated

balance sheet:

Noncurrent asset $ —  $ — 3 — $ — 3 15 3 16

Current liability — — — — 2 2

Noncurrent liability (18¢€) (109 (52) (45) (25) (22
Net liability $ (18¢) $ (109 $ (51) $ 45 % 12) $ (8)

Amounts included in comprehensive
income:

Net actuarial (gain) loss $ 67 $ 89 % 5 $ 1y s 5 8 (1)

Amortization of net actuarial loss ()] (24) D D (0] Q)

Amortization of prior service cost — — (D) D — —

$ 5 $ (113 % 3 $ 13 % 4 % 2

Amounts included in AOCL*:
Net actuarial loss $ 23¢  $ 186 $ 1C $ 6 $ 12 $ 9
Prior service cost — — 1 2 — —
$ 23 % 18¢ $ 11 $ 8 $ 12 % 9
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Defined Benefit Pension Other Postretirement Non-Qualified
Plan Benefits Benefit Plans
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assumptions used:
Discount rate for benefit obligatio 4.02% 4.84% 3.07% - 3.4€% - 4.02% 4.84%
4.1(% 4.9€%
Discount rate for benefit cost 4.84% 4.24% 3.4€% - 2.71% - 4.84% 4.24%
4.9¢% 4.1%%

Weighted average rate of

compensation increase for benefi

obligation 3.65% 3.65% 4.58% 4.58% N/A N/A
Weighted average rate of

compensation increase for benefit

cost 3.65% 3.65% 4.58% 4.58% N/A N/A
Long-term rate of return on plan
assets for benefit obligation 7.5(% 7.5(% 6.37% 6.4€% N/A N/A
Long-term rate of return on plan
assets for benefit cost 7.5(% 8.25% 6.4€% 5.8%% N/A N/A

Amounts included in AOCL related to the Compangiefined benefit pension plan and other postratire benefits are transferred to

Regulatory assets due to the future recoveralfitity retail customers. Accordingly, as of the baksheet date, such amounts are includ
Regulatory assets.

Net periodic benefit cost consists of the followiog the years ended December 31 (in milliol

Defined Benefit Other Postretirement Non-Qualified

Pension Plan Benefits Benefit Plans
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Service cost $ 158 $ 17 $ 14 $ 2 3 2 3 2 $ — §$ — $ —
Interest cost on benefit obligation 34 3C 31 4 3 3 1 1 1
Expected return on plan assets (39) (40) (41) 2 (D) (D) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost — — — 1 1 1 — — —
Amortization of net actuarial loss 17 24 17 1 1 1 1 1 1
Net periodic benefit cost $ 27 % 31 $ 21 % 6 $ 6 $ 6 % 2 % 2 % 2

PGE estimates that $23 million will be amortizeahfrAOCL into net periodic benefit cost in 2015 nsisting of a net actuarial loss
of $20 million for pension benefits, $1 million fabn-qualified benefits and $1 million for otherspretirement benefits, and prior
service cost of $1 milliofor other postretirement benefits. Amounts relatethe pension and other postretirement benef@otset
with the amortization of the corresponding regulaiEsset.
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The following table summarizes the benefits expmbtdebe paid to participants in each of the nesd fiears and in the aggregate for
the five years thereafter (in millions):

Payments Due

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 - 2024

Defined benefit pension plan  $ 3 3 37 % 38 % 4C % 41 % 221
Other postretirement benefits 5 5 5 5 5 26
Non-qualified benefit plans 2 2 2 2 3 9
Total $ 42 3 44 3 45 9 47 9 48 9 25¢€

All of the plans develop expected long-term rateeturn for the major asset classes using longrteistorical returns, with
adjustments based on current levels and forecastflation, interest rates, and economic growtlsdAincluded are incremental ra
of return provided by investment managers whosemstare expected to be greater than the marketkiagh they invest.

For measurement purposes, the assumed healthasreend rates, which can affect amounts repddethe health care plans, were
as follows:

» For 2014, 7% annual rate of increase in thecppita cost of covered health care benefits waisnasd for 2015 , and
assumed to decrease 0.5% per year thereafterjmgdi in 2019;

* For 2013, 7.5% annual rate of increase in #recppita cost of covered health care benefitsasasmed for 2014 , and
assumed to decrease 0.5% per year thereafterjmgdi¥b in 2019; and

» For 2012, 8% annual rate of increase in thecppita cost of covered health care benefits waisnasd for 2013 , and
assumed to decrease 0.5% per year thereafterjmgei¥b in 2019.

A one percentage point increase or decrease iabibree health care cost assumption would have neriakimpact on total service
or interest cost, or on the postretirement bewéligation.

401(K) Retirement Savings Plan

PGE sponsors a 401(k) Plan that covers substgrgihkémployees. For eligible employees who arescett by PGES defined benet
pension plan, the Company matches employee cotitiitsuup to 6% of the employexhase pay. For eligible employees who are
covered by PGE’s defined benefit pension planQbmpany contributes 5% of the employee’s baseysaldrether or not the
employee contributes to the 401(k) Plan, and alatches employee contributions up to 5% of the eygais base pay.

For the majority of bargaining employees who afgjestt to the International Brotherhood of Electridéorkers Local 125
agreements the Company contributes an additionadfii¥te employee’s base salary, whether or noethployee contributes to the
401(k) Plan.

All contributions are invested in accordance witpéoyees’ elections, limited to investment optiansilable under the 401(k) Plan.
PGE made contributions to employee accounts of§illdn in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 .
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NOTE 11: INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense consists of the following (itioms):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current:

Federal $ 20 % 10 % 16
State and local 2 — 1
22 10 17

Deferred:
Federal 26 4 30
State and local 13 7 17
39 11 47
Income tax expense $ 61 $ 21 % 64

The significant differences between the U.S. feldetedutory rate and PGE's effective tax rate foamcial reporting purposes are as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal statutory tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Federal tax credits (11.9 (21.9) (11.9)
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 3.6 3.4 3.k
Flow through depreciation and cost basis difference (2.9 2.8 24
Adjustment to deferred taxes for change in blermedposite state
tax rate — — 2.€
Other 0.€ (2.6) (0.6

Effective tax rate 26.C% 16.€ % 31.1%
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities cortdishe following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Deferred income tax assets:
Employee benefits $ 161 $ 122
Price risk management 88 71
Regulatory liabilities 48 33
Tax credits 13 51
Other 1 —
Total deferred income tax assets 311 277
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization 69:< 64€
Regulatory assets 21C 17t
Total deferred income tax liabilities 90z 821
Deferred income tax liability, net $ (592) % (544
Classification of net deferred income taxes:
Current deferred income tax asset * $ 33 % 42
Noncurrent deferred income tax liability (625) (58¢€)
$ (592) % (549

* Included in Other current assets in the constdiddalance sheets.

To conform with the 2014 presentation, the Compaciassified $17 milliorio Regulatory liabilities from Other in the 201¥eleec
income tax assets section of the preceding table.

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE has federal and stateredit carryforwards of $10 million and $3 ki , respectively, which will
expire at various dates from 2021 through 2036 .

PGE believes that it is more likely than not thatdeferred income tax assets as of December 34, &8d 2013 will be realized;
accordingly, no valuation allowance has been reamhréhs of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , PGE hadreragnized tax benefits.

PGE and its subsidiaries file consolidated fedm@me tax returns. The Company also files staterire tax returns in certain
jurisdictions, including Oregon, California, Montgrand certain local jurisdictions. The Internal/®sue Service (IRS) hi
completed its examination of all tax years thro@@ia0 and all issues were resolved related to theaes. The Company does not
believe that any open tax years for federal oestaiome taxes could result in any adjustmentsviloald be significant to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further guidance was issued during 2014 that @drifnal regulations issued on September 13, 2E@rding the deduction and
capitalization of expenditures related to tangjireperty. The final regulations under Internal Rewe Code Sections 162, 167 and
263(a) apply to amounts paid to acquire, producenprove tangible property, as well as dispos#iof such property and have b
adopted by PGE as of the January 1, 2014 effedtite. The adoption of these regulations, includiregconsideration of subsequent
guidance, did not have a material impact on the @omw’'s consolidated financial position, consolidatesults of operations, or
consolidated cash flows.

House of Representatives Bill 5771—The Tax Incré&reeention Act of 2014 was signed into law on Delger 19, 2014. PGE has
examined the new law and while the Company intéadake advantage of some of the provisions, neigian will materially
impact its consolidated financial position.
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NOTE 12: EQUITY-BASED PLANS
Equity Forward Sale Agreement

PGE entered into an equity forward sale agreentefbA) in connection with a public offering of 1101000 shares of its common
stock in June 2013. In connection with such publffering, the underwriters exercised their oveotient option in full and PGE
issued 1,665,000 shares of its common stock foprmeteeds of $47 million . Pursuant to the termthefEFSA, a forward
counterparty borrowed 11,100,000 shares of R@Bmmon stock from third parties in the open miaakel sold the shares to a gr«

of underwriters for $29.50 per share, less an wadigmg discount equal to $0.96 per share. The amdters then sold the shares in a
public offering. PGE receives proceeds from the shicommon stock when the EFSA is physically sdt{described below), and at
that time PGE issues new shares of common stockemodds the proceeds in equity. Through DecembgP@14, the Company h
issued 700,000 shares of its common stock purdaahe EFSA for net proceeds of $20 million .

Under the terms of the EFSA, PGE may elect toes#i# equity forward transactions by means ofhysical; ii) cash; or iii) net
share settlement, in whole or in part, at any timer prior to June 11, 2015, except in specifiecLienstances or events that would
require physical settlement. To the extent thatrihesactions are physically settled, PGE wouldeogired to issue and deliver
shares of PGE common stock to the forward countgrpathe then applicable forward sale price. Tdrevard sale price was

initially determined to be $29.50 per share attitime the EFSA was entered into, and the amounasii ¢o be received by PGE upon
physical settlement of the EFSA is subject to ¢erajustments in accordance with the terms oBREA.

The EFSA had no initial fair value since it wasezatl into at the then market price of the commookstAccordingly, PGE
concluded that the EFSA was an equity instrument¢hviioes not qualify as a derivative because the/AEwas indexed to the
Company’s stock. PGE anticipates settling the EB88ugh physical settlement on or before June Q152

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company could haysipally settled the EFSA by delivering 10,400,8b@res to the forward
counterparty in exchange for cash of $275 millibm addition, at December 31, 2014 , the Compamydccbave elected to make a
cash settlement by paying approximately $119 nmillior a net share settlement by delivering appnately 3,135,000 shares of
common stock. To the extent that PGE makes a qasétshare settlement, the Company would receivadadlitional proceeds from
the public offering.

Prior to settlement, the potentially issuable shg@suant to the EFSA will be reflected in PGHlatdd earnings per share
calculations using the treasury stock method. Utldemmethod, the number of shares of PGE’s common

stock used in calculating diluted earnings peresiiar a reporting period would be increased bynimmber of shares, if any, that
would be issued upon physical settlement of the/EESs the number of shares that could be purchag®&GE in the market with
the proceeds received from issuance (based orvéiiage market price during that reporting period).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

PGE has an employee stock purchase plan (ESPR;, whith a total of 625,000 shares of the Compaogtamon stock may be
issued. The ESPP permits all eligible employegaitchase shares of PGE common stock through regayeioll deductions, which
are limited to 10% of base pay. Each year, employesy purchase up to a maximum of $25,000 in constack (based on fair
value on the purchase date) or 1,500 shares, wieclieless. There are two six-month offering pesieach year, January 1 through
June 30 and July 1 through December 31, duringhwligible employees may purchase shares of PGEnwonstock at a price
equal to 95% of the fair value of the stock onphiechase date, the last day of the offering peradof December 31, 2014 , there
were 427,021 shares available for future issuancgsupnt to the ESPP.

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan

PGE has a Dividend Reinvestment and Direct StockHase Plan (DRIP), under which a total of 2,500 ,8ares of the Company’s
common stock may be issued. Under the DRIP, investay elect to buy shares of the Company’s comshack or elect to reinvest
cash dividends in additional shares of the Compaogimmon stock. As of December 31, 2014 , there 81,110 shares
available for future issuance pursuant to the DRIP.

NOTE 13: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE



Pursuant to the Portland General Electric Comp&96 Stock Incentive Plan (the Plan), the Company gnant a variety of equity-
based awards, including restricted stock units (RSuith time-based vesting conditions (time-bas&iB) and performance-based
vesting conditions (performance-based RSUs) toeraployee directors, officers and certain key emgédsy Service requirements
generally must be met for RSUs to vest. For eaahtgthe number of RSUs is determined by dividheyspecified award amount
each grantee by the closing stock price on theafageant. RSU activity is summarized in the foliogy table:

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Units Fair Value
Outstanding as of December 31, 2011 491,40 $ 18.5¢
Granted 186,49! 24.7:
Forfeited (22,94") 18.9¢
Vested (214,391 15.67
Outstanding as of December 31, 2012 440,56: 22.5¢
Granted 183,07: 29.2¢
Forfeited (7,007 27.1¢
Vested (185,536 20.2(
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 431,09( 26.31
Granted 203,41( 31.4¢
Forfeited (12,279 29.9(
Vested (158,329 24.9¢
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 463,89 28.9¢

A total of 4,687,500 shares of common stock weggstered for future issuance under the Plan, oEwBi 554,884 shares remain
available for future issuance as of December 31420
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Outstanding RSUs provide for the payment of oneédeind Equivalent Right (DER) for each stock uniER» represent an amount
equal to dividends paid to shareholders on a SfdP&E’s common stock and vest on the same schadulee RSUs. The DERs are
settled in cash (for grants to non-employee dimsytor shares of PGE common stock valued eithiéreatlosing stock price on the
vesting date (for performance-based RSUs) or diddeayment date (for all other grants). The casimfthe settlement of the DERs
for non-employee directors may be deferred undetetms of the Portland General Electric Comparg620utside Directors’
Deferred Compensation Plan.

Time-based RSUs&st in either equal installments over a one-yesiod on the last day of each calendar quarter, averee-year
period on each anniversary of the grant date, tireaénd of a three-year period following the gidaie. The fair value of time-based
RSUs is measured based on the closing price of @@&non stock on the date of grant and chargedripeasation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite servicequkfor the entire award. The total value of timedhRSUs vested was less than $1
million for the years ended December 31, 2014 320dnd 2012 .

Performanc-based RSUsest if performance goals are met at the end bfeeyear performance period. For grants prior to Md;
2013, such goals include return on equity relativallowed return on equity, and regulated asset lggowth. Grants on and after
March 5, 2013 are based on three equally-weightegics: return on equity relative to allowed retomequity; regulated asset
growth; and a relative total shareholder returnRY8f PGE’s common stock as compared to the Edidecitric Institute Regulated
Index (EEI Index) during the performance periodstfeg of performance-based RSUs is calculated hyiptying the number of
units granted by a performance percentage detednbipéhe Compensation and Human Resources Commnitle&E’s Board of
Directors. The performance percentage is calculbéseéd on the extent to which the performance goalset. In accordance with
the Plan, however, the committee may disregardfseiothe effect of extraordinary, unusual or neatrring items in determining
results relative to these goals. Based on thenatiit of the performance goals, the awards carerilogh zero to 150% of the grant.

For the return on equity and regulated asset basetly portions of the performance-based RSUsMaline is measured based on the
closing price of PGE common stock on the date afhgr~or the TSR portion of the performance-bassdf fair value is

determined using a Monte Carlo simulation modéizinig actual information for the common share®&E and its peer group for
the period from the beginning of the performancegokto the grant date and estimated future stathtility over the remaining
performance period. The fair value of stock-baswdpensation related to the TSR component of pedoo®based RSUs was
determined using the Monte Carlo model and thefdlg weighted average assumptions:

2014 2013
Risk-free interest rate 0.6% 0.2%
Expected dividend yield —% —%
Expected term (in years) 3.C 3.C
Volatility 124% - 23.0% 121% - 251%

The fair value of performance-based RSUs is chairgedmpensation expense on a straight-line basisthe requisite service
period for the entire award based on the numbehafes expected to vest. Stock-based compensapense was calculated
assuming the attainment of performance goals tbatdwallow the weighted average vesting of 134.20%7.5% , and 112.0% of
awarded performance-based RSUs for 2014 , 201@ 2@h?2 , respectively, with an estimated 5% foufgitrate.

The total value of performance-based RSUs vestadd®anillion for the years ended December 31, 2013 , and 2012 .
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Stock-based compensatimas $6 million for the year ended December 31, 2C#d $4 million in 2013 and in 2012 , which is
included in Administrative and other expense indbesolidated statements of income. Such amoufi&s &fiom those reported in
the consolidated statements of equity for Stocleba®mpensation due primarily to the impact fromititome tax payments made
on behalf of employees. The Company withholds éiguoof the vested shares for the payment of inctares on behalf of the
employees. The net impact to equity from the inctamepayments, partially offset by the issuancBBRs, resulted in a charge to
equity of $1 million in 2014 , $2 million in 2013and $1 million in 2012 which is not included in Administrative and otlexpense
in the consolidated statements of income.

As of December 31, 2014 , unrecognized stock-basatpensation expense was $6 million , of whichraxmately $4 million and

$2 million is expected to be expensed in 2015 &b 2 respectively. No stock-based compensatiots ¢t@se been capitalized and
the Plan had no material impact on cash flowsHentears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013, or 2012 .

108




Table of Contents
PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continu ed

NOTE 14: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed based ondighted average number of common shares outstaddiirgg the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighteihge number of common shares outstanding areffinet of dilutive potential
common shares outstanding during the year usingdhsury stock method. Potential common sharesistoof: i) employee stock
purchase plan shares; ii) unvested time-based erfidrmance-based restricted stock units, along asdociated dividend equivalent
rights; and iii) shares issuable pursuant to th8A&FSee Note 12, Equity-based Plans, for additiorfatmation on the EFSA and its
impact on earnings per share. Unvested performbased restricted stock units and associated digdidgunivalent rights are
included in dilutive potential common shares orftglathe performance criteria has been met.

Net income attributable to PGE common shareholddise same for both the basic and diluted earniegshare computation. T
reconciliations of the denominators of the basit dituted earnings per share computations arellasvio (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic 78,18( 76,82: 75,49¢
Dilutive effect of potential common shares 2,31« 567 14¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted 80,49 77,38¢ 75,64,

NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES
Commitments

As of December 31, 2014 , PGE’s estimated futurd@mrmim payments pursuant to purchase obligationthfofollowing five years
and thereafter are as follows (in millions):

Payments Due

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
Capital and other purchase
commitments $ 24z $ 21 % 2 2 ¢ 2 ¢ 74 $ 34z
Purchased power and fuel:
Electricity purchases 17¢ 167 14C 142 142 83:¢ 1,60¢
Capacity contracts 27 26 6 6 5 20 9C
Public utility districts 8 7 5 4 2 23 49
Natural gas 56 37 40 40 36 244 45¢
Coal and transportation 23 14 11 5 5 — 58
Operating leases 10 11 12 11 8 192 244
Total $ 54t $ 285 $ 21€ $ 211 $ 201 $ 1,38¢ $ 2,842

Capital and other purchase commitment&ertain commitments have been made for capitab#mer purchases for 2015 and
beyond. Such commitments include those relategdochlicenses, upgrades to generating, distribudiae transmission facilities,
information systems, and system maintenance wotkrge component of these commitments for 2015 asés associated with the
construction of Carty. Termination of these agrestmeould result in cancellation charges.
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Electricity purchases and Capacity contre—PGE has power purchase contracts with counterpartieich expire at varying dates
through 2049, and power capacity contracts thr@@fl®. In addition to the power purchase contradts @ounterparties presentec
the table, PGE has power sale contracts with copaatiees of approximately $43 million that settiefallows: $14 million in 2015 ;
$11 million in 2016 and 2017 ; and $7 million in130.

Public utility districts—PGE has long-term power purchase agreements withic public utility districts in the state of Wesgton
and with the City of Portland, Oregon. Under theeagnents, the Company is required to pay its ptmpate share of the operating
and debt service costs of the hydroelectric prsjedtether or not they are operable. The futuremmim payments for the public
utility districts in the preceding table reflecetprincipal payment only and do not include intereperation, or maintenance
expenses. Selected information regarding thesegisojs summarized as follows (dollars in millians)

Revenue Bonds

as of PGE’s Share as of PGE Cost,
December 31, December 31, 2014 Contract including Debt Service
2014 Output Capacity Expiration 2014 2013 2012
(in MW)

Priest Rapids and
Wanapum $ 1,10z 8.€% 162 2052 $ 14 $ 14 $ 14
Wells 21t 19.¢ 15C 2018 10 10 10
Portland Hydro 4 100.( 36 2017 4 4 4

The agreements for Priest Rapids and Wanapum atid jvevide that, should any other purchaser opoutlefault on payments as
a result of bankruptcy or insolvency, PGE wouldabecated a pro rata share of the output and dpgrand debt service costs of the
defaulting purchaser. For Wells, PGE would be alled up to a cumulative maximum of 25% of the défayipurchaser’s
percentage. For Priest Rapids and Wanapum, PGEhbeuhllocated up to a cumulative maximum that wadt adversely affect
the tax exempt status of any outstanding debt.

Natural ga— PGE has agreements for the purchase and transportéihatural gas from domestic and Canadian ssufiar its
natural gas-fired generating facilities. The Compalso has a natural gas storage agreement fauitpese of fueling the
Company'’s natural gas-fired generating plants (Rastward Unit 1 (PW1), PW2 and Beaver).

Coal and transportatior—PGE has coal and related rail transportation agee¢s with take-or-pay provisions related to Boaadm
which expire at various dates through 2020.

Operating leases—PGE has various operating leases associatedtwitieadquarters and certain of its productionstrassion, and
support facilities. The majority of the future mimim operating lease payments presented in the ¢ahkst of i) the corporate
headquarters lease, which expires in 2018, butded renewal period options through 2043, andié@)Rort of St. Helens land lease,
where PW1, PW2 and Beaver are located, which expir@096. Rent expense was $11 million in 2019 mdllion in 2013 , an&10
million in 2012 .

The future minimum operating lease payments presdastnet of sublease income of: $3 million in 20$2 million in 2016 ; an&1
million in 2017 , 2018 and 2019 . Sublease incoras $3 million in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 .

Guarantees
PGE enters into financial agreements and powenathgdal gas purchase and sale agreements thadénicldemnification provisions
relating to certain claims or liabilities that manyse relating to the transactions contemplatethbge agreements. Generally, a

maximum obligation is not explicitly stated in timelemnification
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provisions and, therefore, the overall maximum amad the obligation under such indemnificationarat be reasonably estimat
PGE periodically evaluates the likelihood of indgnigrcosts under such indemnities based on the Coypahistorical experience al
the evaluation of the specific indemnities. As @fdember 31, 2014 , management believes the liladifi®remote that PGE would
be required to perform under such indemnificaticovisions or otherwise incur any significant losagth respect to such
indemnities. The Company has not recorded anlilialoin the consolidated balance sheets with ragpehiese indemnities.

NOTE 16: VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

PGE has determined that as of December 31, 2@44hi¢ primary beneficiary of two VIEs ( three dDecember 31, 2013 ) , and,
therefore, consolidates the VIEs within the Compaugnsolidated financial statements. Such arramgesnwere formed for the sole
purpose of designing, developing, constructing, ioginmaintaining, operating and financing photo&iltsolar power facilities
located on real property owned by third partiesl selling the energy generated by the facilitidse Tompany is the Managing
Member and a financial institution is the Invesitember in each of the Limited Liability Companiéd.Cs), holding equity

interests of less than 1% and more than 99% , c&sply, in each entity. PGE has determined tisiniterests in these VIEs contain
the obligation to absorb the variability of theiges that could potentially be significant to s, and the Company has the power
to direct the activities that most significantlfeaft the entities’ economic performance.

Determining whether PGE is the primary beneficiaira VIE is complex, subjective and requires the ofsjudgments and
assumptions. Significant judgments and assumptitade by PGE in determining it is the primary betiafy of these LLCs include
the following: i) PGE has the experience to own apdrate electric generating facilities and is artied to operate the LLCs
pursuant to the operating agreements, and, thetd®&E has control over the most significant ati¢isiof the LLCs; ii) PGE expec
to own 100% of the LLCs shortly after five

years have elapsed from when the facility was placeservice, at which time the facilities will rmapproximately 75% of their
estimated useful life remaining; and iii) basedoomjections prepared in accordance with the opagaigreements, PGE expects to
absorb a majority of any expected losses of thed.LC

Included in PGE'’s consolidated balance sheets B&eoémber 31, 2014 and 2013 are LLC net asset ofifon and $5 million,
respectively, primarily comprised of Electric uiiliplant, and includes Cash and cash equivalerd aoiillion as of December 31,
2013 . These assets can only be used to settibtigations of the consolidated VIEs and their dard have no recourse to the
general credit of PGE.

In January 2015, PGE acquired the equity interelst by the Investor Member of one of the LLCs parguo the terms of the
operating agreement. The transaction did not hasigréficant impact to the Company’s consolidatieéicial position, consolidated
results of operations or consolidated cash flows.

NOTE 17: JOINTLY-OWNED PLANT

PGE has interests in three jointly-owned generdtiedities. Under the joint operating agreemeets;h participating owner is
responsible for financing its share of constructimgmerating and leasing costs. PGE’s proportioslaéee of direct operating and
maintenance expenses of the facilities is includdte corresponding operating and maintenancernsepeategories in the
consolidated statements of income.

In 1985, PGE sold a 15% undivided interest in Boed and a 10.714% undivided interest in the Compashare of the Pacific
Northwest Intertie transmission line (jointly, tRacility Assets) to an unrelated third party (Pasdr). Under terms of the origir
1985 agreements, on December 31, 2013, PGE acdhedehcility Assets from the Purchaser in exchdog&1from the Purchase
PGE assumed responsibility for the ARO relatedhéd 15% interest in Boardman in the amount of $ilani. The acquisition of the
15% interest in Boardman increased the Companyteoship share from 65% to 80% on December 31, 2Bdéh transaction is
non-cash and is excluded from investing activitiethe consolidated statement of cash flows foryder ended December 31, 2013.

On December 31, 2014, PGE acquired an additiortdl ib@erest in Boardman from another co-owner, wingtee Company
received net cash of $8 million from the co-owreeassume the net liabilities associated with theeyghip of this 10% interest. In
connection with this transaction, PGE recorded teteatility plant of $7 million , inventory of $4nillion , an ARO of $7 million , a
regulatory liability of $6 million to be returned tustomers in 2015 and 2016, a regulatory lighdft$4 million related to future
additional decommissioning and environmental ca@std, deferred revenue of $2 million . The acquisif the 10% interest in
Boardman increased the Company’s ownership shame 80% to 90% .



As of December 31, 2014 , PGE had the followingegiments in jointly-owned plant (dollars in millgn

Construction

PGE Plant Accumulated Work In
Share In-service Date In-service Depreciation* Progress
Boardman 90.0(% 1980 $ 51C 35C —
Colstrip 20.0( 1986 52C 334 2
Pelton/Round Butte 66.67 1958 / 1964 237 55 8
Total $ 1,267 $ 73¢ 10

*  Excludes AROs and accumulated asset retirementwamosts

NOTE 18: CONTINGENCIES
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PGE is subject to legal, regulatory, and environagoroceedings, investigations, and claims thiaedrom time to time in the
ordinary course of its business. Contingenciesaatuated using the best information availabldattime the consolidated financial
statements are prepared. Legal costs incurredninemtion with loss contingencies are expensedasried. The Company may seek
regulatory recovery of certain costs that are ireaiin connection with such matters, although tlvarebe no assurance that such
recovery would be granted.

Loss contingencies are accrued, and disclosedtdnmg when it is probable that an asset has bapaired or a liability incurred as
of the financial statement date and the amourh@fdss can be reasonably estimated. If a reasoeabimate of probable loss can
be determined, a range of loss may be establigh@dich case the minimum amount in the range ¢swed, unless some other
amount within the range appears to be a bettenatdi

A loss contingency will also be disclosed whers iteéasonably possible that an asset has been edpaia liability incurred if the
estimate or range of potential loss is materiah ffrobable or reasonably possible loss cannatdmonably estimated, then the
Company i) discloses an estimate of such losseorahge of such loss, if the Company is able terdghe such an estimate, or ii)
discloses that an estimate cannot be made anddkens.

If an asset has been impaired or a liability inedrafter the financial statement date, but prigdh&issuance of the financial
statements, the loss contingency is disclosedateral, and the amount of any estimated losscsrded in the subsequent reporting
period.

The Company evaluates, on a quarterly basis, deredots in such matters that could affect the amotany accrual, as well as the
likelihood of developments that would make a losstingency both probable and reasonably estimalle.assessment as to whe

a loss is probable or reasonably possible, and atiéther such loss or a range of such loss im\abte, often involves a series of
complex judgments about future events. Managensesftén unable to estimate a reasonably possibte &y a range of loss,
particularly in cases in which: i) the damages $bage indeterminate or the basis for the damalgéwed is not clear; ii) the
proceedings are in the early stages; iii) discovenot complete; iv) the matters involve noveliosettled legal theories; v) there are
significant facts in dispute; vi) there are a langenber of parties (including where it is uncertagw liability, if any, will be shared
among multiple defendants); or vii) there is a widege of potential outcomes. In such cases, ihexensiderable uncertainty
regarding the timing or ultimate resolution, indhugglany possible loss, fine, penalty, or businagsaict.

Trojan I nvestment Recovery

Regulatory Proceedingln 1993, PGE closed Trojan and sought full recov#nand a rate of return on, its Trojan costs geaeral
rate case filing with the OPUC. In 1995, the OPWYslied a general rate order that granted the Compaayery of, and a rate of
return on, 87% of its remaining investment in Troja

Numerous challenges and appeals were subsequiggiyrf various state courts on the issue of th&JC's authority under Oregon
law to grant recovery of, and a return on, the @mapivestment. In 1998, the Oregon Court of Appepltseld the OPUC’s order
authorizing PGE’s recovery of the Trojan investmént held that the OPUC did not have the authadtgllow the Company to
recover a return on the Trojan investment and rel@adhe case to the OPUC for reconsideration.

In 2000, PGE entered into agreements to settlétidp@tion related to recovery of, and return ds,investment in Trojan. The
settlement, which was approved by the OPUC, alloR@& to remove from its balance sheet the remainwvestment in Trojan as
of September 30, 2000, along with several largéfisetting regulatory liabilities. After offsettinpe investment in Trojan with these
liabilities, the remaining Trojan regulatory assatance of approximately $5 million (after tax) weagensed. As a result of the
settlement, PGE’s investment in Trojan was no lomgeauded in prices charged to customers, eitheugh a return of or a return
on that investment. The Utility Reform Project (URIRJ not participate in the settlement and filecbanplaint with the OPUC
challenging the
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settlement agreements. In 2002, the OPUC issueddan (2002 Order) denying all of the URP’s challes: In 2007, following
several appeals by various parties, the Oregont@béippeals issued an opinion that remanded ti2 Zhxder to the OPUC for
reconsideration.

The OPUC then issued an order in 2008 (2008 OtHat)equired PGE to provide refunds, includingiast from

September 30, 2000, to customers who receivedcgeindm the Company during the period from Octdhe2000 to

September 30, 2001. The Company recorded a ch&&g3d. million in 2008 related to the refund andraed additional interest
expense on the liability until refunds to customeese completed in the first quarter of 2010. THeRUand the plaintiffs in the class
actions described below separately appealed thg @dder to the Oregon Court of Appeals.

On February 6, 2013, the Oregon Court of Appealsdad an opinion that upheld the 2008 Order. On 813y2013, the Court of
Appeals denied the appellants’ request for recenatibn of the decision. On October 18, 2013, thegdn Supreme Court granted
plaintiffs’ petition seeking review of the Februdy2013 Oregon Court of Appeals decision.

On October 2, 2014, the Oregon Supreme Courtpmaaimous decision, affirmed the February 6, 206696n Court of Appeals
decision that upheld the OPUC’s 2008 Order. Ondgnii5, 2015, the Oregon Supreme Court deniedltietiffs petition seeking
reconsideration of the October 2, 2014 decision.

Class Actionsln two separate legal proceedings, lawsuits wéed fn Marion County Circuit Court against PGE B03 on behalf ¢
two classes of electric service customers. Thes@aton lawsuits seek damages totaling $260 milliglus interest, as a result of |
Company’s inclusion, in prices charged to customefra return on its investment in Trojan.

In 2006, the Oregon Supreme Court issued a rulidgring the abatement of the class action procgedintil the OPUC responded
to the 2002 Order (described above). The OregomeBugp Court concluded that the OPUC has primargdigiion to determine
what, if any, remedy can be offered to PGE custspnthrough price reductions or refunds, for any am@f return on the Trojan
investment that the Company collected in prices.

The Oregon Supreme Court further stated that ifdR&C determined that it can provide a remedy t&'BGustomers, then the cl
action proceedings may become moot in whole oam he Oregon Supreme Court added that, if the©Betermined that it
cannot provide a remedy, the court system may haweée to play. The Oregon Supreme Court also rifietithe plaintiffs retain the
right to return to the Marion County Circuit Cofot disposition of whatever issues remain unresbivem the remanded OPUC
proceedings. The Marion County Circuit Court sulbesly abated the class actions in response tutimg of the Oregon Supreme
Court.

The October 2, 2014 Oregon Supreme Court decisgenribed above expressly noted that the plairitiffee class action must
address any request to lift the abatement wititagon County Circuit Court. PGE is evaluating htmaproceed with respect to the
class actions.

PGE believes that the October 2, 2014 Oregon Supfeourt decision has reduced the risk of a lossedCompany in excess of the
amounts previously recorded and discussed aboweetdy, because the class actions remain pendingageaent believes that it is
still reasonably possible that such a loss to th@any could result. As these matters involve tlesetegal theories and have a
broad range of potential outcomes, sufficient infation is currently not available to determine @ngount of any such loss, or to
estimate a range of potential loss.

Pacific Northwest Refund Proceeding

In 2001, the FERC called for a hearing to explohetver there may have been unjust and unreasocizdniges for spot market sales
of electricity in the Pacific Northwest from Deceenl25, 2000 through June 20, 2001 (Pacific
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Northwest Refund proceeding). During that perioc@Fboth sold and purchased electricity in the Rablbrthwest. Upon appeal
the decision to the U.S. Ninth Circuit Court of Aggbs (Ninth Circuit), the Ninth Circuit remandee ttase to the FERC to, among
other things, address market manipulation evidémdetail and account for the evidence in any fitorders regarding the award or
denial of refunds in the proceedings.

In response to the Ninth Circuit remand, the FESSDed several procedural orders that establisheslidentiary hearing, defined
the scope of the hearing, and described the buwflproof that must be met to justify abrogatiortlu# contracts at issue and the
imposition of refunds. The orders held that Bhebile-Sierrapublic interest standard governs challenges tbilageral contracts at
issue in this proceeding, and the strong presumpinmerMobile-Sierrathat the rates charged under each contract arandst
reasonable would have to be specifically overcoitieeeby: i) a showing that a respondent had vemlat contract or tariff and that
the violation had a direct connection to the rdigrged under the applicable contract; or ii) a shgwhat the contract rate at issue
imposed an excessive burden or seriously harmeplubiéc interest. The FERC also expanded the sobgee hearing to allow
parties to pursue refunds for transactions betweeanary 1, 2000 and December 24, 2000 under Se&8fi@of the Federal Power
Act by showing violations of a filed tariff or ragehedule of a statutory requirement. The FERQ:tHitkthe presiding judge, if
necessary, to determine a refund methodology andltwlate refunds, but held that a mankéde remedy was not appropriate, gi
the bilateral contract nature of the Pacific Noristvspot markets. Refund claimants have filedipestfor appeal of these procedi
orders with the Ninth Circuit.

Pursuant to a FERC-ordered settlement proces§dhwany received notice of two claims and reaclgedeaments to settle both
claims for an immaterial amount. The FERC apprdsetth settlements during 2012.

Additionally, the settlement between PGE and certéler parties in the California refund case ircka No. EL00-95, et seq.,
approved by the FERC in May 2007, resolved allnetabetween PGE and the California parties naméukisettiement, including
the California Energy Resource Scheduling divisibthe California Department of Water ResourcesKSE as to transactions in
the Pacific Northwest during the settlement permhuary 1, 2000 through June 20, 2001, but didettie potential claims from
other market participants relating to transactiorthe Pacific Northwest.

The above-referenced settlements resulted in aselef the Company as a named respondent in sh@fiase of the remand
proceedings, which are limited to initial and direlaims for refunds, but there remains a possjtitiat additional claims related to
this matter could be asserted against the Compaaysubsequent phase of the proceeding if refuredsrdered against some or all
of the current respondents.

During the first phase of the remand hearing, nommleted, two sets of refund proponents, the (itgaattle, Washington (Seattle)
and various California parties on behalf of CER®spnted cases alleging that multiple respondexdthgaged in unlawful
activities and caused severe financial harm trsifjed the imposition of refunds. After conclusiohthe hearing, the presiding
Administrative Law Judge issued an Initial DecismnMarch 28, 2014 finding: i) that Seattle did natry itsMobile-Sierraburden
with respect to its refund claims against any @féspondent sellers; and ii) that the Califorejaresentatives of CERS did not carry
their Mobile-Sierraburden with respect to one of the two CERS’ respatg] but that CERS had produced evidence that the
remaining CERS respondent had engaged in unlawfivity in the implementation of multiple transamts and bad faith in the
formation of as many as 119 contracts. The Admiaiiste Law Judge scheduled a second phase of #reh\gdo commence after a
final FERC decision on the Initial Decision. TherAdhistrative Law Judge determined that in the sdqamase the remaining
respondent will have an opportunity to produce talail evidence as to why its transactions shoelddnsidered legitimate and w
refunds should not be ordered. The findings inltiiteal Decision are subject to further FERC actitirthe FERC requires one or
more respondents to make refunds, it is possilalestich respondent(s) will attempt to recover simméfunds from their suppliers,
including the Company.

Management believes that this matter could reawdtlbss to the Company in future proceedings. Hewenanagement cannot
predict whether the FERC will order refunds frony afithe current respondents, which
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contracts would be subject to refunds, the basistinh refunds would be ordered, or how such refuifdany, would be calculated.
Further, management cannot predict whether angcurespondents, if ordered to make refunds, wilkpe additional refund clair
against their suppliers, and, if so, what the bassmounts of such potential refund claims agahmstCompany would be. Due to
these uncertainties, sufficient information is eatty not available to determine PGE'’s liabilitiyany, or to estimate a range of
reasonably possible loss.

EPA Investigation of Portland Harbor

A 1997 investigation by the United States EnvirontakProtection Agency (EPA) of a segment of thdlakfiette River known as
Portland Harbor revealed significant contaminatibniver sediments. The EPA subsequently includedi&d Harbor on the
National Priority List pursuant to the federal Caetpensive Environmental Response, Compensatiori,iabdity Act (CERCLA)

as a federal Superfund site and listed 69 PotgniRasponsible Parties (PRPs). PGE was includechgri® PRPs as it has
historically owned or operated property near thiertiln January 2008, the EPA requested informdtimm various parties, includir
PGE, concerning additional properties in or neardhginal segment of the river under investigatisnvell as several miles beyond.
Subsequently, the EPA has listed additional PRBg;hwnow number over one hundred .

The Portland Harbor site is currently undergoingraedial investigation (RI) and feasibility studyS) pursuant to an Administrati
Order on Consent (AOC) between the EPA and seP&&s known as the Lower Willamette Group (LWG),chtdoes not include
PGE.

In March 2012, the LWG submitted a draft FS toHRA for review and approval. The draft FS, alonthwie RI, provide the
framework for the EPA to determine a clean-up reyrfed Portland Harbor that will be documented iRecord of Decision, which
the EPA is not expected to issue before 2017.

The draft FS evaluates several alternative cleaapypoaches. These approaches would take fromot®8 years with costs ranging
from $169 million to $1.8 billion , depending oretkelected remedial action levels and the choicer&dy. The draft FS does not
address responsibility for the costs of clean-lipcate such costs among PRPs, or define precigedavies for the clean-up.
Responsibility for funding and implementing the EP#Aselected clean-up will be determined after teedace of the Record of
Decision.

Management believes that it is reasonably postilalethis matter could result in a loss to the Canyp However, due to the
uncertainties discussed above, sufficient inforamais currently not available to determine P&HEAbility for the cost of any requirt
investigation or remediation of the Portland Harbite or to estimate a range of potential loss.

DEQ Investigation of Downtown Reach

The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQs executed a memorandum of understanding hatiEPA to administer
and enforce clean-up activities for portions of Widlamette River that are upriver from the Portdadarbor Superfund site (the
Downtown Reach). In January 2010, the DEQ issuent@er requiring PGE to perform an investigatiorteiftain portions of the
Downtown Reach. PGE completed this investigatiobéesember 2011 and entered into a consent orderthétDEQ in July 2012 !
conduct a feasibility study of alternatives for emial action for the portions of the Downtown Re#iwdt were included within the
scope of PGE's investigation. The draft feasibititydy report, which describes possible remedialternatives that range in
estimated cost from $3 million to $8 million , waghmitted to the DEQ in February 2014. Following BPEQ’s evaluation of the
draft feasibility study, PGE submitted a final fibélty study to the DEQ in September 2014. Theneated costs in the final
feasibility study did not differ significantly frortihose in the draft feasibility study. Using then@any’s best estimate of the
probable cost for the remediation effort from teed alternatives provided in the feasibility stuéport, PGE has a $3 million
reserve for this matter as of December 31, 2014.
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Based on the available evidence of previous ratevery of incurred environmental remediation cdstPGE, as well as for other
utilities operating within the same jurisdictiohetCompany has concluded that the estimated c&& wiillion to remediate the
Downtown Reach is probable of recovery. As a retluit Company also has a regulatory asset of $mfbr future recovery in
prices as of December 31, 2014. The Company indlueleovery of the regulatory asset in its 2015 GiRd with the OPUC. The
final order issued by the OPUC in the 2015 GRCudek revenues to offset the amortization of theledgry asset over a two year
period beginning January 1, 2015.

Alleged Violation of Environmental Regulations at Colstrip

On July 30, 2012, PGE received a Notice of Interfue (Notice) for violations of the Clean Air AGAA) at Colstrip Steam

Electric Station (CSES) from counsel on behalfhef Sierra Club and the Montana Environmental Infdfom Center (MEIC). The
Notice was also addressed to the other CSl-owners, including PPL Montana, LLC, the operato€8ES. PGE has a 20%
ownership interest in Units 3 and 4 of CSES. Théddamlleges certain violations of the CAA, inclngdiNew Source Review, Title
V, and opacity requirements, and states that tege&sClub and MEIC will: i) request a United Staastrict Court to impose
injunctive relief and civil penalties; ii) requieebeneficial environmental project in the areasaéd by the alleged air pollution; and
i) seek reimbursement of Sierra Club’s and MEIC&sts of litigation and attorney’s fees.

The Sierra Club and MEIC asserted that the CSESmawriolated the Title V air quality operating pérguring portions of 2008
and 2009 and that the owners have violated the GARailing to timely submit a complete air qualdperating permit application to
the Montana Department of Environmental Quality (D). The Sierra Club and MEIC also asserted viofatiof opacity provisior
of the CAA.

On March 6, 2013, the Sierra Club and MEIC suedBE&S co-owners, including PGE, for these and madit alleged violations of
various environmental related regulations. Thenpil$ are seeking relief that includes an injuaotpreventing the co-owners from
operating CSES except in accordance with the CA& Montana State Implementation Plan, and the 'pléderally enforceable air
quality permits. In addition, plaintiffs are seegiaivil penalties against the co-owners includi3@ $00 per day for each violation
occurring through January 12, 2009, and $37,50@asgrfor each violation occurring thereafter.

On May 3, 2013, the defendants filed a motion smtiss 36 of 39 claims alleged in the complainSéptember 2013, the plaintiffs
filed a motion for partial summary judgment regagdthe appropriate method of calculating emissinogeases. Also in September
2013, the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint thihdrew Title V and opacity claims, added claiassociated with two 2011
projects, and expanded the scope of certain clamacompass approximately 40 additional projéntduly 2014, the court denied
the defendants’ motion to dismiss and the plasitifiotion for partial summary judgment.

On August 27, 2014, the plaintiffs filed a secontkaded complaint to which the defendants’ resporasefiled on September 26,
2014. The second amended complaint continues foisgmctive relief, declaratory relief, and ciyienalties for alleged violations
the federal Clean Air Act. The plaintiffs statetire second amended complaint that it was filegairt, to comply with the court’s
ruling on the defendants’ motion to dismiss andnpiffs’ motion for partial summary judgment. Disgery in this matter is ongoing
with trial now scheduled for November 2015.

Management believes that it is reasonably pos#ilatethis matter could result in a loss to the Canyp However, due to the
uncertainties concerning this matter, PGE canredipt the outcome or determine whether it wouldehawnaterial impact on the
Company.

Oregon Tax Court Ruling
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On September 17, 2012, the Oregon Tax Court isauating contrary to an Oregon Department of ReegfROR) interpretation
and a current Oregon administrative rule, regarttiegreatment of wholesale electricity sales. heerlying issue is whether
electricity should be treated as tangible or iniialegoroperty for state income tax apportionmenppsges. The DOR has appealec
ruling of the Oregon Tax Court to the Oregon Su@éourt. It is uncertain whether the ruling will ingheld. Oral argument
occurred in May 2014 and the parties now await arCaecision.

If the ruling is upheld, PGE estimates that itooime tax liability could increase by as much as $ilflan due to an increase in the tax
rate at which deferred tax liabilities would beagnized in future years. During the third quarte2@13, the Company entered into a
closing agreement with the DOR, under which the Dd¥gReed to the tax apportionment methodology etilian the tax returns
relating to open tax years 2008 through 2012.

Management believes that it is reasonably postilalethis matter could result in a loss to the Canyp However, due to the
uncertainties concerning this matter, PGE canredipt the outcome.

Other Matters

PGE is subject to other regulatory, environmeraadl legal proceedings, investigations, and clalrasdrise from time to time in the
ordinary course of business, which may result dgjuents against the Company. Although managemergrtly believes that
resolution of such matters, individually and in #ygregate, will not have a material impact offiftancial position, results of
operations, or cash flows, these matters are suigjécherent uncertainties, and management’s wakthiese matters may change in
the future.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
(Unaudited)

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(In millions, except per share amounts)

2014
Revenues, net $ 49: % 42 % 484 % 50C
Income from operations 98 58 65 72
Net income 58 35 38 43
Net income attributable to Portland General Electri
Company 58 35 39 43
Earnings per shar€’
Basic 0.72 0.4 0.4¢ 0.57
Diluted 0.72 0.42 0.47 0.5¢
2013
Revenues, net $ 47 % 40 % 43t % 49¢
Income (loss) from operatioffs 87 (12) 53 77
Net income (lossy 48 (22) 31 47
Net income (loss) attributable to Portland General
Electric Company? 49 (22) 31 47
Earnings (loss) per share—basic and dil{té&d
gs (loss) p 0.6" (0.29) 0.4¢ 0.5¢

(1) Earnings per share are calculated independfamteach period presented. Accordingly, the sdith@ quarterly earnings per share amounts
may not equal the total for the year.

(2) The quarter ended June 30 includes $52 mitliocosts expensed related to the Company’s Caseamsing Transmission Project and a
refund of revenues of $9 million related to the alative over-billing of an industrial customer «n2009. For information regarding these
matters, see Electric Utility Plant” in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Padigj and ‘Customer Billing Matter’in Note 1, Basis
of Presentation, respectively, in the Notes to Gbdated Financial Statements in Item 8.—“Finan&8tdtements and Supplementary Data.”
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
(@) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management of the Company, under the supervisidnadth the participation of the Chief Executive 0#r and the Chief Financial
Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the gamy’s disclosure controls and procedures (as eeéfim Rule 13a-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&hge Act”)) as of the end of the period covdredhis report pursuant to
Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act. Based dretfauation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chi@fancial Officer have
concluded that, as of the end of such period, thragainy’s disclosure controls and procedures ascife.

(b) Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Gardver Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Aldle Company’s internal control over financial repa is a process designed by,
or under the supervision of, the Chief Executiveidef and Chief Financial Officer to provide reaable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepdoat of the Company’s financial statements for exaépurposes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thedd¢hEStates of America.

Management of the Company, under the supervisidnadti the participation of the Chief Executive ©#r and Chief Financial
Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the gamy’s internal control over financial reportingafshe end of the period covered
by this report pursuant to Rule 13a-15(c) undeigkehange Act. Managemestissessment was based on the framework estak
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, manageneobdheuded that, as of December 31, 2014 , thep@ayis internal control
over financial reporting is effective.

The Company’s internal control over financial repay, as of December 31, 2014 , has been auditdaegitte & Touche LLP, the
independent registered public accounting firm whdis the Company’s consolidated financial statemeas stated in their report
included in Iltem 8.—“Financial Statements and Sepm@ntary Data,” which expresses an unqualifiediopion the effectiveness of
the Company'’s internal control over financial repuy, as of December 31, 2014 .

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Finan&iaporting

There have not been any changes in the Compangisal control over financial reporting during fioeirth quarter of 2014 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company’s internal cohtreer financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

119




Table of Contents

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORP ORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by Item 10 is incorporabedein by reference to the relevant informatiodarrthe captions “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Coragie Governance,” “Proposal 1: Election of Directoasid “Executive
Officers” in the Company’s definitive proxy statemi¢o be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with 8&C in connection with the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be beliflay 6, 2015 .

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by Item 11 is incorporakedein by reference to the relevant informatiodarrthe captions “Corporate
Governance—Non-Employee Director Compensation,rffocate Governance—Compensation Committee Inteslackl Insider
Participation,” “Compensation and Human Resouraan@ittee Report,” “Compensation Discussion and $sial” and “Executive
Compensation Tables” in the Company’s definitivexyrstatement to be filed pursuant to Regulatiof d4th the SEC in
connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholdsiseduled to be held on May 6, 2015 .

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Item 12 is incorporakedein by reference to the relevant informatioderrthe captions “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directansl &xecutive Officers” and “Equity Compensationri®ld in the Company’s
definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuanRiegulation 14A with the SEC in connection with thenual Meeting of
Shareholders scheduled to be held on May 6, 2015 .

ITEM 13.CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by Item 13 is incorporahbedein by reference to the relevant informatiodarrthe caption “Corporate
Governance” in the Comparsytefinitive proxy statement to be filed pursuanRegulation 14A with the SEC in connection with
Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be beliflay 6, 2015 .

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES .

The information required by Item 14 is incorporakedein by reference to the relevant informatioderrthe captions “Principal
Accountant Fees and Services” and “Pre-Approvaktidbr Independent Auditor Services” in the Comyardefinitive proxy

statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14#hwhie SEC in connection with the Annual Meetingsbfireholders scheduled to
be held on May 6, 2015 .
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S.

(&) Financial Statements and Schedules

The financial statements are set forth under Itesht@is Annual Report on Form 10-K. Financial staent schedules have been
omitted since they are either not required, notiegiple, or the information is otherwise included.

(b) Exhibit Listing

Exhibit
Number

Description

(3)
3.1*

3.2*

(4)
4.1*

4.2*
4.3*
4.4*
4.5*
4.6*
4.7*
4.8*
4.9*
4.10*

4.11*
4.12*
4.13*

414

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

Third Amended and Restated Articles of Inavgtion of Portland General Electric Company (F&AK filed May
9, 2014, Exhibit 3.1).

Tenth Amended and Restated Bylaws of Portland @Géidectric Company (Form 8-K filed May 9, 2014, Hibxit
3.2).

Instruments defining the rights of security holders including indentures

Portland General Electric Company Indenture of Mage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1945 (Form 8,
Amendment No. 1 dated June 14, 1965) (File No. @&E32-99).

Fortieth Supplemental Indenture dated Octdhér990 (Form 10-K for the year ended Decembefd 320, Exhibit
4) (File No. 001-05532-99).

Fifty-sixth Supplemental Indenture dated May 1,20Borm 8-K filed May 25, 2006, Exhibit 4.1)(FileoNOO1-
05532-99).

Fifty-seventh Supplemental Indenture datedddeber 1, 2006 (Form 8-K filed December 22, 2006kt 4.1)
(File No. 001-05532-99).

Fifty-eighth Supplemental Indenture dated Apri2@07 (Form 8-K filed April 12, 2007, Exhibit 4.1Fi{fe No. 001-
05532-99).

Fifty-ninth Supplemental Indenture dated @etol, 2007 (Form 8-K filed October 5, 2007, Extibll) (File No.
001-05532-99).

Sixtieth Supplemental Indenture dated April 1, 20B8rm 8-K filed April 17, 2008, Exhibit 4.1) (Fildo. 001-
05532-99).

Sixty-first Supplemental Indenture dated Jagul5, 2009 (Form 8-K filed January 16, 2009, Bkh.1) (File No.
001-05532-99).

Sixty-second Supplemental Indenture dated Apr2N9 (Form 8-K filed April 16, 2009, Exhibit 4.1Fi{e No. 001-
05532-99).

Sixty-third Supplemental Indenture dated Biober 1, 2009 (Form 8-K filed November 4, 2009, iBiH.1) (File
No. 001-05532-99).

Sixty-seventh Supplemental Indenture dated Jun2dB (Form 8-K filed June 27, 2013, Exhibit 4.1).
Sixty-eighth Supplemental Indenture datedo®er 15, 2013 (Form S-3 filed November 12, 2023)iEit 4.13).
Sixty-ninth Supplemental Indenture dated AugusiL4 (Form 8-K filed October 17, 2014, Exhibit 4.1)
Seventieth Supplemental Indenture dated daiy2015.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

(10)
10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*
10.10*
10.11*
10.12*
10.13*
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*
10.21*

10.22*

1N 2

Material Contracts

Credit Agreement dated May 7, 2014, betwieeriland General Electric Company, Wells Fargo B&ional
Assaociation, as Administrative Agent, and JPMor@dmase Bank, N.A., U.S. Bank National Associatiord Bank
of America, N.A. (Form 8-K filed May 9, 2014, ExIitii0.1).

Credit Agreement dated November 14, 2012, betweettelRd General Electric Company, Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Administrative Agent, JRlyan Chase Bank, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Asgari, as
Co-Syndication Agents, and a group of lenders (FborK filed February 22, 2013, Exhibit 10.1).

Credit Agreement dated December 8, 2011lydset Portland General Electric Company, Bank of AtagN.A., as
Administrative Agent, Barclays Capital, as SyndmatAgent, and a group of lenders (Form 10-K fifebruary 24,
2012, Exhibit 10.3).

First Amendment dated April 10, 2012 to Credit Agreent dated December 8, 2011, between Portlandr&@ene
Electric Company, Bank of America, N.A., as Admirasive Agent, and a group of lenders (Form 104&di
February 22, 2013, Exhibit 10.3).

Second Amendment dated October 31, 2012 to Craptieéknent dated December 8, 2011, between Portlandr&
Electric Company, Bank of America, N.A., as Admirasive Agent, and a group of lenders (Form 104&di
February 22, 2013, Exhibit 10.4).

Third Amendment dated January 7, 2013 to CredieAgrent dated December 8, 2011, between Portlaner&éen
Electric Company, Bank of America, N.A., as Admirasive Agent, and a group of lenders (Form 104&di
February 22, 2013, Exhibit 10.5).

Confirmation of Forward Sale Transactionediune 11, 2013 between Portland General Elgetiepany and
Barclays Bank PLC (Form 8-K filed June 17, 2013hibi 10.1).

First Amendment to Confirmation Agreement datedeJ2®, 2013 between Portland General Electric Compad
Barclays Bank PLC (Form 10-Q filed August 2, 20&E8hibit 10.2).

Transfer Agreement between BA Leasing BSIGZ Las Transferor, and Portland General Electrim@any, as
Transferee, dated December 18, 2013 (Form 10-H Flebruary 14, 2014, Exhibit 10.8).

Portland General Electric Company Severance PayfBteExecutive Employees dated June 15, 2005 (FBKn
filed June 20, 2005, Exhibit 10.1) (File No. 001582-99). +

Portland General Electric Company Outplaget\ssistance Plan dated June 15, 2005 (Formi& June 20,
2005, Exhibit 10.2) (File No. 001-05532-99). +

Portland General Electric Company 2005 Managemefieided Compensation Plan dated January 1, 200&(Fo
10-K filed March 11, 2005, Exhibit 10.18) (File N@01-05532-99). +

Portland General Electric Company Managdrbafierred Compensation Plan dated March 12, 2868 10-Q
filed May 15, 2003, Exhibit 10.1) (File No. 001-(8599). +

Portland General Electric Company Supplemental &kee Retirement Plan dated March 12, 2003 (ForrQlfded
May 15, 2003, Exhibit 10.2) (File No. 001-05532-99)

Portland General Electric Company Senidid@fs’ Life Insurance Benefit Plan dated March 2203 (Form 10-Q
filed May 15, 2003, Exhibit 10.3) (File No. 001-#599). +

Portland General Electric Company Umbrella TrustMi@anagement dated March 12, 2003 (Form 10-Q filey
15, 2003, Exhibit 10.4) (File No. 001-05532-99). +

Portland General Electric Company 2006 tacentive Plan, as amended (Form 10-K filed Faty@7, 2008,
Exhibit 10.23) (File No. 001-05532-99). +

Portland General Electric Company 2006 Annual Gasbntive Master Plan (Form 8-K filed March 17, 800
Exhibit 10.1) (File No. 001-05532-99). +

Portland General Electric Company 2006 (@et®irectors’ Deferred Compensation Plan (Form 8l&d May 17,
2006, Exhibit 10.1) (File No. 001-05532-99). +

Portland General Electric Company 2008 Annual Gaséntive Master Plan for Executive Officers (F®BrK filed
February 26, 2008, Exhibit 10.1) (File No. 001-03%®). +

Form of Portland General Electric Compargrédement Concerning Indemnification and Relateddisi{Form 8-K
filed December 24, 2009, Exhibit 10.1) (File No1606532-99). +

Form of Portland General Electric Company Agreen@ricerning Indemnification and Related Matters for
Officers and Key Employees (Form 8-K filed Februa®y 2010, Exhibit 10.1). +
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.24* Form of Officers’ and Key Employees’ PerformancecBtUnit Agreement (Form 10-Q filed May 3, 2012,
Exhibit 10.1) (File No. 001-05532-99). +

10.25* Employment Agreement dated and effectivey I@a2008 between Stephen M. Quennoz and Portlam i@l
Electric Company (Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2008, EbihiL0.3). +

(12) Statements Re Computation of Ratios
12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed (glea.
(23) Consents of Experts and Counsel

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public éathog Firm Deloitte & Touche LLP.
(31) Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications
311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
(32) Section 1350 Certifications
32.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer.
(101) Interactive Data File
101.INS XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linklga®ocument.
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagebDocument.

* Incorporated by reference as indica
+ Indicates a management contract or compensatonyoplarrangemer

Certain instruments defining the rights of holdefsther long-term debt of PGE are omitted purstiaiitem 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of
Regulation K because the total amount of securities authonizeter each such omitted instrument does not ext@¥#dof the tote
consolidated assets of the Company and its subigislidGE hereby agrees to furnish a copy of ank smstrument to the SEC upon
request.

Upon written request to Investor Relations, Podl&eneral Electric Company, 121 S.W. Salmon StRmtjand, Oregon 97204, t

Company will furnish shareholders with a copy of &xhibit upon payment of reasonable fees for répetion costs incurred in
furnishing requested Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetivdo duly authorized on February 12, 2015 .

PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

By: /s/ JAMES J. PIRO
James J. Piro
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblptihe following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitiescaidid on February 12, 2015 .

Signature Title
/sl JAMES J. PIRO President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
James J. Piro (principal executive officer)
/s/ JAMES F. LOBDELL Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief Financifficar, and

Treasurer

James F. Lobdell (principal financial and accounting officer)

/s/ JOHN W. BALLANTINE Director
John W. Ballantine

/s RODNEY L. BROWN, JR. Director
Rodney L. Brown, Jr.

/s/ JACK E. DAVIS Director
Jack E. Davis
/s/ DAVID A. DIETZLER Director

David A. Dietzler

/s/ KIRBY A. DYESS Director
Kirby A. Dyess

/sl MARK B. GANZ Director
Mark B. Ganz
/sl KATHRYN J. JACKSON Director

Kathryn J. Jackson

/s/ NEIL J. NELSON Director
Neil J. Nelson

/s/ M. LEE PELTON Director
M. Lee Pelton




/sl CHARLES W. SHIVERY Director

Charles W. Shivery
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EXHIBIT 4.14

PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
TO
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

(AS SUCCESSOR TO HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION)
Trustee.

Seventieth Supplemental Indenture

Dated: January 1, 2015

$75,000,000 First Mortgage Bonds,
3.55% Series, due 2030

Supplemental to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of ust,
dated July 1, 1945 of Portland General Electric Company.

THIS INSTRUMENT GRANTS A SECURITY INTEREST BY A TRA NSMITTING UTILITY
THIS INSTRUMENT CONTAINS AFTER-ACQUIRED PROPERTY PR OVISIONS




ThisSEVENTIETH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (hereinafter this " Supplemental Indenttiyedated
January 1, 2015, is made by and between Portlanér@eElectric Company, an Oregon corporation (hefter called
the " Company), and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationgascessor to HSBC Bank USA, National Association),
a national banking association, as Trustee (hdteimealled the " Trusted.

WHEREAS, the Company has heretofore executed aliveo its Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust
(herein sometimes referred to as the " Originaéfidre™), dated July 1, 1945, to the Trustee to secunssre of First
Mortgage Bonds of the Company; and

WHEREAS, bonds in the aggregate principal amouii3df,000,000 have heretofore been issued undenand
accordance with the terms of the Original Indenagdonds of an initial series designated "Firsttlyige Bonds, 3-1/8%
Series due 1975" (herein sometimes referred tbeas Bonds of the 1975 Seri8s and

WHEREAS, the Company has heretofore executed alivetsd to the Trustee several supplemental indestu
which provided, among other things, for amendmétii@ Original Indenture and for the creation @uisnce of several
new series of First Mortgage Bonds under the texfitise Original Indenture as follows:

Supplemental

Indenture Dated Series Designation Principal Amount
First 11-1-47 3-1/2 % Series due 1977 $ 6,000,001 (1)
Second 11-1-48 3-1/2 % Series due 1977 4,000,001 (1)
Third 5-1-52 3-1/2 % Second Series due 1977 4,000,000 (1)
Fourth 11-1-53 4-1/8 % Series due 1983 8,000,001 (2)
Fifth 11-1-54 3-3/8 % Series due 1984 12,000,00' (1)
Sixth 9-1-56 4-1/4 % Series due 1986 16,000,00" (1)
Seventh 6-1-57 4-7/8 % Series due 1987 10,000,00' (1)
Eighth 12-1-57 5-1/2 % Series due 1987 15,000,00' (3)
Ninth 6-1-60 5-1/4 % Series due 1990 15,000,00" (1)
Tenth 11-1-61 5-1/8 % Series due 1991 12,000,00' (1)
Eleventh 2-1-63 4-5/8 % Series due 1993 15,000,00' (1)
Twelfth 6-1-63 4-3/4 % Series due 1993 18,000,00' (1)
Thirteenth 4-1-64 4-3/4 % Series due 1994 18,000,00' (1)




Supplemental
Indenture

Fourteenth
Fifteenth
Sixteenth
Seventeenth
Eighteenth
Nineteenth
Twentieth
Twenty-first
Twenty-second
Twenty-third
Twenty-fourth
Twenty-fifth
Twenty-sixth
Twenty-seventh
Twenty-eighth
Twenty-ninth
Thirtieth
Thirty-first
Thirty-second
Thirty-third
Thirty-sixth
Thirty-seventh

Thirty-eighth

Dated

3-1-65
6-1-66
10-1-67
4-1-70
11-1-70
11-1-71
11-1-72
4-1-73
10-1-73
12-1-74
4-1-75
6-1-75
12-1-75
4-1-76
9-1-76
6-1-77
10-1-78
11-1-78
2-1-80
8-1-80
10-1-82
11-15-84

6-1-85

Series Designation

4.70
5-7/8
6.60
8-3/4
9-7/8
8
7-3/4
7.95
8-3/4
10-1/2
10
9-7/8
11-5/8
9-1/2
9-3/4
8-3/4
9.40
9.80
13-1/4
13-7/8
13-1/2
11-5/8

10-3/4

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

%

Series due 1995

Series due 1996

Series due Octob&p27

Series due ApdRY,7
Series due Noverib2000
Series due Novembe0Q]12
Series due Novemb&002
Series due AprikD03

Series due Octbp2003
Series due Decenih 1980
Series due April 282
Series due Jun&d85
Series due Deaamnih 2005
Series due Apr006
Series due Septarib1996
Series due Jun20D,7
Series due Januar999
Series due Novembgt 998
Series due Falyria2000
Series due Auglisp010
Series due Octabe2012

Extendablaesef due
November 15, 1999

Series due Jung9db5

Principal Amount

14,000,00
12,000,00
24,000,00
20,000,00
20,000,00
20,000,00
20,000,00
35,000,00
17,000,00
40,000,00
40,000,00
27,000,00
50,000,00
50,000,00
62,500,00
50,000,00
25,000,00
50,000,00
55,000,00
75,000,00
75,000,00
75,000,00

60,000,00

(1)
1)
1)
(1)
4)
4)
(4)
4)
4)
(1)
1)
1)
(4)
4)
4)
(4)
4)
4)
(4)
4)
4)
(4)

4)




Supplemental
Indenture

Thirty-ninth
Fortieth
Forty-first
Forty-second
Forty-third
Forty-fourth
Forty-fifth
Forty-sixth
Forty-seventh
Forty-eighth
Forty-ninth
Fiftieth
Fifty-first
Fifty-second

Fifty-third

Fifty-fourth
Fifty-fifth
Fifty-sixth

Fifty-seventh
Fifty-eighth
Fifty-ninth
Sixtieth
Sixty-first

Sixty-second
Sixty-third
Sixty-fourth
Sixty-fifth

Dated

3-1-86
10-1-90
12-1-91
4-1-93
7-1-93
8-1-94
5-1-95
8-1-96

12-14-01

6-1-02

6-1-02
10-1-02
10-1-02
4-1-03

5-1-03

5-1-03
7-1-03
5-1-06

12-1-06
4-1-07
10-1-07
4-1-08
1-15-09

4-1-09
11-1-09
1-15-10

6-15-10

Series Designation

9-5/8

7-3/4

8-1/8
5.6675
5.279

6.31
6.26

5.80
5.81
5.80
4.45

6.50
6.80

6.10
5.43
3.46
3.81

%

%

%
%
%

%
%

%
%
%
%

%
%

%
%
%
%

Series due Marcl2Q16
Medium Term Note Series
Medium Term Note Series |

Series due Aprjl2(R23
Medium Term Notes Series
Medium Term Notes Series Il
Medium Term Notes Series IV
Medium Term Notes Series V
Second Series due 2002
Collateral Series due 2003
Second Collateral Series due 2003
Series due 2010
Series due 2012
Series due 2013

Collateral Series A due 2033
Collateral Series B due 2033
Collateral Series C due 2033

Collateral Series due 2004
Medium Term Notes Series VI

Series due 2036
Series due 2031

Series due 2039
Series due 2037
Series due 2018
Second Series due 2013

Series due 2014
Series due 2016

Series due 2019
Series due 2040
Series due 2015
Series due 2017

Principal Amount

100,000,00
200,000,00
150,000,00
150,000,00
75,000,00
75,000,00
75,000,00
50,000,00
150,000,00
72,000,00
150,000,00
150,000,00
100,000,00
50,000,00

142,400,00

150,000,00
200,000,00

175,000,00
100,000,00

170,000,00
130,000,00
75,000,00
50,000,00

63,000,00
67,000,00

300,000,00
150,000,00
70,000,00
58,000,00

(4)

1)
(4)
1)
1)
(1)
1)
4)
(1)
1)
4)
(1)
4)

1)

(1)
(4)




Supplemental

Indenture Dated Series Designation Principal Amount
Sixty-sixth 5-29-13 N/A N/A (5)
Sixty-seventh 6-15-13 447 % Series due 2044 150,000,00
4.47 % Series due 2043 75,000,00
Sixty-eighth 10-15-13 474 % Series due 2042 105,000,00
4.84 % Series due 2048 50,000,00
Sixty-ninth 8-1-14 4.39 % Series due 2045 100,000,00
4.44 % Series due 2046 100,000,00
3.51 % Series due 2024 80,000,00

(1) Paid in full at maturity.

(2) This entire issue of Bonds was redeemed optadfeeds from the sale of First Mortgage Bond3/8% Series due 19¢
3) This entire issue of Bonds was redeemed optaxfeeds from the sale of First Mortgage Bonds/8% Series due 19¢
(4) Redeemed in full prior to maturity.

(5) Amended Section 14.01 of the Original Indeet

which bonds are sometimes referred to herein afttveds of the 1977 Series," "Bonds of the 197 708dSeries,"
"Bonds of the 1983 Series," "Bonds of the 1984&3ti"Bonds of the 1986 Series," "Bonds of thé# Series due 1987
"Bonds of the 5%% Series due 1987," "Bonds of @@01Series," "Bonds of the 1991 Series," "Bondthef44% Series
due 1993," "Bonds of the 434% Series due 1993," tBa@f the 1994 Series," "Bonds of the 1995 Serl&xnhds of the
1996 Series," "Bonds of the 1997 Series," "Bondhefl977 Third Series," "Bonds of the 2000 Seridpnds of the
2001 Series," "Bonds of the 2002 Series," "Bondhef2003 Series," "Bonds of the 2003 Second SétiBends of the
1980 Series," "Bonds of the 1982 Series," "Bonddhefl985 Series," "Bonds of the 2005 Series," 'Boof the 2006
Series," "Bonds of the 1996 Second Series," "Baridkse 2007 Series," "Bonds of the 1999 Seriesgrid of the 1998
Series," "Bonds of the 2000 Second Series," "Barfidse 2010 Series," "Bonds of the 2012 Seriesgriis of the
Extendable Series A," "Bonds of the 1995 Secon@&SEr'Bonds of the 2016 Series," "Bonds of the MadTerm Note
Series," "Bonds of the Medium Term Note SerieSBgnds of the 2023 Series," "Bonds of the MediumnT &lote Series
I1," "Bonds of the Medium Term Note Series Ill," 8Bds of the Medium Term Note Series IV," "Bonds$hef Medium
Term Note Series V," "Bonds of the 2002 SecondeSétri'Bonds of the Collateral Series,” "Bonds @& 8econd
Collateral Series," "Bonds of the 2010 Second Sgri@onds of the 2012 Second Series," "Bonds ef2013 Series,"
"Bonds of the 2033 Series," "Bonds of the 2004 &etal Series," "Bonds of the Medium Term Note &eXil," "Bonds
of the 2036 Series," "Bonds of the 2031 SeriesgriiBs of the 2039 Series," "Bonds of the 2037 SgriBsnds of the
2018 Series," "Bonds of the 2013 Second SeriehitB of the 2014 Series," "Bonds of the 2016 SériB®nds of the
2019 Series," "Bonds of the 2040 Series," "Bondhef2015 Series," "Bonds of the 2017 Series," 'tBoof the 2044
Series," "Bonds of the 2043 Series," "Bonds of2842 Series," "Bonds of the 2048 Series," "Bondhef2045 Series,"
"Bonds of the 2046 Series," and "Bonds of the 28@rdes" respectively; and




WHEREAS, the Original Indenture provides that th@@any and the Trustee, subject to the conditiods a
restrictions in the Original Indenture containedynenter into an indenture or indentures suppleahémereto, which she
thereafter form a part of said Original Indentwaong other things, to mortgage, pledge, convawpster, or assign to tl
Trustee and to subject to the lien of the Origindenture with the same force and effect as thonglded in the grantir
clauses thereof, additional properties acquirethbyCompany after the execution and delivery of@niginal Indenture,
and to provide for the creation of any series afdso(other than the Bonds of the 1975 Series)gdastng the series to be
created and specifying the form and provision$eftionds of such series as therein provided orifiednand to provide
a sinking, amortization, replacement, or other @galis fund for the benefit of all or any of the dsrmf any one or more
series, of such character and of such amount, pod such terms and conditions as shall be contamsalch
supplemental indenture; and

WHEREAS, the Company has heretofore executed alibtsd to the Trustee sixty-nine supplemental mdees
amending in certain respects the Original Indengsweh Original Indenture as so supplemented arehded is
hereinafter referred to as the " Mortgdyeand

WHEREAS, the Company desires to further amend thedage in certain respects pursuant to Sectiobil10f.
the Original Indenture, and the Trustee has agi@edch amendments; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide for thatiwa of a new series of bonds to be known ast'Firs
Mortgage Bonds, 3.55% Series due 2030" (sometiragsrhreferred to as the " Bonds of the 2030 Séreghe " Bonds
"), and to specify the form and provisions of thenBls, and to mortgage, pledge, convey, transfexssign to the Trustee
and to subject to the lien of the Mortgage cergalditional properties acquired by the Company stheeexecution and
delivery of the Original Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the Company intends at this time to previimr the issuance of $75,000,000 aggregate pahcip
amount of Bonds of the 2030 Series under and iardance with the terms of the Mortgage and thisp&upental
Indenture (the Mortgage as so supplemented anddedédyy this Supplemental Indenture referred tthas tndenturé);
and

WHEREAS, the Bonds of the 2030 Series and the @elstauthentication certificate to be executedherBonds
of the 2030 Series are to be substantially in étlewing form, respectively:




(Form of Bond of the 3.55% Series due 2030)
[Face of Bond]

THIS BOND HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT").
THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING THIS BOND, AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY THAT (A) THIS
BOND MAY NOT BE RESOLD, PLEDGED, OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHOUT REGISTRATION UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM (AND BASED UPON AN OPINION OF COUNSEL ACCEPTABLE TO THE
COMPANY, PROVIDED THAT IN- HOUSE COUNSEL TO AN INSTITUTION THAT IS AN "ACCREDI TED INVESTOR" AS
DEFINED IN RULE 501(A)(1), (2), (3), OR (7) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT SHALL BE DEEMED ACCEPTABLE) AND | N EACH
CASE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SECURITIES L AWS OF EACH STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND (B) IT
WILL FURNISH TO THE COMPANY AND THE TRUSTEE SUCH CE RTIFICATES AND OTHER INFORMATION AS THEY MAY
REASONABLY REQUIRE TO CONFIRM THAT ANY TRANSFER BY IT OF THIS BOND COMPLIES WITH THE FOREGOING
RESTRICTIONS, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT SUCH CONFIRMA TION BY THE COMPANY MUST BE MADE ON A TIMELY
BASIS AND SHALL NOT BE UNREASONABLY WITHHELD. THE H OLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING THIS BOND,
REPRESENTS AND AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY THAT IT IS (1) A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER
WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A OR (2) AN INSTITUTI ON THAT IS AN "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" AS DEFINED IN
RULE 501(A)(1), (2), (3), OR (7) UNDER THE SECURITES ACT AND THAT IT IS HOLDING THIS BOND FOR INVESTM ENT
PURPOSES AND NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION OR (3) A NON-U.S. PERSON OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES WITHIN THE
MEANING OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.

No. $
CUSIP/PPN No. 736508 N@7

PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
FIRST MORTGAGE BOND, 3.55% SERIES DUE 2030

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE: January 15, 2015

Portland General Electric Company, an Oregon catpmr (hereinafter sometimes called the " Compgnyor
value received, hereby promises to pay to , Or registered assigns, theipainsum o
Dollars on Januar3® (the 'Maturity Date"), except to the extent redeeme:
repaid prior to the Maturity Date, and to pay iestrthereon at the rate of 3.55 percent per ancatoulated on the ba:
of a 360-day year of twelve 3fay months) until the principal hereof is paid caidea available for payment. Interest"
be paid semi-annually in arrears on July 15 anda@anl5 (each an" Interest Payment Dateach year from the Origir
Issue Date, which will be the date the first ing¢nperiod commences. If the Maturity Date or arid@st Payment De
falls on a day which is not a Business Day, asnéefibelow, principal or interest payable with resge such Maturit
Date or Interest Payment Date will be paid on thet succeeding Business Day with the same forceeffedt as if mac
on such Maturity Date or Interest Payment Datedhascase may be, and, in the case of an Intergshd?d Date, but n
the Maturity Date, no additional interest shallraec The interest so payable, and punctually paaity provided for, o
any Interest Payment Date will, subject to cer@ineptions, be paid to the person in whose nansebtbmd (or one
more predecessor bonds) is registered at the ofdsesiness on the fifteenth day (whether or nBtisiness Day)




next preceding such Interest Payment Date (theguRRe Record Daté); provided, howeverthat interest payable on-
Maturity Date will be payable to the person to whitra principal hereof shall be payable. ShouldG@benpany default i
the payment of interest (" Defaulted Inter8sthe Defaulted Interest shall be paid to thesperin whose name this bc
(or one or more predecessor bonds) is registerea subsequent record date fixed by the Companychambiibseque
record date shall be fifteen days prior to the paynhof such Defaulted Interest. As used hereiny$ilBess Day mean:
any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on wiciks in The City of New York are not required atherized by la\
to close.

Payment of the principal of and interest on thiadwill be made in immediately available fundsta bffice o
agency of the Trustee located in Minneapolis, Mswta or such other office of the Trustee that fianst as its financi.
operations center, in such coin or currency oflingéed States of America as at the time of paynietegal tender f
payment of public and private debts. The Trustegyaying agent of the Company, will make all payts@h principal an
interest by wire transfer of immediately availalilends; provided, however, that appropriate written wire trans
instructions must have been received by the Trustédess than sixteen days prior to the applicahiierest Payme
Date, Maturity Date, or redemption date.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisadrthis bond set forth on the reverse hereof, iticlg terms ¢
redemption, and such further provisions shall fbparposes have the same effect as though futljosth at this place.

This bond shall not become or be valid or obligafor any purpose until the authentication ceréfechereon shi
have been signed by the Trustee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMMP¥Y has caused this instrument to
executed manually or in facsimile by its duly authed officers and has caused a facsimile of itpa@te seal to |
imprinted hereon.

Dated:
PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
By:
Title:

Attest:

Assistant Secretary




(Form of Trustee's Authentication Certificate for
Bonds of the 3.55% Series due 2030)

This is one of the bonds, of the series designageein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture
WELLS FARGO BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS TRUSTEE

By:
Authorized Signatory




[Reverse of Bond]

This bond is one of the bonds of a series desigraterirst Mortgage Bonds, 3.55% Series due 2030d8me
herein referred to as the " Bonds of the 2030 S&yiémited to a maximum aggregate principal amoah$75,000,00(
Bonds of the 2030 Series are bonds of an authorsge@ of bonds of the Company known as First Mag#gBonds, ni
limited as to maximum aggregate principal amouthisaued or issuable in one or more series unddregually secure
(except insofar as any sinking fund, replacement fwr other fund established in accordance wighgiovisions of th
Indenture hereinafter mentioned may afford addaicsecurity for the bonds of any specific serieg)ab Indenture «
Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1945, dugcuted and delivered by the Company to Wellgd-&8ank
National Association (as successor to HSBC Bank U$#ional Association), as Trustee, as supplenteri@ended, ai
modified by sixtynine supplemental indentures and by the Seventgtpplemental Indenture (such Indenture
Mortgage and Deed of Trust as so supplemented, dedeand modified by such sixtyne supplemental indentures .
the Seventieth Supplemental Indenture being hetemealled the " Indentur®, to which Indenture reference is her
made for a description of the property mortgaged pledged as security for said bonds, the natudeeatent of th
security, and the rights, duties, and immunitiesender of the Trustee, the rights of the holdésaid bonds and of t
Trustee and of the Company in respect of such ggcand the terms upon which said bonds may b&eshereunde
Capitalized terms used herein and not defined heslgall have the respective meanings in the Indentunless otherwi:
noted.

The Bonds of the 2030 Series are not subject tesankyng fund.

The Bonds of the 2030 Series may be redeemed b€ahgany prior to maturity as a whole, at any timein
part, from time to time on notice given not morartminety nor less than thirty days prior to theedd# such redemption
the option of the Company at a price equal to treatgr of (i) the principal amount of the portiohtbis bond to b
redeemed or (ii) the sum of the present valuelefémaining scheduled payments of principal atetést (not includin
any portion of such payments of interest accruedfdle date of redemption) due on this bond (atipo thereof) to b
redeemed, discounted to the redemption date omaas®ual basis (assuming a 36@y year consisting of twelve 3y
months) at the Adjusted Treasury Rate, plus 5Csha@ints, together in each case with accrued apdidnnterest to tf
date of redemption.

If this bond or any portion thereof ($10,000 or iategral multiple thereof) is duly called for redetion an
payment duly provided for as specified in the Irtdesy, this bond or such portion thereof shall caadee entitled to tt
lien of the Indenture from and after the date payine so provided for and shall cease to bearestdrom and after tl
date fixed for such redemption.

In the event of the selection for redemption of atipn only of the principal of this bond, paymeuit the
redemption price will be made only upon surrendeths bond in exchange for a bond or bonds (buy of authorize:
denominations of the same series) for the unredédraance of the principal amount of this bond.




The Indenture contains provisions permitting thenPany and the Trustee, with the consent of thedmsldf no
less than seventiive percent in principal amount of the bonds (escle of bonds disqualified by reason of
Company's interest therein) at the time outstandinguding, if more than one series of bonds shallat the tim
outstanding, not less than sixty percent in priacgmount of each series affected, to effect, bindanture supplemen
to the Indenture, modifications or alterationstoé tndenture and of the rights and obligationshef Company and of t
holders of the bonds and coupons if the modificetior alterations would adversely affect or dinfinise rights of th
holders of any bonds against the Company or itpgaty; provided, however, that no such modification or alteration s
be made without the written approval or consenalbholders hereof which will (i) extend the matyrof this bond c
reduce the rate or extend the time of paymenttef@st hereon or reduce the amount of the printipadof, (ii) permit th
creation of any lien, not otherwise permitted, ptio or on a parity with the lien of the Indentur, (iii) reduce th
percentage of the principal amount of the bondshupe approval or consent of the holders of whiddifications o
alterations may be made as aforesaid.

The transfer of this bond is registrable by thesteged owner hereof in person or by such ownéitsreey duly
authorized in writing, at the corporate trust cdff the Trustee in Minneapolis, Minnesota, upamender of this bond fi
cancellation and upon payment of any taxes or agogernmental charges payable upon such transfdrirereupon
new registered bond or bonds of the same seriesfaadike aggregate principal amount will be is$te the transferee
transferees in exchange therefor.

The Company, the Trustee, and any paying agent cieayn and treat the person in whose name this s
registered as the absolute owner hereof for thpgser of receiving payments of or on account ofpifsecipal hereof ar
interest due hereon, and for all other purposegthgn or not this bond shall be overdue, and neitiee Company, tf
Trustee, nor any paying agent shall be affectedriyynotice to the contrary.

Bonds of this series are issuable only in fullyisegyed form without coupons in denominations d&000 or an
amount in excess thereof that is an integral meltgf $10,000. The registered owner of this bondtsabption ma
surrender the same for cancellation at said offitéghe Trustee and receive in exchange thereforstree aggrege
principal amount of registered bonds of the samesédut of other authorized denominations upomyt of any taxe
or other governmental charges payable upon suchaege and subject to the terms and conditions agét fn the
Indenture. Bonds may be issued in a denominatidassfthan $100,000 (but in multiples of at led€),800) if necessa
to enable the registration of a transfer by a hotafeits entire holding of Bonds, or if necessaoy the redemption
Bonds.

If an event of default as defined in the Indentshmall occur, the principal of this bond may becamée declare
due and payable before maturity in the manner aitldl the effect provided in the Indenture. The hoddednowever, ¢
certain specified percentages of the bonds (exausi bonds disqualified by reason of the Compaimy&rest therein)
the time outstanding, including in certain casescd@d percentages of bonds of particular seresy in certain cases,
the extent and as provided in the Indenture, wedrtain defaults thereunder and the consequencgbfdefaults.
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No recourse shall be had for the payment of thecypal of or the interest on this bond, or for ahgim base
hereon, or otherwise in respect hereof or of tlemture, against any incorporator, shareholdeectir, or officer, pas
present, or future, as such, of the Company omgf@edecessor or successor corporation, eithecttiiror through th
Company or such predecessor or successor corpgratiwer any constitution or statute or rule of ,law by the
enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or otbenall such liability of incorporators, sharetesl directors, ar
officers, as such, being waived and released byadher and owner hereof by the acceptance obibrigl and as provid
in the Indenture.

The Indenture provides that this bond shall be degkto be a contract made under the laws of thes StfaNew
York, and for all purposes shall be construed roatance with and governed by the laws of saideStat

(End of Form of Bond of the 3.55% Series due 2030)
and

WHEREAS, all acts and proceedings required by lad/lay the charter or articles of incorporation agthws of
the Company necessary to make the Bonds to bedi$mreunder, when executed by the Company, autiated and
delivered by the Trustee, and duly issued, thalyalinding, and legal obligations of the Compamg & constitute this
Supplemental Indenture a valid and binding instminieave been done and taken; and the executiodelivery of this
Supplemental Indenture have been in all respedysadithorized,;

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNE&S$H, that, in order to secure the
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, antkrest on all First Mortgage Bonds at any timaessand outstandir
under the Original Indenture as supplemented ardifrad by the sixty-nine supplemental indentureseheefore
described and as supplemented and modified bystipplemental Indenture, according to their tenorpert, and effect,
and to secure the performance and observance tbieatibvenants and conditions therein and hereitagted, and for the
purpose of confirming and perfecting the lien &f thdenture on the properties of the Company hafteindescribed, ¢
referred to, and for and in consideration of thenises and of the mutual covenants herein contaametlacceptance of
the Bonds by the holders thereof, and for othemalale consideration, the receipt whereof is heegiynowledged, the
Company has executed and delivered this Suppleiad&nture and by these presents does grant, inasgdl, warrant,
alien, convey, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledgeothecate, set over, and confirm unto the Trustedollowing
property, rights, privileges, and franchises (iditidn to all other property, rights, privilegesidafranchises heretofo
subjected to the lien of the Original Indenturesagplemented by the sixty-nine supplemental indesthereinbefore
described and not heretofore released from theliereof, all of which shall secure all bonds, utlthg the Bonds), to
wit:
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CLAUSE |

Without in any way limiting anything in the Mortga@r hereinafter described, all and singular thedareal
estate, chattels real, interests in land, leasshuldys, rights-of-way, easements, servitudes, jpieand licenses, lands
under water, riparian rights, franchises, privilegaectric generating plants, electric transmissiod distribution systen
and all apparatus and equipment appertaining theséfices, buildings, warehouses, garages, aner atinuctures, tracks,
machine shops, materials and supplies, and allprppf any nature appertaining to any of the @asystems, business,
or operations of the Company, whether or not affiteethe realty, used in the operation of any efghemises or plants or
systems or otherwise, which have been acquiretidbmpany since the execution and delivery ofahginal
Indenture and not heretofore included in any indensupplemental thereto, and now owned or which Ineaeafter be
acquired by the Company (other than excepted ptppsrdefined in the Mortgage).

CLAUSE Il

All corporate, Federal, State, municipal, and offeamits, consents, licenses, bridge licensesgénights, river
permits, franchises, grants, privileges, and immiesmiof every kind and description, owned, heldsgassed, or enjoyed
the Company (other than excepted property as defmthe Mortgage) and all renewals, extensionlgrgaments, and
modifications of any of them, which have been aafuby the Company since the execution and thgetglof the
Original Indenture and not heretofore includednyg adenture supplemental thereto, and now ownedhich may
hereafter be acquired by the Company.

CLAUSE 11l

Also all other property, real, personal, or mixeghgible or intangible (other than excepted propastdefined in
the Mortgage) of every kind, character, and deionpand wheresoever situated, whether or not ugethe generation,
manufacture, production, transportation, distrimtisale, or supplying of electricity, hot watersteam, which has been
acquired by the Company since the execution aridestglof the Original Indenture and not heretofor@uded in any
indenture supplemental thereto, and now owned achwiay hereafter be acquired by the Company (dtiear excepted
property as defined in the Mortgag

CLAUSE IV

Together with all and singular the plants, buildingnprovements, additions, tenements, hereditasneasement
rights, privileges, licenses, and franchises ahdthér appurtenances whatsoever belonging orynase pertaining to
any of the property hereby mortgaged or pledgedtended so to be, or any part thereof, and therseon and
reversions, remainder and remainders, and the, revesnues, issues, earnings, income, productgafits thereof, and
every part and parcel thereof, and all the estafet, title, interest, property, claim, and demafevery nature
whatsoever of the Company at law, in equity, oeothse howsoever,
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in, of, and to such property and every part andqddhereof (other than excepted property as deéfinehe Mortgage).

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all of said property, real, memal, and mixed, and all and singular the lands,
properties, estates, rights, franchises, privileged appurtenances hereby mortgaged, conveyeattjqueor assigned,
intended so to be, together with all the appurteeanhereto appertaining and the rents, issuegrafits thereof, unto tt
Trustee and its successors and assigns, forever:

SUBJECT, HOWEVER, to the exceptions, reservatioestyictions, conditions, limitations, covenantsg anatter:
contained in all deeds and other instruments wimeleuthe Company has acquired any of the propestyowned by it,
and to permitted encumbrances as defined in Subesdgtof Section 1.11 of the Mortgage;

BUT IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the equal and prapmrate use, benefit, security, and protectiorhoke
who from time to time shall hold the bonds autheated and delivered under the Original Indentuckthe sixty-nine
supplemental indentures hereinbefore describedi®Supplemental Indenture, and duly issued byCi@mpany, without
any discrimination, preference, or priority of amye bond over any other by reason of priority mtime of issue, sale, or
negotiation thereof or otherwise, except as pravideSection 11.28 of the Mortgage, so that, sulifesaid Section
11.28, each and all of said bonds shall have thmesaht, lien, and privilege under the Originaliémture and the sixty-
nine supplemental indentures hereinbefore descrdettiis Supplemental Indenture, and shall be iggsacured thereby
and hereby and shall have the same proportionteest and share in the trust estate, with the sdfeet as if all of the
bonds had been issued, sold, and negotiated simeoltisly on the date of delivery of the Originaldntlre;

AND UPON THE TRUSTS, USES, AND PURPOSES and sulifethie covenants, agreements, and conditions i
the Original Indenture and the sixtyne supplemental indentures hereinbefore descabdderein set forth and declar

ARTICLE ONE.
BONDS OF THE 2030 SERIES AND
CERTAIN PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO.

SECTION 1.01. Certain Terms of Bonds of the 2030 Serféwere is hereby established a series of First
Mortgage Bonds of the Company designated and ettt "First Mortgage Bonds, 3.55% Series due 2(20hetimes
referred to as the_" Bonds of the 2030 Séle$he aggregate principal amount of the Bondthef2030 Series shall be
limited to $75,000,000, excluding, however, any @oof the 2030 Series which may be executed, atithéed, and
delivered in exchange for or in lieu of or in sutogton for other Bonds of such Series pursuanh#&provisions of the
Indenture.
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The definitive Bonds of the 2030 Series shall Beable in substantially the form as hereinabovéostt in fully
registered form without coupons in the denominatibi100,000, or any amount in excess thereofishan integral
multiple of $10,000.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.05h# Mortgage, each Bond of the 2030 Series shalbbed as of
the date sold by the Company (the " Original I99ate") and shall mature on January 15, 2030 (the "uMigt Date"),
except to the extent redeemed or repaid priorédhturity Date. Each Bond of the 2030 Series dbedlr interest from
the Original Issue Date, which is the date the fireerest period commences, at the rate of 3.5%5get per annum
(calculated on the basis of a 3@lay year of twelve 3@ay months), until payment of the principal therea$ been paid
or made available for payment. Interest will begidg semi-annually in arrears on July 15 and Jgnl&a(each an "
Interest Payment Dat® each year commencing with the first InterestrRagt Date occurring after the Original Issue
Date. If the Maturity Date or an Interest PaymeatdXalls on a day which is not a Business Dayledimed below,
principal or interest payable with respect to sh&turity Date or Interest Payment Date will be paidthe nex
succeeding Business Day with the same force aedtedf if made on such Maturity Date or Interegihfient Date, as the
case may be, and, in the case of an Interest PayDag¢s, but not the Maturity Date, no additiondenest shall accrue.
The person in whose name any Bond of the 2030 Seriegistered at the close of business on thikcapfe Record Dat
(as defined below) with respect to any InterestniRayt Date shall be entitled to receive the intgpagtble thereon on
such Interest Payment Date notwithstanding theatktion of such Bond of the 2030 Series upon &gystration of
transfer or exchange thereof subsequent to sucbr&&ate and prior to such Interest Payment Datlkess the Company
shall default in the payment of the interest duswch Interest Payment Date, in which case suduttefl interest shall
be paid to the person in whose name such Bonded@@B0 Series is registered on a subsequent rdatedixed by the
Company, which subsequent record date shall leefifdays prior to the payment of such defaultestést;provided,
however, that interest payable on the Maturity Date wélfmyable to the person to whom the principal thfeskall be
payable. As used herein the teriBusiness Day means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunaewhich banks in Th
City of New York, New York are not required or aottzed by law to close. As used herein, the telRetord Daté with
respect to any Interest Payment Date shall meafifthenth day (whether or not such day is a Bussneay) next
preceding such Interest Payment Date. The prinoipidde Bonds of the 2030 Series shall be payabény coin ol
currency of the United States of America whichhattime of payment is legal tender for the payneémpublic and privat
debts at the office or agency of the Trustee latateMinneapolis, Minnesota or such other officelad Trustee that
functions as its financial operations center, aridrest on such Bonds of the 2030 Series shalapalpe in like coin or
currency at said office or agency.

The Company shall provide written notice to thestee of the Original Issue Date no later than diags before
such date.

Upon compliance with the provisions of Section 200éhe Mortgage and as provided in this Supplealent

Indenture, and upon payment of any taxes or otbeermmental charges payable upon such exchangelsBirihe 2030
Series may be exchanged for a new Bond or
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Bonds of the 2030 Series of different authorizedodeinations of like aggregate principal amount. Thestee hereunder
shall, by virtue of its office as such Trustee e registrar and transfer agent of the Companyh®purpose of
registering permitted transfers of Bonds of the®88ries.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.11h#d Mortgage, no service charge shall be made fpeachange
or registration of transfer of Bonds of the 2030i&% but the Company or the Trustee at eitheheif option may require
payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax oeotjovernmental charge incident thert

SECTION 1.02. Redemption Provisions for Bonds of the 2030 SeTies.Bonds of the 2030 Series may be
redeemed prior to maturity at any time, in wholénopart, upon prior notice given by mailing sudjtice to the respecti
registered owners of such Bonds of the 2030 Saoetess than thirty nor more than ninety daysmoahe redemption
date and as otherwise required by the provisiosidle Nine of the Mortgage, at the option of @empany, at a
redemption price equal to the greater of (i) 10@@et of the principal amount of the portion of Bends of the 2030
Series to be redeemed or (ii) the sum of the ptesdues of the remaining scheduled payments otcpal and interest
(not including any portion of such payments of ias accrued as of the date of redemption) dub@Bonds of the 2030
Series (or portion thereof) to be redeemed, disisalito the redemption date on a semi-annual basssi(nhing a 36alay
year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at theuatd Treasury Rate, plus 50 basis points, togetteach case with
accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redempiihe Company shall give the Trustee notice ohsademption price
immediately after the calculation thereof, and Tnestee shall have no responsibility for such dakoon.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9.03h& Mortgage, in the case of any partial redempiidihe Bonds
of the 2030 Series, the principal amount of thed®oto be redeemed shall be allocated pro rata amibhglders of such
Bonds of the 2030 Series at the time outstandidgrmaccordance with the unpaid principal amouatebf.

The following definitions shall apply for purposafsthis Section 1.02:

(a) " Adjusted Treasury Rateameans, with respect to any redemption date,ateeper annum equal to the semi-
annual equivalent yield to maturity of the Compéeakreasury Issue, calculated using a price foGbmparable
Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage ofritsgal amount) equal to the Comparable TreasuigeHor such
redemption date. The Adjusted Treasury Rate sleatldiculated on the third Business Day precediag th
redemption date.

(b) " Comparable Treasury Isstiemeans the United States Treasury security seldptean Independent
Investment Banker as having a maturity comparabtbe remaining term of the Bonds of the 2030 Sdnéebe
redeemed that would be utilized, at the time oéc@n and in accordance with customary finanaiatpce, in
pricing new issues of corporate debt securitiesoofiparable maturity to the remaining term of the@wof the
2030 Series.
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(c) " Comparable Treasury Priteneans, with respect to any redemption date, ifa)average of four Reference
Treasury Dealer Quotations for the redemption dster excluding the highest and lowest Refereneadury
Dealer Quotations for the redemption date, or {#)e Independent Investment Banker obtains feten four
such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, theageesf all such quotations.

(d) " Independent Investment BanKeneans an independent investment and bankingutieti of national
standing appointed by the Company.

(e) " Reference Treasury Dealaneans a primary U.S. Government securities dealew York City selected
by the Independent Investment Banker.

(f) " Reference Treasury Dealer Quotatidmseans, with respect to each Reference TreasuajeDand any
redemption date, the average, as determined bpdependent Investment Banker, of the bid and apkieds for
the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in eaehasaa percentage of its principal amount) quiotediting to
the Independent Investment Banker at 5:00 p.m., Xewk City time, on the fourth Business Day precedihe
redemption date.

SECTION 1.03. Sections 4.04, 4.05, and 4.06 to Remain in Effiémtwithstanding the provisions of
Sections 4.04, 4.05, 4.06, and 4.07 of the Mortgtgeprovisions of Sections 4.04, 4.05, and 4f&e Mortgage shall
remain in full force and effect and shall be parfed by the Company so long as any Bonds of the 2@8@s remain
outstanding.

SECTION 1.04. Certain Requirements of Mortgage to Remain Appleakhe requirements which are stated in
the next to the last paragraph of Section 1.13im@lause (9) of Paragraph A of Section 3.01 ofNtwetgage to be
applicable so long as any of the Bonds of the 18&tes are outstanding shall remain applicabl®sg &s any of the
Bonds of the 2030 Series are outstanding.

SECTION 1.05. Certain Exceptions to Sections 2.06 and 2.10 oMbegage.Notwithstanding the provisions
of Section 2.06 or Section 2.10 of the Mortgage,@ompany shall not be required (a) to issue, tegidischarge from
registration, exchange, or register the transfemgfBond of the 2030 Series for a period of fiftelays next preceding
any selection by the Trustee of Bonds of the 208@S to be redeemed or (b) to register, dischinoge registration,
exchange, or register the permitted transfer ofBmyd of the 2030 Series so selected for redemids entirety or
(c) to exchange or register the permitted transfemny portion of a Bond of the 2030 Series whioktipn has been so
selected for redemption.

SECTION 1.06. Reference to Minimum Provision for DepreciatiorCiertificate of Available Addition$o long
as any Bonds of the 2030 Series remain outstandihgferences to the minimum provision for depaon in the form
of certificate of available additions set forthSection 3.03 of the Mortgage shall be includedny eertificate of availabl
additions filed with the Trustee, but whenever Bonfithe 2030 Series shall no longer be outstandiihg
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references to such minimum provisions for depramatiay be omitted from any such certificate.

SECTION 1.07. Reporting ObligationsTo the extent the Company is no longer requirdiilé¢mr does not
voluntarily file the following documents with thee&urities and Exchange Commission (the " SEGo long as any
Bonds of the 2030 Series are outstanding, the Coynglaall furnish to the Trustee, within the timeipds specified in th
SEC's rules and regulations, the following:

(a) All quarterly and annual financial informatitivat would be required to be contained in a fikvith the SEC o
Forms 16-Q and 16K if the Company were required to file such forimgjuding a "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations” that describes the financial conditiod results of
operations of the Company and its consolidatedidisbges and, with respect to the annual informataly, a
report thereon by the Company's certified indepehdecountants.

(b) All current reports that would be required ®fided with the SEC on Form 8-K if the Company @eequired
to file such reports.

The Trustee shall retain such documents in accosdaith its customary procedures.

Delivery of such reports, information, and documsentthe Trustee is for informational purposes @mig the
Trustee's receipt of such shall not constitute tansve notice of any information contained tharer determinable from
information contained therein (as to which the T@agnay rely solely on Officers' Certificates).

SECTION 1.08. CUSIP, ISIN, Private Placement, or Common Code Numfbhe Company in issuing the
Bonds of the 2030 Series may use "CUSIP," "ISIRfivate Placement, " or "Common Code" numberdhéhtgenerally
in use) and, if so, the Trustee shall use such eusnh notices of redemption or repurchase as aetv@nce to holders;
provided, howeve, that any such notice may state that no represemta made as to the correctness of such numbers
either as printed on the bonds or as containedymatice of a redemption or repurchase and thiainee may be placed
only on the other identification numbers printedtb@ bonds, and any such redemption or repurchesken®t be affected
by any defect in or omission of such numbers. Tam@any shall promptly notify the Trustee in writinany change in
"CUSIP," "ISIN," "Private Placement," or "Common @& numbers.

SECTION 1.09 Duration of Article OneThis Article One shall be of force and effect oatylong as any Bonds
of the 2030 Series are outstanding.
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ARTICLE TWO.
TRUSTEE.

SECTION 2.01. Duties of TrusteeThe Trustee hereby accepts the trust hereby creBbedTrustee undertakes,
prior to the occurrence of an event of default after the curing of all events of default which ntewe occurred, t
perform such duties and only such duties as arafgaly set forth in the Original Indenture asré®fore and herek
supplemented and modified, on and subject to timesteand conditions set forth in the Original Indeatas so
supplemented and modified, and in case of the oexoe of an event of default (which has not beeadjuo exercise
such of the rights and powers vested in it by thigi@al Indenture as so supplemented and modified,to use the same
degree of care and skill in their exercise, asual@mnt person would exercise or use under the cstamoes in the conduct
of his or her own affairs.

The Trustee shall not be responsible in any mawhatsoever for or in respect of the validity orfsigéncy of this
Supplemental Indenture or the Bonds issued herewundbe due execution thereof by the Company. Tiustee shall be
under no obligation or duty with respect to tha§l registration, or recording of this Suppleméntdenture or the re-
filing, re-registration, or re-recording thereohdrecitals of fact contained herein or in the Bofather than the Trustee's
authentication certificate) shall be taken as thtements solely of the Company, and the Trusteenass no
responsibility for the correctness thereof.

ARTICLE THREE.
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

SECTION 3.01. Date of this Supplemental Indentuddthough this Supplemental Indenture, for conveoen
and for the purpose of reference, is dated Jarua&@15, the actual date of execution by the Comppa by the Trustee
is as indicated by their respective acknowledgmbeatsto annexed.

SECTION 3.02. Relation to Original Indenturelhis Supplemental Indenture is executed and skatbinstrued
as an indenture supplemental to the Original Indemas heretofore supplemented and modified, asd@gdemented and
modified hereby, the Original Indenture as herg®Bupplemented and modified is in all respectigdtand confirmed,
and the Original Indenture as heretofore and hesepplemented and modified shall be read, takehcanstrued as one
and the same instrument. All terms used in thigp&upental Indenture shall be taken to have the saganing as in the
Original Indenture except in cases where the comlearly indicates otherwise.

SECTION 3.03. Invalid, lllegal, or Unenforceable Provisions case any one or more of the provisions
contained in this Supplemental Indenture or inBbads shall for any reason be held to be invaliegal, or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidityg#iity, or unenforceability shall not affect anyet provisions of this
Supplemental Indenture, but this Supplemental Ingershall be construed as if such invalid or dllegr unenforceable
provision had never been contained her
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SECTION 3.04. CounterpartsThis Supplemental Indenture may be executed imanyber of counterparts, a
each of such counterparts shall for all purposeddeened to be an original, and all such countespartas many of them
as the Company and the Trustee shall preserve noged, shall together constitute but one and #meesinstrument.

SECTION 3.05. Conflicting Provisionlf any provision of this Supplemental Indenture ftiots with another
provision of the Mortgage required to be includednidentures qualified under the Trust Indentureé&d 939 (as enact:
prior to the date of this Supplemental Indentuseaby of the provisions of said Act, such requipedvision shall contro

SECTION 3.06. HeadingsAtrticle and Section headings and the table of austased herein are for
convenience of reference only, are not part of $hipplemental Indenture, and are not to affecttmestruction of, or to
be taken into consideration in interpreting, thip@emental Indenture.

SECTION 3.07. Governing LawTHIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STRE OF NEW YORK DETERMINED
WITHOUT REFERENCE TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LANOTHER THAN SECTION 51401 OF THE
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORKRPROVIDEDTHAT THE FOREGOING SHALL
NOT APPLY TO THE CREATION OR ENFORCEMENT OF ANY LNEON REAL PROPERTY CREATED BY TH|
INDENTURE, WHICH SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF HE STATE IN WHICH SUCH REAL
PROPERTY IS LOCATED.

SECTION 3.08. Addresses for Notices to the Trustéey notice, direction, request or demand hereutaer
upon the Trustee shall be in writing (includingdicile and electronic mail in PDF format) and sheldeemed to have
been sufficiently given or made, for all purposégjven or served by overnight courier, facsimidgctronic mail in PDF
format, or by being deposited postage prepaid gigtered or certified mail in a post office letberx, addressed to the
Trustee at: Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatistin: Corporate, Municipal & Escrow Services, 333Grand Avenu:
5th Floor Suite 5A, MAC E2604-05A, Los Angeles, @B8071, Facsimile: 213.253.7598. The Trustee, bicadod the
Company, may designate additional or different egskes for subsequent notices or communications.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Portland General Electric Company has caused this
Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by its President or one of its
Executive Vice Presidents or one of its Vice Presidents and its corporate seal to be hereunto
affixed and attested by its Secretary or one of its Assistant Secretaries, and in token of its
acceptance of the trusts created hereunder, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association has caused
this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or
one of its Assistant Vice Presidents or one of its Corporate Trust Officers, all as of the day and

year first above written.

Attest: /f;/gélfff// (/J/ ﬁ%gﬁf/g

Name: Cheryl A Chevis
Title: Assistant Secretary

{Seal)

PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

Byt -

Nameylﬁm 5 defl
Titlel” Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief
Financial Officer & Treasurer

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, as Trustee

By ’/ M{@Z/’}/ /C%LZ/

Name; Maddy Hall

Title:
Vice President
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State of Oregon )
) ss.
County of Multnomah )
e
‘The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this /§ day of December,
2014 by James Lobdell, Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer
of PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, an Oregon corporation, on behalf of said
corporation.

OFFICIAL STAMP
JOYCE MAE&&F;%%& .
TARY PUBLIC- ‘ 47/ P 7
/ gg}:mwonuo.mm (e il Aot ot
Y COIMERIIN EXPIRES ROVEMBER 17,2017 N ~a1'yf Public for Oregon
My Commission Expires _////7/20/7
[NOTARIAL SEAL]
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State of California )
) ss.
County of [ aekes )

On Dccem oy 13 oY before me /L / /,(, HNeael TLI{
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared M Addy /L /Z(_ i 5
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the personf¥) whose name() is/ai
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that }e/she/théy executed the same
in li¢/her/théir anthorized capacity(igs), and that by h{s/her/thidr signature(y) on the instrument

the person(¥) or the entity upon behalf of which the person(¥) acted, executed the instrument,

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal. == jthottnsssss s esoco.
MICHAEL TU
Commission # 1964828 K
i ’ Notary Public - California
s )_/_,. """"" Los Angeles County
Signature %M»ﬂ/‘/ (Seal) Comm. Explres Dec 24, 2015 b
%/ i
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State of Oregon )
) ss.
County of Multnomah )

James Lobdell and Cheryl A. Chevis, the Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief
Financial Officer & Treasurer, and an Assistant Secretary, respectively, of PORTLAND
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, an Oregon corporation, the mortgagor in the foregoing
mortgage named, being first duly sworn, on oath depose and say that they are the officer above
named of said corporation and that this affidavit is made for and on its behalf by authority of its
Board of Directors and that the aforesaid mortgage is made by said mortgagor in good faith, and
without any design to hinder, delay, or defraud creditors.

-
Subscribed and sworn fo before me this /5 day of December, 2014,

OFFICIAL SLAXSLAN 0 )
JOYGE MAE cecpes s y )
1C-OREGON - -
ggmh?l‘ggll(,)%m. 922410 1\}6€ary’/f’ubllc for Oregon
J1E3 ! . | ¢
1Y GOMMISSION EXPIRES NOVEMBER 17, 2017 Mf/ Commission Bxpires sz /17 /2017
[NOTARIAL SEAL]
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PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Income from continuing operations before incomesax
Total fixed charges
Total earnings

Fixed charges:
Interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest on certain long-term power contracts
Estimated interest factor in rental expense
Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

(Dollars in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

EXHIBIT 12.1

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 236,67¢ $ 125,75 205,40¢ 204,71+ $ 178,15t
128,51! 118,18 122,85: 126,76t 131,48t

$ 36519 $ 243,94 328,25 331,48 $ 309,64
$ 96,06¢ $ 100,81t 107,99: 110,410 $ 110,24
22,44 6,89: 3,69¢ 3,05¢ 9,097
5,131 5,99¢ 6,64 8,76¢ 8,06¢
4,86¢ 4,48 4,51 4,53( 4,081

$ 12851' $ 118,18 122,85: 126,76t $ 131,48t
2.84 2.0¢ 2.67 2.61 2.3




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-192274 on Forr® &d Registration Statement N
333-135726, 333-142694, and 333-158059 on Fornofe8r report dated February 12, 2015 , relatintheoconsolidated financial
statements of Portland General Electric Companysaibgidiaries, and the effectiveness of Portlande@d Electric Company’s

internal control over financial reporting, appegrin this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Portlandn@eal Electric Company for the
year ended December 31, 2014 .

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 12, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, James J. Piro, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf Portland General Electric Compa

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does natatomny untrue statement of a material fact ot émstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods

presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1L&gr the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdioitbe designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiakrinédion relating to the registrant, including itheolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is

being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeressurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and th
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguorinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presentbib report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by

this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatooed during th:
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evailly affect, the registrant’s internal contreler financial

reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@tuaf internal control over

financial reporting, to the registrant’'s auditor&lahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicdctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal cbntrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, procesanmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifioéanin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 12, 2015 /sl JAMES J. PIRO
James J. Piro

President and

Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, James F. Lobdell, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf Portland General Electric Compa

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does natatomny untrue statement of a material fact ot émstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods

presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1L&gr the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdioitbe designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiakrinédion relating to the registrant, including itheolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is

being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeressurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and th
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguorinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presentbib report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by

this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatooed during th:
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evailly affect, the registrant’s internal contreler financial

reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@tuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’'s auditor&lahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicdctors (or persons

performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal cbntrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, procesanmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifioéanin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 12, 2015 /sl JAMES F. LOBDELL
James F. Lobdell

Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief
Financial Officer, and Treasurer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

We, James J. Piro, President and Chief Executifie€df and James F. Lobdell, Senior Vice Presid¢ftinance, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer, of Portland General Eled@immpany (the “Company”), hereby certify that thenpany’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014ilabwith the Securities and Exchange Commissior-ebruary 13, 2015
pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchakg of 1934 (the “Report”), fully complies witheé requirements of that section.

We further certify that the information containedtihe Report fairly presents, in all material redpgthe financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/sl JAMES J. PIRO /sl JAMES F. LOBDELL

James J. Piro James F. Lobdell
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer

Date: February 12, 2015 Date: February 12, 2015




